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FY25 highlights

Improved financial performance and
strong execution of strategic prioritiesin
FY25 as we accelerate profitable growth

Financial

Revenue

£69.5m

FY24: +11%

Strategic

Number of new
customers (‘000)

737

FY24:687

LFL Revenue % Number of active
[ APM | customers (L12M)
(‘000)
(o)
+4.9% 1,130
FY24:(2.0%) FY24:1,047
Gross profit Trustpilot
score
£45.7m 4.7
FY24:£41.1m FY24:4.8
Underlying EBITDA Number of stores
[ APM
£8.9m 66
FY24:£6.8m FY24:57
Underlying Colleague
operating profit I Engagement Score
o
£3.2m 77%
FY24:£2.1m FY24:66%

Free cash flow

[ APM |
£1.7m

Colleagues at
reporting date

644

FY24:£2.0m FY24:578
Net cash CO,e emissions I/
[ APM ] intensity &
7
£1.0m 6.0 .
i
FY24: Net Debt -£0.7m FY24:6.9 z

This report contains Alternative Performance Measures, which may not
be defined or specified in accordance with statutory measures.

See page 162 for further information.
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Chair’sintroduction

£EThe opportunity to profitably
grow market share and brand
awareness is significant, offering

sustainable value creation
potential for all stakeholders”

GregHodder
Chair

|am pleased to report that substantial progress has been made in the last 12 months as
this year saw strong growth in sales, record customer numbers, improved profitability and
cash generation. As an own-brand, direct-sourced category specialist, ProCook has a
unique positioninits sector. Our propositionis highly differentiated, providing customers
with high-quality products at far greater value than other well-known kitchenware brands,
complemented by outstanding omnichannel service bothin-store and online.

The opportunity to profitably grow market
share and brand awareness is significant,
offering sustainable value creation
potential for all stakeholders. The strategy
set out by the Leadership Team last June,

is focused on capturing this opportunity
and accelerating profitable growth. We are
confident that we are ontrack to achieve
our medium-term objectives of 100 stores,
£100mrevenue and 10% operating profit
margin, and we believe that there is much
that canbe achievedin the years ahead.

In order to ensure that planned growth
investmentis self-fundedin areas such as
new stores, which will supportimproved
future profitability and cash generation,
the Boardis notrecommending a dividend
payment for this financial year.

Culturally, the business continues to
evolve, with the Leadership Team that

Lee has established since he joined

in September 2023 building strength
together, uniting around shared objectives
and focusing more purposefully on

stores and customers. Discipline around
strategic executionis now embedded,
combined with the improved day-to-day

rigour needed to trade effectivelyina
competitive retail environment.

Ourrole as aBoardis to support and
challenge the development of the business,
adding value to the strategy through the
combined experience that we bring and
ourrobust approach to governance. These
two parallel tracks are key to generating
asustainable business that delivers for all
of our stakeholders. The Non-Executive
Directors continue to work very well with
the Executives and wider Leadership Team,
bringing a combination of pragmatic
counsel andrelevant sector experience
with appropriate challenge on strategic,
operational and governance matters.

As aB Corp, and the first UK listed retailer

to achieve the certificationin 2022,

we believe that we must be aforce for
good, encouraging customers and other
organisations to make positive choices
which help protect our planet and better
serve the communities we operate in. We
continue to take theright steps to progress
our ambition to achieve net zero by 2040 as
aresponsible retailer.

Ensuring that ProCook remains a great
place toworkisimportant, and we are
pleased that the results of colleague
engagement surveys this year highlight an
improving trend in colleague satisfaction.
ProCook has been a committed member
of the Living Wage Foundation, paying

the Real Living Wage since 2021, with the
average hourly paid colleague having
benefitted from anincrease of 40% in pay
overthelast 5 years, while other elements
of the reward package have also been
improved, helping to provide fairer pay
forall. We are grateful for the hard work
and commitment of all our people and

our suppliers across our business, and on
behalf of the Board, | would like to express
our sincere thanks and gratitude.

Chair
24 June 2025
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£6weare building on ourrecent
momentum and improved
financial results, to deliver our

medium-term ambition of 100 UK
stores, £100m revenue and 10%
operating profit margins.”

Lee Tappenden

CEO

We have made strong progress over the last 12 months as we have delivered on the initial
priorities we set out last yearin our refreshed strategic plan. The results of this work have
been encouraging, with areturn to meaningful sales growth, market share gains and

improved profitability.

We ended the financial year with record
sales, record customer acquisition
numbers and active customers, and record
levels of colleague engagement.

The new talent we broughtinto key roles

in our seniorleadership team (Marketing,
Commercial, Ecommerce and Retail)

are now well-settled and forming strong
working relationships, which will help ensure
we can continue to build on the momentum
we have established.

Our customer proposition and business
foundations are strong, and we are
becoming betterrecognised by UK
customers. We are well positioned to
deliver on our plans to accelerate profitable
growth over the years ahead.

We have continued to accelerate trading
performance throughout the last financial
year, with momentum building quarter

on quarter and new customer acquisition
and L12M active customers reaching new
record levels. Thisis despite the market
backdrop having remained challenging
with consumer confidence still subdued,
and geopolitical events creating significant
uncertainty.

Totalrevenue of £69.5mwasup 11.0%
yearonyear, with strong like-for-like
performance in both our Retail and
Ecommerce channels resultingin total
like-for-like growth of 4.9%.

Retail performance has been pleasing with
revenue increasing by 10.3%, including
like-for-like growth of 1.5% and an 8.8%
impact of 12 new stores opened during the
year, partially offset by the closure of three
smaller garden centre stores. Like-for-like
growth was driven by continued product
innovation including the expansion of

the new Electricalsranges and focus on
delivering outstanding customer service.

Ecommerce revenue grew by 12.3%,
including a 2.0% point benefit from

the relaunch of a small, curated range

on Amazon UK, and encouraging sales
performance through our own website,
whichincreased by +10.3% year onyear.
Performance on our own website was
much improved following the disruption
inthe prioryear fromthe transitionto a
new platform, supported by significant
improvements in social media marketing
capability andimproved basket-building
supportingincreased average order values
yearonyear.

Gross margins were slightly ahead year
onyearat 65.8% (FY24:65.7%) as we
absorbed heightened shipping costs as
aresult of the Middle East conflicts and
delivered an encouraging Q4 rate of 66.8%
(Q4 FY24:64.5%). Underlying EBITDA
improved by 31% to £8.9m (FY24: £6.8m)
while underlying operating profitincreased
by 51% to £3.4m. Underlying profit before
tax, which was impacted by adverse non-
cashimpacts of recent FX volatility, was up
51%to £1.5m.

The Group ended the financial year with net
cashof £1.0m (FY24: net debt of £0.7m)
reflecting free cash flow generation of
£1.7m after £4.1m of investment capital
expenditure primarily in new stores (FY24:
£2.0m, after £1.9m of capital expenditure)
and with available liquidity at the yearend
of £17.0m.

We have made excellent progress over
thelast yearin executing the early phases
of the strategy we set out last year. Our
plan will deliver sustainable and profitable
growth for all of our stakeholders and we
are making good headway towards our
targets of 100 retail storesinthe UK, £100m
revenue, and 10% operating profit margin
over the medium term.

We have taken the first steps to expand
our store network, opening 12 new
storesin prominent retail destinations
throughout the UK. After closing three
smaller and less profitable garden centre
stores, we operated 66 stores at the end
of the financial year. The new stores are
enabling more customers to shop with us,
providing us with access to over 150 million
customervisits to the centres eachyearin
catchments which we did not previously
serve. Early performance has been
encouraging and | am confident that these
stores willbecome strong and profitable
additions to our estate as they mature,

while also serving to raise brand awareness.

During the year we have developed anew
store format which we expect to trialin
the yearahead, to enhance the shopping
experience for customers, adding more
inspiration and warmth, combined with
cleanervisual merchandising.

High-quality and great-value products
are critical to our proposition and we have
continued to strengthen our product
offer expanding our new electricalsrange,
improving seasonalrange relevance, and
enhancing our promotional campaigns
atkey pointsinthe year, including Black
Friday and the New Year Sale. We are
improving commercial disciplines across
pricing, intake management, and supplier
engagement, while also accelerating our
range development activities.

We are proud of our excellent-rated
Trustpilot score, and we have arelentless
drive to deliver a best-in-class
omnichannel customer service. Our
teams now monitor customer feedback
inrealtime, using data to formulate and
implementimprovements to our online and
in-store experiences. We have introduced
omnichannel gift cards, added new
payment options, and launched build-
your-own set capabilities in-store and
online, allowing customers to personalise
theirpurchases.

Through the year, we have made
significantheadway in developing our
brand personality, tone of voice and
creative styling to grow brand awareness
and customer engagement across all
touchpoints. Ourmore inspirational and
lifestyle-centred marketing campaigns
are resonating well with customers.

We have made good progress with our
planned development of social marketing
capabilitiesin the year and this has
supportedimproved marketing efficiency
and new customer acquisition.

Ourdecisiontorelaunch a curatedrange
onAmazon UK, is enabling more customers
to discoverus for the first time, while also
providing a convenient next-day service for
those who choose to shop this way.

Our supply chain transformation
programme is a multi-yearinitiative, and
our early progress has been strong with
anumber of key initiatives implemented
through the year, including warehouse
operations pick and pack efficiencies,
transitioning to a new delivery partner
withroll cage-based deliveries forthe
South-Eastregion, introducing reverse
logistics capabilities and increased delivery
frequency to improve on-shelf availability
while reducing store inventory levels. We
have formulated a plan and roadmap

to develop the operating capacity and
efficiency required to support our medium-
term growth ambition and beyond.

During the year, our technology team

have worked on multiple enhancements
to operating systems and website
technologies to improve both customer
experience and operating efficiency.

We have a clear programme of work to
progress over the next three years to ensure
we haveresilient and scalable technology
solutions, which support business growth
whilst maintaining technical flexibility and
cost-effectiveness.

| am pleased with the progress made

this year as we create a great place

to work. Our colleague engagement
scoreincreased torecordlevels and

we were ranked 61stinthe UK’s Best
Workplaces™ list for Large companies.
We have completed our first leadership
development programme with our “heads
of” group and are in the process of rolling
this out across manager-levelroles. We
have developed our new approachto
deliverretail training excellence, including
the recruitment of our first learning and
developmentregional trainers to facilitate
thisinthe years ahead.

We have had a solid start to the new
financial year with total revenue during the
first quarter of FY26increasing by 13.7%
yearonyear, building on the momentum we
have established.

We delivered total like for like sales growth
of 2.0%, marking the sixth consecutive
quarter of growth, with Retailup 0.3% on a
LFL basis (impacted by lower footfall due to
the warm weather) and Ecommerce LFL up
4.9% yearonyear.

During the quarter, we opened three new
stores, and closed one, increasing the size
of ourretail estate to 68 stores and resulting
intotal Retail revenue growth of 16.9%.
Including the impact of the Amazon channel
relaunch, total Ecommerce revenue
increased by 8.2%.

While we are mindful of the uncertain
geopolitical backdrop, ourmomentumis
underpinned by record active customers
and customer acquisition, and we are
confident we will continue to gain market
share with our unique specialist proposition
and that we will continue to realise the
benefits of the strategic progress we have
madeinthelastyear.

InFY26 we expect to deliver continued
revenue growth, primarily driven by
progress in digital marketing and
Ecommerce performance and the
annualisation benefit of new Retail stores
opened last year, coupled with the planned
opening of between five and ten net new
storesin the current year. We anticipate a
modestimprovement in gross margins, and
with our continued focus on cost discipline
across our business, we expect to mitigate
cost pressuresincluding the recent
NICincreases, allowing us to re-invest
responsibly to accelerate future profitable
growth.

Despite the continued macro-economic
and geo-political challenges, ourrefreshed
strategy and strengthened customer
focusis beginning to deliverimproved
performance and we have both the
opportunity and a clear planto accelerate
this further.

| am excited by the journey we are onand
we have a great teamin place to drive

the business forward in line with our clear
strategy. | would like to take the opportunity
to thank all our colleagues for their effort,
commitment and customer focus over the
last financial year.

CEO
24 June 2025



Business model

Through our direct-sourced
and direct to consumer
business model, we offer
high-quality products

at greatvalue to our

outstanding omnichannel
service. We're aresponsible
retailerwho believesin
being aforce forgood,
creating greatervalue for all
our stakeholders.

How we bring joy to everyday cooking

Award-winning quality

At every price point, we offer high-quality, thoughtfully
designed products, that are built to last

Our products are designed and sourced by ourin-house product teams,
curating ourrange with a focus on quality, functionality, durability,
sustainability and style, to ensure our customers enjoy using themin
everyday cooking formany years. We are obsessed with quality and
committed to working in a transparent and fair way with our suppliers to
improve manufacturing standards and promote responsible sourcing.

When you shop with us, you canrest assured that you are gettingan

exceptional product that has been carefully crafted to meet your every need.

5 star service

We’re proud to deliver outstanding service, both
in-store and online, making it easy to shop with us

With 68 retail stores spread throughout the UK, our expanding footprint
provides customers a convenient and inspirational shopping experience.
Ourknowledgeable and friendly colleagues offer best-in-class customer
service and help customers to trial products in store and select the right
products for their needs.

Our custom-built website is designed to be easy to use and inspirational,
with convenient home delivery and payment options for customers. We
merchandise products using high-quality imagery and video content
produced in ourin-house studio to inspire our customers.

A
responsible

customers, delivered with }
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our strategy for growth
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Unbeatable value

Ourown-brand products and direct sourcing model enables us to
offerlower prices for customers while maintaining strong margins

Working directly with manufacturers to design and source our products
allows us to offer unbeatable value for our customers, and make high quality
kitchenware accessible to all.

We target savings for our customers of atleast 30% against comparable
products from competitor brands. Additionally, we serve up great offers
and promotional ranges through the year to provide value to our loyal and
growing customerbase.

Aresponsible retailer

We’re a B Corp, committed to doing the right thing for our people,
our planet and our communities

As a certified Great Place to Work™ company, we are committed to treating our
colleagues well. We employ over 600 people across our stores, logistics and
central support functions. Our culture reflects our family heritage, and our teams
are agile, collaborative and passionate about delivering for our customers.

We care for our communities too, raising funds for Life’s a Beach and our
colleague-nominated charity of the year as well as supporting Young
Gloucestershire. With substantial progress already made in reducing ourimpact
on the environment, we have a clear target of achieving Net Zero by 2040.

Our Store Support Centre is home to our central support teams including our
logistics operations, and was designed and developed with sustainability in
mind, earning a BREEAM “Excellent” rating.

How we create value for all our stakeholders Certified

A force for good

As a B Corp we are committed to being a force for good for the
benefit of all of our stakeholders and to have a material positive
. ; 0 Corporation’
impact on society and the environment. ——

Customers

Our missionis to become the UK’s number one destination for kitchenware.

In order to achieve our strategic ambitions, we must attract new customers to
shop with us and grow engagement and loyalty within our existing customer
base. We constantly strive to improve our proposition for our customers to offer
even greater value, broader choice and an exceptional service experience every
time they shop with us.

a Customerscore of 81%

(Colleagues

We’re committed to creating an even better place to work for our people who
are key to the long-term development of our brand. Colleague engagement
and motivationis vital to us fulfilling our purpose, protecting our culture and
delivering on our strategy so we pay all colleagues at least the Real Living Wage,
and are committed to supporting their personal development and well-being.

% Which? Recommended Provider for the third consecutive year, with

se=  \We're a Great Place to Work™, o Real Living Wage
according to our colleagues, Foundation
certified fouryears running member since 2021

Suppliers

We believe in treating everyone fairly, including our suppliers. This has allowed
us to build enduring supplier relationships, some for over 20 years, which
ensures that we are always working towards a common goal. We work together
with our suppliers to bring new products to market, driving up their production
volume, while encouraging and supporting their sustainability programmes.

Working with Sedex and our suppliers to promote more sustainable
Sedex : :
manufacturing practices

Communities

We are committed to caring for our communities and planet and being a force
for good in our communities. The positive impact we create reinforces ProCook
asagreat place to work and a great place to shop.

Partnering with Life’'s a Raised £21,000 for Foodcycle,
Beach since 2019 our colleague-nominated charity
of the year for FY25

Shareholders

We recognise that the trust of our shareholders, through their ongoing
engagement, ensures continued support and investment, in turn, supporting
ProCook’s continued growth and development. This year, we've worked to
improve direct communication and engagement with retail investors to ensure
that everyone has the chance to learn about our Group.

Using IMC for equitable communication with allinvestor groups
from FY24 results onwards



Engaging with Stakeholders

Section172(1) Statement

Our decisions and actions can have significantimpacts on
our stakeholders, and in delivering our strategy and fulfilling
our purpose, we are guided by our values to always do the
right thing. We are committed to regular, open and effective
engagement with our stakeholders and recognise that thisis
essential to ensure that the impacts of important decisions
we make are appropriately considered.

The Directors confirm that they have, during the year, acted
inaway that they consider, in good faith, to be most likely

to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of

its members and stakeholders as awhole, and, in doing so,
have had regard to the matters set outin s172(1) (a) to (f) of the
Companies Act 2006.

Furtherinformation on how the Directors have fulfilled their
s172(1) duties, as well as examples of decision-making is set
outinthe Governance Report.

Read more: Board activities
pages 76 to 79

Read more: S.172 statement
pages 80 to 81
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What matters most

e Product quality, design, choice, and value for money
¢ Ease of shopping experience across all touchpoints
¢ Inspiration and advice

o Sustainability

How we engaged

We embedded Net Promoter Score in our stores and on our
website as a key performance indicator forinternal reporting,
reviewing customer feedback weekly to resolve friction points
and ensure we are a great place to shop

We expanded our product range into more areas of the home,
including coffee machines, giving customers even more ways to
enjoy our award-winning quality and great value

We have built engagement on our organic social media
channels over the last 12 months, with expert advice and how-to
guides, and expanded recipe content on our website to inspire
and educate our customers

Priorities for the year ahead

Adding more touchpoints to our NPS focus including Customer
Service and post-delivery, to ensure we understand all

points of the customer journey. Ensure action, based on
customer feedback, is taken promptly through the Customer
Focus Group

Continue to run customer listening groups to ensure we hear
and learn from our customers’ experiences. Embed customer
feedback and focus into our commercial, marketing and
operational activities

@\ Read more: Strategy forgrowth on pages12to 13

o Ourculture andvalues

Well-being
o Community and the environment

e Regularcommunication on objectives, performance,
and strategy

Personal development and fair reward

Weekly SSC and retail all-hands meetings were led by the
Leadership Team, allowing us to improve communication and
alignment, celebrate success, and share important messages

Weincluded all SSC colleagues in our half-yearly managers’
conferences, ensuring all were aligned on ourrefreshed strategy
and building relationships between different parts of the business

We set all colleagues annual OKRs (Objectives and Key Results),
ensuring they understand the role they play in delivering our
strategy with regular reviews of personal performance

We are committed to listening to our colleagues’ feedback
through engagement surveys. This year, we were recognised as
a Great Place to Work™ for the fourth year running

We improved benefits for colleagues, including enhancing
maternity and paternity pay, sick pay, and launching a salary
sacrifice electric vehicle scheme

Our Colleague Advisory Panel meets quarterly to discuss
themes which areimportant to colleagues, with reps from
across the business. Suggestions are presented to the
Leadership Team, who take responsibility forimplementation

Continue to focus onimproving colleague health and well-being
through enhanced policies and supportive resources

Embedregional trainerroles to support learning and
developmentinretail and ensure great onboarding procedures
fornew colleagues

E]\ Read more: Sustainability, Our People on pages 25 to 29

Read more: Leadership Programme investment
onpagel19

Suppliers

What matters most

o Long-term partnerships

o Fairtermsand conditions

o Transparency ininteractions

o Growth opportunity

How we engaged

o Wehosted ourtop 5 suppliers at our Store Support Centre,
showcasing our operations and demonstrating how our strong
relationships with them contribute to ourjoint success

+ We continued to engage with our product suppliers on the
topic of sustainability, gatheringimportant knowledge of
current manufacturing processes and planned environmental
initiatives. Engaging with suppliers on thisis allowing us to
strengthen partnerships and tackle the issues of climate
change and sustainability

o Duringthe year, weincreased the number of factory visits
undertaken by our product and Quality Assurance teams, and
attended the leading trade fairs to strengthenrelationships with
existing suppliers and to meet potential new suppliers

o Ourproduct teamsinteract with suppliers through the year,
working on new design concepts and range development,
through to intake management and planning. We are open,
honest, and fairin our approach, and work together to solve
challenges that arise

o Ourmembership of Sedexallows us to work with suppliers to
promote and improve ethical and environmental standards. AsaB
Corp certified business, we continue to set rigorous expectations
with our suppliers and work with them to develop plans where
needed to ensure we act togetherasresponsible partners

Priorities for the year ahead

o Having further strengthened our Commercial teamin the year,
we will continue to build on our strong supplier relationships to
deliver growth

Read more: Accelerate profitable sales growth
Onhnpagesl14to15

E]\ Read more: Sustainability, Our Product on pages 34 to 35
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Engaging with Stakeholders

Continued

What matters most
o Employment opportunities

o Giving backto the community

e Reducing our environmental footprint

How we engaged

o We have supported Life’s a Beach, a charity whichis funded
primarily via the sales of the Life’s a Beach product range by
ProCook and proceeds from carrier bag sales. This year, it
furtheraccelerateditsimpact, carrying out 32 events with
over 1,000 volunteers collecting 1.9 tonnes of waste from sites
across the UK. ProCook colleagues participated in 8 clean-up
events, removing 75 bags of waste weighing 175kgs, over 320
volunteer hours

o We haveincreased our charitable fundraising activities
launching a colleague-nominated charity of the year, raising
£21,000 for FoodCycle through colleague-led initiatives and
point of sale ‘round-up’ donations from customers

¢ \We have continued to provide support to our local communities
for early years careers, providing more work experience,
placements, and graduate opportunities in conjunction
with Young Gloucestershire. We have also offered T-Level
placements, and work experience to college students

¢ Increased the number of Good Causes Days, where colleagues
can have a paid day to undertake charitable work, to two per
year to encourage greater support for charitable causes

Priorities for the year ahead

e Progress with fundraising activities for our FY26
colleague-nominated charity of the year, Magic Breakfast

o Raise the profile of our Good Causes Days amongst colleagues
to encourage greater participation

E]\ Read more: Sustainability, Our People on pages 25 to 29

E]\ Read more: Life’s a Beach case study on page 33

What matters most

o Strategy development and execution

o Value creationandreturn oninvestment
e Strong governance and sustainability

How we engaged

« We transitioned to physical/virtual Annual Results and AGM
formats allowing more shareholders and potential shareholders
to attend the events and to improve two-way dialogue,
including Q&As with retail investors

o The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) provides the Board’s
primary opportunity to interact with shareholders. At the AGM
last year, approximately 74% of shareholders votes were
received for the resolutions tabled and were represented at
the meeting

o We accelerated our growth strategy and trading performance
inline with our medium-term plan, to deliver profitable and
sustainable growth for shareholders

o Ourwebsite www.procookgroup.co.uk provides information
and latest news updates for our investor community, including
video recordings of ourresults presentations

Priorities for the year ahead

o Continue toimprove awareness of ProCook amongst the retail
investor community through greater direct engagement and
financial PR

E]\ Read more: Board activities on pages 76 to 79

E]\ Read more: S.172 statement on pages 80 to 81
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Strategy for growth

Ourrefreshed strategy for growth, which we set out last year, provides
clarity and focus on the stepsrequired to accelerate the achievement of
our mission of becoming the UK’s number one kitchenware destination,
and delivering sustainable value growth for all of our stakeholders.

Our strategic
initiatives

Supply chain =

transformation

Resilient ~
and scalable
technology

solutions

ProCook’

Becoming the UK’s
No.1 kitchenware
destination

Operate with
cost discipline

Caring for our
communities

Develop our
people

Building a high-
performance
culture

Reducing our
environmental
footprint

Leverage our existing business model to capture market
share and drive profitable growth

Enable more customers to shop in our stores throughout
the UK, with disciplined payback criteria as we accelerate
towards 100 profitable stores

Create more reasons to shop with us with extended
ranges and improved seasonal and promotional product,
broadening our appeal and inspiring more customers

Always put the customer first to drive improved service and
aseamless experience in-store and online

Help more new customers discover ProCook and
encourage more existing customers to shop with us again

wid)

B Create agreatplace to work

Develop our people and culture to accelerate performance

Develop our people
Customer service, product knowledge and leadership
training to deliver our growth ambition

Building a high-performance culture

Adapt our culture to move with more pace and urgency,
delivering togetheras one team

n Improve operating efficiency

Build on our strong foundations to ensure we stay
lean and agile, with strong cost discipline as we grow
salesvolumes

-kll

Supply chain transformation

Make our operations more efficient to deliver better service
and availability for customers at lower cost

Resilient and scalable technology solutions
Trusted technology whichis easier for customers and
colleaguestouse

Operate with cost discipline

Continuously identify and implement costimprovements
and efficiencies

n Be aforce forgood

As aresponsible retailer we are committed to doing
theright thing

Reducing our environmental footprint

Deliver on our commitment of Net Zero by 2040 to
help protect our planet

Caring for our communities
Support the local communities in which we operate,
forthe good of society as awhole
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Accelerate profitable sales growth

Increasing our customer base and driving profitable sales growthis our primary strategic
objective, scaling our existing business model to better leverage our fixed cost base and
improve operating profit margins.

Expand our store network

Overthe last year, we have made strong
progress, opening 12 new stores in popular
retail destinations, improving our UK retail
coverage. Ourmedium-term target of
100 retail storesinthe UKis based on
acomprehensive data-driven study,

which we completedin FY24. This study
highlighted that the existing 57 ProCook
stores at the time, served just 36.5%

of UK population catchments and had
limited presence in key shopping centres
throughout the UK, including many large
cities with high retail densities. Additionally,
ourretail mix of 63% of total revenue
remains lower than the UK market' average
of 72%).

With 66 stores open and trading at the
FY25year-end, there remains a significant
opportunity to grow our market share

and deliver profitable sales growth from
new stores themselves, combined with
the online halo effect benefit, while also
building brand awareness across the
country. We will seek to open an average
of five to ten new stores each yearas we
expand our network.

Alongside this expansion work, we have
completed are-design of our store format,
adding more inspiration, and improved
quality perception, while also enhancing
self-service merchandising for our
customers. We expect to launch our first
new format store during Q2 FY26.

1 GfKKitchenware market data

12

New UK retail stores
openedinFY25

2Y

Anticipated payback
period for FY25
cohort of openings

Opening new stores s an efficient and
cost-effective activity, which we have
improved over many years, enabling us to
open anew store, typically, within four to
sixweeks of access with an average capital
investment of £300k per new store.

We monitor post-opening performance
against ourrobust investment criteria and
hurdle rates (Contribution and operating
profitmargins, Payback and Net Present
Value) foreach new store.

We will continue to apply discipline to
reviewing the existing retail stores, and
where performance does not meet our
criteria, we will take appropriate action to
make improvements or, where necessary,
to close an existing store. During FY25,
we closed three smaller garden centre
stores, where performance did not meet
our criteria.

Strengthen our product offer

The UK kitchenware market is worth
approximately £4bn each year, with our
share increasing year onyear by 8%,
however remaining at approximately 2%
of the total market size. The UK market
forsmall kitchen electricals is worth
approximately £1bn. The largest category
segment of the combined market is
tableware, which we began expanding
into during 2018, and see opportunity
to continue our expansion thoughrange
improvements and extensions.

Inthe last two years, we launched small
kitchen electricals with phases three
(including bread makers, pizza ovens
andice cream machines) and four
(coffee machines)launchingin FY25.
Sales performance of this new category
is encouraging and we anticipate it will
continue to grow as more customers
become aware of our extended offer.

We believe there is significant opportunity
to grow market share in existing categories
in which we under-index compared to the
market, and we will continue to refresh
andimprove our product offer, and where
appropriate, offer online extended ranges
for categories such as tableware, baking
and textiles, creating more reasons for
customers to shop with us.

H Potential location

M Existing location

Ouranalysis of market data highlights
that there is opportunity to grow our
market share through increased seasonal
relevance outside of our peak trading
period. We have begun to add more
seasonal products and campaigns at
different pointsin the yearincluding
Autumn 2024, Spring and Easter 2025,
addinginspiration and freshness to our
offer. We planto continue to build on this,
creating more marketing opportunities
and reasons for customers to browse our
ranges.

We have continued to develop our trading
plan and product mix to maximise demand-
capture at peak periods by adding further
promotional mechanics and inspiration
which resonated well with customers during
Black Friday 2024 and January Sale 2025.
We see further opportunity to develop

our special buy promotional programme,
providing limited editionranges and great
value deals for customers to shop outside
of the core range during key trading
periodsintheyear.

Our strong supplier relationships support
our direct-sourcing model, and this last
year we have made good progress to
strengthenrelationships further with key
suppliers. We have takeninitial steps to
consolidate more sourcing activity with our
top suppliers, who manufacture products
to our design specifications, many of
whom we’ve worked with for many years.
We will continue to develop these trusted
relationships toimprove productinnovation
and supply chain efficiency.

1.6%

Estimated share of UK
kitchenware and small kitchen
electricals combined market!

1 Euromonitor market data and management
estimates

Case Study

FY25 new store openings

We successfully opened twelve new stores in the last year, with
nine opened before our peak trading period, and a further three
openedinthe final quarter of the year, adding over 34,000
square foot of new retail selling space.

Locatedin popular retail destinations, including both shopping centres and
prominent high street locations, the location visitor numbers are in excess of

150 million per annum, providing a significant brand awareness building opportunity
and over two million additional new customer footfall into our retail network each
year. Ourinitial read on the online halo effect of the new stores is positive, with
customers within a ten mile radius of a new store opening spending more online too,
adding an extra 7% of the store’s retail sales to our Ecommerce channel revenue.

Early indications of the FY25 new stores performance are that together they will
add approximately £10m of retail revenue when fully mature, which we expect to be
within two to three years from opening. With a total capital investment of £3.8m, we
anticipate they will achieve an average payback of two years.
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Accelerate profitable sales growth continues

Deliver best-in-class omnichannel customer service
Putting the customerfirst to drive improved service and a seamless experience across in-store and online

Ourretail service is a key point of difference
compared to otherretailersin our sector.
As a kitchenware specialist and own-brand
retailer, we have the opportunity to assist
and delight customers in-store, helping
them choose the right products forthem,
and understanding how best to use themin
theirhomes.

After making good progress with
colleague schedulingin the last year, we
are now ensuring that the right number

of colleagues arein each store at the
right time of the day to maximise service
levels as visitors numbers change through
the day. Ouruse of customer surveys at
checkout to collect Net Promoter Score
(“NPS”) feedback is now well-embedded
and helps usidentify and focus on areas
where we canimprove.

We have appointed two new regional
training roles to support our retail teams
with training and development, to ensure
that all store colleaguesreceive sales
training and become expertsin all of our
products, accompanied by additional store
manager training.

Consumer trends

Cost of living

Continued economic uncertainty and
cost of living pressures have impacted
consumer spending, and luxury spending
has given way to amore value-focused
approach. Customers are taking amore
cautious approach, with more careful
research, both online andin-store, and
consideration before committing to
purchasing.

Customers who may have planned to
upgrade theirkitchens may delay such
aspirations as aresult of the current
squeeze on household finances. While
thisis often a trigger for customers to
revisit theirkitchenware, the opposite
also holds true as customers can treat
themselves to smaller kitchenware items
in their existing kitchen set-up to improve
their cooking experience.

Sustainability

Consumer awareness and focus on
sustainability continues to increase
and as consumers seek to reduce their

Inthe year ahead, we expect to make
further progressinourservice levelsin
stores helping to improve conversion and
average spend as our new Retail Director
brings refreshed energy and focus to our
store teams and builds a high-performance
culture that more effectively recognises,
celebrates andrewards success.

With most customers now researching
and shopping across channels, we must
continue ourwork to create an even
more seamless omnichannel experience.
Ourwebsite platform attracts over 10m
customer visits peryear, andis used by
customers to not only make a purchase,
but also to research products, compare
pricing, and find recipes and “how to use’
and product care guides.

Using NPS measured on checkout, we
are acting on feedback from customers’
actual experience online to inform our
development priorities. Inthe last year,
we have added further payment options,
improved the website navigation, added

carbonfootprint, sustainable homewares
are likely to be preferred by some
customer segments. Those who are more
eco-conscious, may prioritise quality
over quantity, seeking durable items that
are built to last. Responsible sourcing
and productionis likely tobecome a
bigger factorinfluencing purchasing
decisions. More affluent consumers,

who have the financial capability to make
more sustainable choices, are more

likely to opt for sustainable products that
blend style, functionality, longevity and
environmental responsibility.

Shopping as a social activity
Post-pandemic, the shift back to

retail stores has been pronounced,

with Ecommerce volumes returning

to pre-Covid trendlines. Consumers
have noticeably returned toin-person
shopping experiences, especially for
homewares stores. One driver of this
changeis the social aspect of shopping
forhomewares, which provides
customers the ability to touch and feel,
and seek advice on their purchases. The

more seasonalinspiration, launched e-gift
cards (foruse in store too) and improved
basket tokenisation to assist returning
customers.

We will continually identify and deploy
improvements and innovations for
customers throughout the year ahead, as
there is much we canstilldo to enhance
the user experience for customers through
technical developments, inspiration and
visual merchandising, and removing points
of frictionin the purchase and delivery
journey.

4.8

Trustpilot excellent-rated score
with over135,000 5-star reviews

quality of the in-store experience and
inspiration this providesiis, therefore,
becomingincreasingly important.

Trend-driven products

As consumersincreasingly place more
value on experiences, they are also
choosing high-quality, durable and
easy-to-use cookware to elevate their
cooking experience both for day-to-day
cooking and special events. Consumers
areincreasingly drawn to trend-led
products thatreflect their style choices
and kitchenware, especially dinnerware,
is beingincreasingly fashionand
design-led.

Giventhe space constraintsin many

UK homes, customers are increasingly
interested in space-saving kitchenware
items that can be stacked ornested
within each other to save space

in the kitchen cupboards, without
compromising on quality. Stackable
pan sets, storage solutions and kitchen
electricals with multi-functionality are
becomingincreasingly popular.

Grow brand awareness and customer engagement

55% of adults shop kitchenware once every
sixmonths, with 8% shopping frequently at
least once every three months'. Maintaining
front-of-mind awareness within the higher
frequency groupsis, therefore, very
important, even when customers are not
actively inmarket.

During the last year, we have made good
progress inraising awareness through

the opening of 12 new stores, each with
bespoke local marketing campaigns.
Ourincreased prominence on social
marketing channels led to growthinwebsite
traffic, which originated from paid social
advertising, of over130% year onyear.
Ourimproved use of social marketing,
alongside arobust audit andimprovement
plan completed for other paid marketing
activities, and our new attribution approach,
has supported improved marketing
efficiency, reducing our cost peracquisition
significantly for the second half of the year.

Ourmarketing content design capabilities
have been strengthened and ourbrand
tone of voice and personality is now more
prominentinmessaging bothin store, online

1,130k

L12M active customers,
+8% yearonyear

and through other media channels, and this

is resonating well with customers. We have
launched anew rolling cycle of surveys, which
are helping us measure and understand
customerand brand health metrics, and,

over time, this will provide comparatives to
determine the level of progress made.

Lastyear, ourL12M active customer base
increased by 8% to arecord 1.13 million and
we attracted arecord 737k new customers
to shop withusinthelastyear (+7% yearon
year). However, we believe there remains a
significant opportunity forus to continue
to grow awareness in the years ahead.
Following the progress made in FY25in
paid social marketing and ourimproved
understanding of marketing attribution, we
willbe further strengthening our content
creation capabilities, to provide more
inspirational and better-converting content
to more existing and potential customers.

1 YouGov Survey 4,321 participants
(January 2024)

>130%

Increase in social marketing-
initiated website traffic year
onyear

With alarger active customer base, and
greater ability to attract new customers,
we also have the opportunity to encourage
existing customers to shop with us again
and this presents a significant prize. With
relatively low repeat purchaserates, in
bothweb andretail channels, we have the
opportunity to treat our high-frequency
and highest spending customers
differently and furtherimprove our loyalty
and advocacy capabilities.

Inthelast 12 months, we have grown our
organic social channel followers by 29%
across Meta and TikTok, in particular,
increasingreach by over150% yearonyear,
and we planto build on thisinthe year ahead.
Ouremail database continues to grow and
isarichasset forusto betterutilise. Our
team has made good progressin better
segmenting our customers, running tests
to determine propensity to purchase and
understanding which products or discounts
resonate best. Looking ahead, improving
personalisation and targeting across
different marketing channels, includingin
stores, will help us furtherimprove repeat
rates andlifetime value.

29%

Increase in followers
on ProCook social media
channelsinFY25




El Improve operating efficiency
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Combining profitable sales growth with a continued focus on delivering cost efficiencies

will furtherimprove operating margins over the medium term

building a better business for all stakeholders.

Supply chain
transformation

We have made good progress against

the planned supply chain transformation
scope, whichwe set out last year,
introducing a new delivery provider with
reverse logistics capability, transitioning to
cage-based deliveries to stores, launching
hand-held terminals in store forimproved
stock management and stock file accuracy
and testingincreased delivery frequency to
reduce stock coverin stores.

This multi-year programme will continue
with further work in FY26 to review and
testamended on-shelf display quantities
and merchandising to optimise availability
and support self-service for customers,
as well as progressing a review of product
pack-sizes, weights and dimensions to
optimise containerfilland warehouse pick
efficiency. We are also planning ahead for
greatervolume throughput and capacity
in our warehouse, ensuring that demand
can be fulfilled in the most efficient manner
possible.

14%

Increase in Ecommerce orders
packed perhourin FY25

Resilient and scalable
tech solutions

During FY25, our technology team have
completed a series of important initiatives
toimprove functionality for customers
and colleagues. Key programmes of work
have included the website and warehouse
management systemimprovements,
implementing new hand-held terminals for
retail store colleagues forimproved stock
management and customer availability,
integrating anew marketing attribution
tooland anew A/B website testing tool,
launching e-gift cards, and preparing the
integrations for the relaunch on Amazon
Marketplace during the early part of

the year. Continued focus on security
andresilience hasresultedin further
improvements delivered during the year.

Additionally our technology roadmap

has beenrevisited, setting out the steps
we will take to upgrade elements of our
architecture, carving out functionality
where appropriate from current systems to
more modern technology solutions, which
will supportimproved flexibility and user
experience.

Inthe next 12 months, development effort
willlargely focus on website initiatives to
improve customer experience, customer
service improvements in store and for our
contact centre team, and the technical
developmentsrequired to prepare forthe
planned architecture changes over the
years ahead.

.We are committed to

Operate with cost
discipline

During FY25, we continued with our
programme of costimprovements with
aseries of initiatives, including helping to
improve marketing efficiency with new
bot-reductiontechnology, improved
our home delivery carrierrates through
negotiations with suppliers, and worked
with third-party procurement consultants
toreview our cost base and contracts.

As we continue to focus onimproving
operating margin, continual focus in this
areaisrequired, and, inthe year ahead,
we anticipate being able to make further
improvements, including reducing home
delivery packaging costs through box
optimisation, and generatingincome
fromimproved waste management and
productreturns.

>99.9%

Total system availability for
colleagues and customers

Bl Createa great place towork

We are committed to making ProCook an even better place to work, raising colleague
engagement, and improving customer experience as aresult. Adapting our culture to
be more performance-focused, will ensure that we operate with pace and agility to
execute our strategy.

Always do the right thing
Obsessed with quality

Focused on value

Create agreat
place to work

Care for our community
and planet

Build a better business

30

Colleagues trained to
date on our leadership
development programme

Developing our teams and our
leadership capabilities

With our new regional trainers appointed,
our focus this year willbe onrolling out
more training and development across
ourretail teams. Thisis being supported
by leadership training for our retail store
managers, who will all attend a condensed
version of our leadership development
programme during the first half of the
year. The fullleadership development
programme will continue to run for
managers and aspiring leaders in our
business having now trained 32 colleagues
sofar.

Ourapproach to talent management

and succession planninginretail is being
improved, and will be an area of focus
inthe yearahead, ensuring that we can
provide meaningful career development
opportunities for colleagues who have
the aspirations to progressin theirroles
as our business grows, and ensuring there
is strong leadership available at all times
across our expanding store network.

Building a high-performance
culture

With robust annual personal objective
setting and appraisal review processes
established, including the linking of
personal reward to performance, which
is assessed against strategic Objectives
and Key Results (“OKRs”), which have
been flowed through each functioninthe
business, we will continue to raise the bar
around high performance. We anticipate
that the enhanced bonus schemes planned
forthe year ahead willincentivise further
improvements.

The new Leadership Team meeting
cadence and management information
supports thorough review of both trading
performance and strategy execution and,
through our weekly huddles and monthly
town halls, we will continue to communicate
with all colleagues, ensuring we are
collectively working together to execute
ourstrategy.



B Be aforce for good

As aresponsibleretailerand a B Corp, we aim to be a force forgoodin our
sector and for our communities, while reducing ourimpact on the environment.

83%

Reductionin Scope 1and 2 Emissions Intensity
(Tonnes of CO, per£lmrevenue) between FY19to FY25

773

thelastyear
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hours volunteered to good causes by our colleaguesin

Reducing our environmental
footprint

We are committed to delivering on our
planto achieve Net Zero by 2040 to help
protectourplanetand, inrecent years, we
have made substantial progressinreducing
Scope l1and 2 emissions and mitigating

the remainder through our partnerships
with the Woodland Trust and Ecologi. Our
energy use hasreduced by 51% since FY19,
while our revenue grew by 150% during

the same period. We continue to focus on
reducing emissions furtherand, in FY25, we
completed the transition to 100% usage of
green energy across our business.

Tackling emissionsin Scope 3 areasis more
challenging, as much of thisis not directly

in our control; however, we are progressing
eightinitial priority actions in conjunction
with our suppliers that will support progress
inthe years ahead.

Caring for our communities

We are committed to creating
meaningful employment opportunities
inthe communities we operate inand
expand ourreach through greater

store presence, creating more job
opportunities across the UK. We remain
committed to paying at least the Real
Living Wage and we have continued to
enhance our total reward package for
colleaguesinthelastyear.

Oursupport for FoodCycle last year, as
our colleague-nominated charity, raised
over £21,000 for the important work they
do toreduce food poverty, loneliness
and food waste. Togetherwith our
ongoing support for Life’s aBeach and
Young Gloucestershire, we raised over
£70,000 (a75% increase from FY24)

and provided 773 hours of colleague
volunteering time through our Good
Causes Day, which we offerall colleagues
the opportunity to participatein.

Policies

Data quality

A
il

Environmental
management system
(“ EMS ”)

ﬂ n Engage suppliers

F.Z] More efficient
property

Engagement
and education

Reduce andrecycle
packaging

Inthe yearahead, we will begin to work
with Magic Breakfast, our FY26 colleague
nominated charity by raising funds

and supporting their activities with our
colleague volunteering. Magic Breakfast
supportover 300,000 childrenand
young people everyday, tackling hunger
in schools to make sure no child oryoung
personis too hungry to learn.

We will also continue with the provision
of work experience opportunities

and CV andinterview preparation
workshops led by our colleagues, for
those in our communities with barriers to
employment, and for students seeking to
develop theiremployability skills.
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Case Study: Our B Corp journey

1 Becoming a B Corpisnotjust about
certification, itis about an ongoing
commitment to doing business better,
andinspiring others to join usin making
positive changes”

Since becoming a certified B Corp in September 2022, we have

been committed to driving positive change and embedding
sustainability and responsible business practicesinto everything
we do. Certification was just the beginning of our journey and over
the past two years, we have taken meaningful steps to enhance
our social and environmental impact. As the first FTSE retailer and
among the first 1,000 UK businesses to achieve certification, we

Our progress and impact

Continuous improvement is at the heart of our
approach, using the Blmpact Assessment to
guide our progress in five key areas: governance,
workers, community, environment, and
customers. Oninitial certification, we achieved
80 points, and through targeted initiatives, we
have increased our score reflecting our ongoing
effortsinfostering aninclusive workplace
culture, deepening community engagement,
and advancing environmental responsibility.

As we prepare forrecertificationin September
2025, we remain focused on driving further
improvements.

Creating a thriving workplace

Inthe past year, we have launched our second
colleague network group, focused on Health
and Well-being, building on the success of our
LGBTQ+ and Allies group. These networks have
helped shape well-being initiatives and foster
amore inclusive culture. We marked National
Inclusion Week with external speakers and
workshops on key topics such as disability,

men’s health, menopause, and neurodivergence.

Ourinternal engagement efforts have
strengthened, with regular colleague surveys
and our Colleague Advisory Panelidentifying
key focus areas forimprovement, which we have
since addressed, such as shift work patterns

and parental leave policies. Communication has
also improved, with weekly huddles and periodic
business updates where our Leadership address
anonymous questions, reinforcing transparency
and trust.

For the fourth consecutive year, we have been
certified as a Great Place to Work, with our Trust
Index scorerising to 78%. We also continue to
uphold our pledge to fair pay as an accredited
Living Wage Foundation employer.

Certified

_O
Corporation

aim to set a positive example for ourindustry and beyond.

Strengthening our community
and environmental commitment

Beyondworkplaceinitiatives, we have deepened
our community and charitable engagement.
We have supported colleague-nominated
charities, hosted career development sessions
with Young Gloucestershire, and participatedin
national fundraising efforts. Our commitment
to environmental stewardship remains strong
through our partnership with Life’s a Beach,
leading beach cleans, litter-picking events,
and school programs to raise awareness of
single-use plastic pollution.

We celebrated Pride Month by inviting
colleagues to share personal stories on what
Pride means to them, fostering a culture of
belonging. Additionally, we have strengthened
collaborations withlocal B Corps, hosting our
first B Local networking event at our Store
Support Centre and we were invited to speak
at the South Gloucestershire Business Show as
apanellist for B Corp, highlighting our holistic
approach to sustainability, knowledge-sharing
and reinforcing our shared mission of using
business as a force forgood.

Looking ahead: our future
commitments

As we continue our B Corp journey, we remain
dedicated to strengthening our sustainability
and people strategies while furtherincreasing
our B Corp score. We are focused on reducing
our environmental footprint across our
operations and supply chain, enhancing data
collection, and lowering emissions to drive
meaningful change.

Becoming a B Corpis not just about certification,
itis about an ongoing commitment to doing
business better. We are proud of our progress
and will continue to innovate, improve our
practices, and inspire others to join us in making
positive changes.

Read more: Our B Corp Impact Report
2024 is available at
www.procookgroup.co.uk




Sustainability
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Doing the
right thing

ProCook’

As a certified B Corp, we are committed to doing business
better. This year, we have continued to take actionto
positively impact our people and community, while
minimising our environmental footprint. With ambitious goals,
including acommitment to achieving net zero by 2040,

we are continuously evolving our approach and working
collaboratively with stakeholders to drive lasting change.

We recognise sustainability as a core
responsibility and are committed to making
meaningful progress eachyear, both
socially and environmentally. Doing the
right thing is one of our values and, this year,
we've continued to embed this valueinto all
that we do, including fostering aninclusive
and supportive workplace. We have made
strong progress, having achieved the Great
Place to Work™ certification for the fourth
year running, with 83% of our people saying
they are proud to work for ProCook.

We remain focused on reducing our
carbon emissions, refining our operations,
processes and strategies to further
progress towards our Net Zero target

of 2040.

Positively impacting our communitiesis
important to us, and we have continued to
strengthen our community relationships.
This year, we introduced our first Charity of
the Year, with colleagues voting to select
FoodCycle as the charity they wished

to support. We have continued to build
stronger links with Young Gloucestershire,
holding mock interview eventsin our
Store Support Centre for disadvantaged
local young people to help improve their
confidence, motivation and skills to
improve theirlives.

This year, we have placed a stronger
emphasis on diversity and inclusion,
achieving recognition as a Disability
Confident Leader, and hosting colleague
educational mornings to celebrate National
Inclusion Week.

Ourjourney towards a more sustainable
and ethical future remains a top priority as
we continue to grow, investing in the right
tools, strategies and technology we aim to
enhance our positive impact. This section
outlines ourkey achievements, challenges
and future priorities as we strive tobe a
more responsible retailer.

People, product and planet

As a certified B Corp, we are committed

to continually improving our sustainability
across all aspects of our business, in order
to reduce our environmental footprint, and
give confidence to our stakeholders that
we are doing the right thing.

Over the past year, we have taken
additional steps to furtherembed
sustainability into our core business
practices. Prioritising supply chain
management and deepening colleagues’
understanding of our ESG framework has
enabled us to improve operations and
create lasting value for all stakeholders.

We are improving both social and
environmental transparency and
accountability. Leveraging insights from
life cycle assessments of three core
products, we have taken steps toincrease
the level of recycled contentin our
cardboard packaging, ensuring durability
while reducing carbon emissions. Our
commercial team has spent valuable time
visiting suppliers and collaborating with
themto advance these initiatives.

We actively encourage our colleagues

to embrace more sustainable practices,
reinforcing theimportance of doingwhat’s
right forboth the community and the
planet. At ProCook, two of our core values,
‘always do the right thing’ and ‘care for
the community and planet’ are directly
aligned with our sustainability ambitions.
With the launch of our new People and
Welcome portalsin spring 2025, we

will further embed these valuesinto the
colleague journey from day one, promoting
betteralignment across our teams. This
approach will strengthen our commitment
to acting with integrity, reducing our
broader social and environmentalimpact,
and delivering long-term value for all
stakeholders.

Link to principal risks

Brand and customer
People and culture

Link to strategy
Create a great place to work

Be a force forgood

Key stakeholders
. Customers Colleagues
. Communities

Link to the United Nations
Sustainable Development
Goals
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Recent recognition,
awards, and memberships

e GreatPlace to Work Certified™
(December2024)

¢ Real Living Wage Employer
o Disability Confident Leader
o UK’s Best Workplaces™ 2024

At ProCook, we encourage an
open and honest culture, with a
focus on doing the right thing.

We know that fostering a workplace where
everyone feels valued and empowered

is crucial for our people and our business
to thrive. Ourroots as a family business
continue to shape our culture and values,
guiding us as we work towards a more
sustainable future.

We actively encourage colleagues to
share theirideas, concerns, and feedback
ina constructive way and, through
collaboration, we help to drive positive
outcomes. We recognise theimportance
of development and celebrate individual
and collective achievements; because
every contribution matters.

We are proud to be a Real Living Wage
employer and support colleaguesin giving
back throughinitiatives such as Good
Causes Days, which we have recently
increased to two fully-paid charity days
peryear per colleague. Our partnerships
with Life’s a Beach and FoodCycle have
been great for team building, fundraising

Our values

Always do the
right thing

Obsessed with quality

Focused on value

Create agreatplace
towork

Care for our community
and planet

2
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Build abetter business
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and boosting morale. This year, we were
pleased to have beenrecognisedas a
Disability Confident Leader, joining just 20
other UK retailers with this certification,
and we invested in further colleague
development opportunities, including a
six-month leadership training course for
the first cohorts of managers throughout
the business, following the launch of the
programme last year for our Heads of
departments.

Creating a workplace in which colleagues
can be themselves and feel supportedis
important to us and reflects our ongoing
commitment to colleague well-being

and development. Eachyear, weinvite

all colleagues to take partin the Great
Place to Work™ survey, which provides us
with valuable insights into our workplace
culture. We're thrilled to have been certified
as a Great Place to Work™ for the fourth
consecutive year. These insights help

us identify opportunities for growth and
improvement, ensuring we continue make
ourworkplace even betterforeveryone.
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96% 94%

People here are treated fairly People here are treated fairly
regardless of their sexual regardless of their gender
orientation

flat YoY +1YoY

ProCook’

94% 83%

People here are treated fairly I’'m proud to tell others

regardless of theirrace or Iwork here
ethnic origin
+1YoY +4YoY

Diversity, equality, and inclusion

We value the individuality of each colleague, recognising that
diverse backgrounds, skills, and experiences make us a stronger
team. Ouraimis to create a safe and welcoming workplacein
which all colleagues can succeed, and we actively embrace
different perspectives, cultures and experiences, knowing that
inclusivity drives innovation and collaboration. We want to ensure all
colleagues feelrespected, valued, and empowered to succeed.

Raising awareness and providing education are key to embedding
diversity, equity, and inclusioninto our culture. Through our
development training platform, we offer ongoing learning
opportunities that encourage open conversations, challenge
biases, and promote greater understanding. This year, we have
made positive steps towards greater inclusivity through a variety
of initiatives, including celebrating National Inclusion Week and

Colleagues split by gender, age, and ethnicity

Colleagues by gender FY24
Female 66.6% 65.9%
Male 32.5% 32.9%
Non-binary 0.3% 0.3%
Other/Prefernot to say 0.6% 0.9%
Board Directors - Female' 16.7% 16.7%
Board Directors - Male' 83.3% 83.3%
Leadership Team - Female! 57.1% 57.1%
Leadership Team - Male! 42.9% 42.9%

Colleagues by ethnicity?

FY25
FY24

84%

Nn%

1%
3%

1%

White Asian Black Mixed or multiple Other
ethnic groups

2 Ethnicity information collected from voluntary colleague surveys.

Source: GPTW survey December 2024

launching a second colleague network group focused on Health
and Well-being, encompassing mental health, neurodiversity and
disabilities. This year we have also beenrecognised as a Disability
Confident Leader.

Read more: Our Diversity, Equality and Inclusion Policy is
available at www.procookgroup.co.uk

Gender and ethnicity pay gap

We are committed to fairreward for all colleagues and achieving
gender pay equality across all levels and pay grades in line with the
legislation of the Equality Act 2010 requirement of “equal

pay forequal work”.

Read more: Our Gender Pay Gap Reportis available
at www.procookgroup.co.uk

Colleagues by age group FY24
Under18 4% 4%
18-24 30% 28%
25-34 22% 23%
35-44 15% 15%
45-54 15% 16%
55-64 1% 12%
65+ 3% 2%

1 FY25 presented as at year-end and is consistent as at the date of this
report, and FY24 presented as at 25 June 2024, the date of last year’s
report. Atthe FY24 year-end date, females represented 40% of the
Leadership Team and 0% of the Board Directors.

Colleagues by full time / part time roles

FY25

Full-time

Part-Time
55%
FY24

Full-time
45%
° Part-Time

Our Commitments

We are committed to
creatingagreatplace
to work, listening to
colleague feedback
to make continual
improvements

We are committed

to supporting the
communities in which
we operate

How we deliver on our commitments

¢ Bi-annualmanager conferences to educate, inspire
and engage colleagues on new product, business
developments and performance updates

o Clearactionplans and progress updates from colleague
engagement surveys

« Monthly colleague “Green Team” meetings to identify and
implement sustainable initiatives across the business,
participants act as ‘sustainability champions’

¢ Quarterly Colleague Advisory Panels to capture feedback
and opportunities forimprovement

o Weekly update huddles to communicate key messages,
celebrate successes and respond to colleague questions

¢ Annual colleague objective setting and appraisal processes
to support personal development

o Certified as a Great Place to Work™ for the fourth year
running with 17%pt improvement in participationrate
NEWinFY25

¢ Investmentinleadership development programme for
heads of departments and managers NEW in FY25

e Launcheda “Talkto Lee” virtual suggestions box for
colleagues to confidentially provide feedback andideas to
help make ProCook an even better place to work
NEWinFY25

« Monthly recognition of exceptional colleague contributions
NEWinFY25

¢ Learning and Development Manager hired to facilitate a
smooth onboarding process and facilitate provision of
colleague development programmes NEW in FY25

¢ Raise funds and awareness for our long-standing charity
partner Life’s a Beach through designated reusable product
range, education programme and national litter picking
events

o Contribute and donate products to local community
groups, charities, and schools

o Provide T-Level placements and work experience forlocal
college students to learn ‘on-the-job’ and vocational skills

o Support Young Gloucestershire with theirwork to help
develop disadvantaged young people onthe King’s Trust
programme

¢ Increased our company wide Good Causes Day initiative
from one to two days peryear to support charitable
activities, ontop of Life’s aBeach volunteering NEW in FY25

¢ Introduced the colleague-nominated charity of the year
initiative increasing fundraising and teambuilding through
various charitable activities NEWin FY25

« Awarded Disability Confident Leader status, the highest
level of the certification NEW in FY25

o Till point “round-up” charity donations introduced in store,
enabling customers to support our charity of the year
NEWIinFY25

What we are focused on next

¢ Continue tofocus onimproving colleague
health and well-being throughincreased
supported policies andresources

¢ Introduce a product trainerrole to support
learning and developmentinretail and
ensure great onboarding for rapidly
expanding new stores

Introduce HR newsletter covering new
policies, legislation changes, seasonal
activities and key awareness days

« Relaunchnew, easy-to-navigate HR
SharePoint with new and updated training
guides and polices

o New ProCookHR self-service portal
to aid efficiency, displaying company
announcements, organisational charts
and colleague well-being pulse survey

« Strengthen community links nationwide
and explore store-by-store charity
options to donate returned, lightly used
product

o Develop charity of the year partnership
enhancing fundraising targets and
colleague engagement
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Our Commitments

We wiill continue

to be aReal Living
Wage employer and
champion equality,
diversity, and
inclusion

We provide a safe
and collaborative
working environment

We take the
wellbeing

and personal
development of our
colleagues seriously

How we deliver on our commitments

Committed to the Living Wage Foundation as a Real Living
Wage employer

Target equal pay across genders and comparable role levels

Provision of Whistleblowing Policy and procedures ensuring
colleagues feel safe toreportissuesin confidence if
necessary

Linked total reward opportunity to personal performance to
incentivise personal development and progression

Diversity, Equality, and Inclusion Policy established and
recognised as an Inclusive Employer by Inclusivity Works,
for our flexibility and inclusive recruitment practices for
neurodiverse candidates

Launched colleague-led Health and Well-being network
group sponsored by the Leadership Team to promote well-
beinginitiatives across the business NEWin FY25

Overhauled retail uniform provision to better meet
colleagues’ needs and address feedback NEWin FY25

Comprehensive Health and Safety policy and procedures
with compliance monitoring to ensure a safe environment
foreveryone

Customdesigned Store Support Centre withroom for
growth and ample meeting and collaboration spaces

Launched new colleague portal to ensure policies made
available to all, and to aid knowledge sharing NEW in FY25

Encouraged colleagues to share what Pride means to them,
amplifying their voices internally and fostering greater
engagementand inclusivity NEW in FY25

Provide a comprehensive learning and development
e-platformto support personal development

Colleague gym on-site at our Store Support Centre

Support colleagues business-wide to complete Mental
Health First Aider courses

Prioritise and monitorinternal promotions across our
business ensuring transparent selection criteria

Continually develop ourlearning and development
capability to support personal and business performance
Annual Well-being Calendar to raise awareness and provide
resources to support colleagues

Comprehensive Employee Assistance Programme for all
colleagues and their families

Retail career progression and development matrix,

with prescribed training for eachrole level to ensure all
colleaguesreceive comprehensive and high-quality training

Annual succession planning process to identify and develop
talent forthe future

Relaunched fertility and pregnancy loss policy with
enhanced support for colleagues that need it NEW in FY25

Focused on leadership development, completing our first
cohort of training for Heads of departments NEW in FY25

ProCook’

What we are focused on next

Extend our provision of work experience
opportunities and launch CV and interview
preparation workshops led by our
colleagues, for those in our communities
with barriers to employment, and for
students seeking to develop their
employability skills

Launchfurther colleague network groups
to provide support and share ideas,
includingin areas such as neurodiversity,
orwomeninbusiness

Continue to monitor H&S procedures
across the Group, making further
improvements where identified and
considered necessary

Explore using pulse surveys on new
People portal to capture real-time
colleague well-being data

Launch new starter orientation hub with
everything you need to know about
starting at ProCook toimprove the
onboarding process

Roll out our leadership development
programme across cohorts of managers
through the year

Explore further well-being options to
boost our offering for colleagues

Introduce a private healthcare benefit for
managers across the business

Provide each store with specific learning
tablets to support colleague training and
development

Introduce tiered learning for different
seniority levels across the business

Develop retail training capabilities,
including the recruitment of regional
trainers

[& disability
B 6 confident

LEADER
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Link to principal risks

Climate change
Brand and customer
Regulatory compliance

Link to strategy

Accelerate profitable
sales growth

Improve operating efficiency

Be aforce forgood

Key stakeholders
. Customers
. Communities . Suppliers

Colleagues

Link to the United Nations
Sustainable Development
Goals

L
@le | &

Recent recognition,
awards, and memberships

o B Corp Certification
(September2022)

o BREEAM Excellent certified
Distribution Centre and Store
Support Centre

o Gold Standard Carbon Offset
with Ecologi

o Certified Zero Waste to Landfill
for our Distribution Centre and
Store Support Centre

We are committed to reducing
the environmentalimpact of

our business operations by
continually reviewing and refining
our practices.

Our top priority remains the reduction of
carbon emissions across our entire value
chainto achieve our ambitious target of
netzero by 2040. While we acknowledge
the challenges ahead, including factors
beyond ourdirect control, we are
confident that this commitment will drive
the necessary focus, collaboration, and
responsible decision-making throughout
ourbusiness.

Having already made significant progress
inreducing our Scope 1and 2 emissions,
we are now working closely with our global
supplier network to raise awareness of their
environmental impact and support the

ProCook’

necessary changes to drive meaningful,
long-termimprovements. This year, we
have enhanced our sustainability efforts
by launching new web pages dedicated
to showcasing our journey. These pages
provide stakeholders with clearand
transparentinsightsinto the stepswe’ve
already takentoreduce ourimpacton
the planet. We’ve also strengthened our
Commercial team by appointing a new
Commercial Director and introducing
new roles within the team who will be able
to give this topic greater focus through
building deeperrelationships with
suppliers, enhancing engagement and
collaborative building more traction and
progressinthis area.

Read more: Reducing our
environmental footprint on page 20

Read more: Progressing towards
Net Zero on pages 40 to 41

Our commitments

Toreduce our
carbon emissions to
Net Zero, inline with
the United Nations
Science Based
Targets'initiative

Reduce waste and
use sustainable
materials
throughout our
operational
activities

How we deliver on our commitments

o 100% LED lighting in our Store Support Centre, and 95% LED lighting
instores

o Afully electric company carfleet. Electric vehicle salary sacrifice scheme
offeredto colleagues

o BREEAM excellent-certified Store Support Centre and Distribution
Centre in Gloucestershire

o Externalverification of our Scope 1,2 and 3 carbon emissions and long-
term carbonreduction strategy establishedin line with the UN Science
Based Targetsinitiative'

« Workplace pension transitioned to provider offering more sustainable
and ethicalinvestments

o« Completed transition to 100% renewable energy usage business-wide
NEWinFY25

o Departmental sessions to engage colleagues with our net zero roadmap
NEWinFY25

« Began supply chain transformation, focusing on sourcing more
environmentally aware suppliers NEW in FY25

o ESOS Phase 3 considerations actioned, energy reduction plan
submitted NEW in FY25

o Car-sharing scheme at the Store Support Centreintroducedin
collaboration with other businesses on the retail park NEW in FY25

« Adhering to the Waste Hierarchy of prevention, reuse, recycle, recover,
disposal. Certified Zero Waste to Landfill at our Distribution and Store
Support Centre

« Reduced single-use plastic across the business; all colleagues are
provided with reusable bottles in their starter welcome box

o Customerrecycling scheme for smallhome electrical items (WEEE)

o 100% FSC-certified cardboard packaging forhome delivery parcels,
minimised usage of plastic bubble wrap by introducing recycled
paper-basedbox filler

o Reuse andrepurposing of store fixtures and equipment wherever
operationally possible

o Regularaudits of product packaging to further eradicate single-use
plastic

o Feedback surveys sent to stores to capture store- specific sustainability
opportunities, action plan produced NEW in FY25

« Addedintegrated handlesinto large products making them easier to
carry andreducing the need for carrierbags NEW in FY25

o Introduced widerrange of ceramic non-stick pans NEW in FY25

What we are focused on next

« Continue engaging with
suppliers to positively
influence and reduce their
environmentalimpacts

« Raise customerawareness
of product choice impacts,
educating on the benefits of
buying high-quality, long-
lasting products, which have
lowerimpact due to their
longevity

« Continuereducing energy
consumption throughout our
own business operations

o Launch annual sustainability
training on ourlearning and
development platform

e Recalculate Scopel,2and 3
emissionsin FY26; analyse and
review progress towards net
zero ambition

o Introduce SMART
environmental targets for
retail stores and measure
improvement

« Continue toreduce single-use
plasticsinconsumer
deliveries, conduct innovative
warehouse trials to understand
viable alternatives

o Explore more sustainable
printing for store marketing
assets, with closed-loop
recycling option

1 The United Nations’ Science Based Targets provide a clearly defined pathway for companies to reduce greenhouse gas (‘“GHG”) emissions and improve
sustainability, helping prevent the worst impacts of climate change.



32 ProCook’ Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2025

Sustainability continued

Ourcommitments How we deliver on our commitments What we are focused on next

Develop our o ESGrolesandresponsibilities assigned throughout the business o Furtherdevelop ournetzero
environmental  Environmental Management System (‘EMS”) with1SO14001 aligned roadmap, implementing
framework to processes and policies initiatives with pace
strengthen and ) o ) . . i
manag cour  Regular review and monitoring of our environmental risk register, » Collaborate with carbon
envirognmental including climate risks consultants to understand

. . . full progress onthe netzero
procedures and  Executive-sponsored ESG Committee, reporting to the Board, to ranmag
policies accelerate action across the business P

¢ Introduce further policies
and practices to streamline

environmental reporting and
o Departmental workshops to help teams understand net zero and explore target setting

practical changes they can make in their own areas as we work toward
our2040 goalNEW in FY25

o Colleague Advisory Panel focused on enhancing sustainability across
the business and how to effectively communicate these efforts to
customers NEWinFY25

o Colleague engagement with net zero throughinternal bitesize andjargon
buster training

Progress our B Corp « Continual development of processes, practices, and policiestoimprove ¢ Continue usingourB Corp

Score andbe aforce sustainability and colleague well-being at ProCook score as aninternal metric
forgood « Ongoing commitment to our relationships in the local community to monitorimprovementin
including our charity partner Life’s aBeach eachmeasurable area, aiming

to achieve >85 points when

« Internal ESG activities, strategies and impacts aligned to the United re-certifyingin FY26

Nations Sustainable Development Goals
o Promote our Cycle to Work

and car-sharing schemes

to encourage colleagues
¢ Published our second B Corp Impact Report showing our progress to make more sustainable

and commitment to being a socially and environmentally responsible transport choices
business NEW in FY25

o Strengthened connections with other B Corp companies by hosting
the January B Local event at our Store Support Centre, fostering
collaboration and networking with like-minded local businesses
NEWinFY25

¢ Raising awareness of B Corp and the importance of the initiative through
logo placement in our marketing, on our website and in our retail stores

Greenhouse gas emissions'

tCO,e emissions tCO, e/£Imrevenue Energy Gigawatt hours
FY25 - FY25 - FY25 -
FY24 430.8 FY24 6.9 FY24 21

FY23 369.9 FY23 59 FY23 1.8

FY22 4477 FY22 6.5 FY22 21

FY21 429.7 FY21 8.0 FY21 18

FY20 1015.6 FY20 261 FY20 4.1

1 Greenhouse gas emissions are defined here as CO, equivalent emissions (CO,e) from all Scope 1and 2 activities relating to the Group’s operations.
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Case Study

Inspiring action to reduce single-use plastics

Life’s a Beach, our charity partner, is dedicated to three core pillars: Act, Educate, and Encourage.

Act Educate Encourage

Taking direct action to keep our oceans Raising awareness about the importance Promoting sustainable habits by
and beaches litter-free through of recycling and the plastic pollution crisis encouraging the public toreduce, recycle,
nationwide clean-up events. through social media, public talks, and and most importantly, reuse—supported
interactive school workshops. by areusable product range available at
allProCook stores.

Overthe past year, Life’s a Beach has significantly expanded its outreach efforts. To date the charity delivered nine educational talks
to schools and youth groups, working with 3,282 young people and distributing thousands of reusable water bottles to reinforce the
principles of reduce, reuse, andrecycle.

Life’s a Beachis primarily funded through the sales of its product range in ProCook stores and through generous donations.

Yearonyear, Life’'s aBeachrecorded a130% increase inlitter collected and a 60% rise in volunteer participation, underscoring the
growing impact of the initiative.

ProCook colleagues have embraced Life’s a Beach clean-up events, with overwhelmingly positive feedback. From lunchtime litter
picks to canal cleansin canoes, these events provide meaningful opportunities to contribute to local communities and ecosystems. In
addition, they offer colleagues a chance to spend time outdoors, enhancing both theirmental and physical well-being.

Supporting Life’s aBeachinits mission to combat plastic pollution remains a top priority. In the year ahead, we will continue to raise
awareness about the urgency of the plastic pollution crisis, strengthening engagement and educational initiatives. We will work
together towards a future free from plastic pollution, making a tangible difference, one clean-up, one reusable product, and one
conversation at a time.
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Our Product - Helping our customers make more sustainable choices

Link to principal risks
Supply chain

Climate change

Brand and customer

Link to strategy

Accelerate profitable
sales growth

Improve operating efficiency

Be aforce forgood

Key stakeholders
. Customers

. Suppliers

Colleagues

Link to the United Nations
Sustainable Development
Goals
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Recent recognition,
awards, and memberships

¢ Which? Recommended Provider
- February 2025
o Sedex membership

o B Corp Certification
(September2022)

At ProCook, we design

and source durable, high-quality
kitchenware, empowering
customers to make more
sustainable choices by investing
inlong-lasting products.

Every ProCookitemundergoes
rigorous testing to ensure
performance, longevity and
enjoyment.

Minimising our environmental impactis
acontinual focus, and we are actively
making progressinimplementing Life
Cycle Assessmentrecommendations, for
example, by incorporating more recycled
materials into our packaging and products,
and exploring alternative, more sustainable

materials. Working towards circularity
remains a priority, with a strong emphasis
onresponsible packaging and encouraging
customers to take good care of their
products to maximise their lifespan.

We advocate for ethical and sustainable
manufacturing across our supply chain.
We collaborate with trusted suppliers
and, through our partnership with Sedex,
conduct audits to uphold the highest
standards of integrity, ensuring operations
remain free from bribery, corruption, and
modern slavery. We have recently been
named for the second time running a
‘Which? Recommended Provider 2025’ in
the Furniture and Homes category.

Our commitments

How we deliver on our commitments

What we are focused on next

Develop and bring
to market products
that are of high
quality and have
longevity, offering
our customers more
sustainable choices

o Offerproductswith product guarantees of up to 25 years

« Continual focus on Quality Assurance to enhance product quality,
reduce faultrates andimprove productlongevity

« Removal of all single-use plastic products fromranges and are
committed to not selling such products

« Expanded ourrange of products thatinclude more sustainable
materials, specifically acacia and bamboo

o Life cycle assessments conducted on core productranges to identify
associated carbon emissions

¢ Which? Recommended Provider, coming in second place with a score
of 81%, 5* for customer service and product quality, and 4* for value for
money, range and packaging New in FY25

o Furtherimprovements to range structure to discontinue products with
lowerlongevity New in FY25

o Expandourlowerimpact
ranges, bringing more
sustainable alternatives to the
market

o Furtherembed circular
thinking into our product
development processes

Promoteresponsible
manufacturing
processes across
our supply chain
with highlevels

of transparency

and compliance

in ethical and
environmental
standards

« Membership of Sedex (ethical and environmental compliance
monitoring) requiring our suppliers to register with Sedex oran
equivalent body

o Achieved 100% supplier registration with Sedex or equivalent, with all
suppliers undertaking annual SMETA or BSCI Amorfi audits

¢ Review and challenge supplier compliance results ensuring weaknesses
ornon-compliance issues are promptly actioned

¢ Independent product performance and chemical testing on all new
ranges, andregular re-testing all existing core and high-risk product
categories

« Engage with top volume suppliers to understand and improve their
sustainability credentials to align with ours

« Enhanced supplier T&Cs promoting more sustainable manufacturing
NEWinFY25

« Beganrationalising the number of suppliers in our supply chain,
increasing ourinfluence over sustainable manufacturing practices
NEWinFY25

o Develop our circulareconomy
capabilities by investigating
opportunities toreuse or
recycle end-of-life customer
products

¢ Continue tofocus on product
risk assessments and
technicalfiles, ethical and
technical audits, and advances
in sustainable materials

Minimise waste

from product
packaging to reduce
our environmental
footprint

o Eliminated less sustainable materials where operationally possible, using
options such as string, paper ties and tissue paperinstead of elastic
bands and single-use plastic bags

o Over95% of our product packagingis plastic-free

« Improved product shipping packaging with suppliers to eliminate waste
including moving to paper-based tapes instead of plastic

« Improved recyclinginstructions on product packaging to support
customersin theirrecycling efforts

o Customerrecycling guides providing advice on how to responsibly
dispose of ProCook packaging

o Use of fibre-based bags and cardboard void fillers instead of
polystyreneinall Electricalsranges

o Request suppliersuse 50-70% recycled contentin product packaging
NewinFY25

« Relaunched user-friendly sustainability website and introduced retail
information to highlight our commitment to reducing plastic packaging
NewinFY25

« Continuetoinnovate to
reduce single-use plasticsin
product packaging
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Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures

We acknowledge the severity and immediacy of climate change and corresponding financial risks. Inline with the FCA Listing Rule UKLR
6.6.6R(8), ProCook has made disclosures against the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”) recommendations
onpages 36 to 39. Dan Walden (CFO) is the Executive Directorresponsible for climate change as a whole, supported by the Group’s ESG
Directorand team.

Building on our first TCFD reportin FY22 and the progress made in the years since, we have refined our approach to assessing risks and
opportunities. We remain committed to enhancing our disclosures inline with evolving requirements and best practice. This year, we have
made progress in how we monitor, measure, and manage climate change risks, opportunities and financialimpacts. New internal processes
have helped improve focus on potentialimpacts across the business. As our understanding of climate impacts deepens, so, too, will our
response, ensuring our assessment of climate-related risks remains robust. This ongoing progress will drive further initiatives as part of
ourwider strategy.

Reducing our environmental footprint is an embedded value and is integral to our long-term success. Both customers and colleagues
expect brands to prioritise sustainability, and we recognise the growing consumer demand for longer-lasting products that explore
lowerimpact materials and are free from single-use plastics. This shift presents both commercial risks and opportunities, which we are
actively addressing.

Ourpeak trading period is during late autumn and early winter; extreme weather events during this time (orin the run up towards it) could
disrupt our purchasing and flow of inventory, and delay deliveries to stores and customer’s homes, or prevent customers from visiting

our stores, which couldimpact trading performance. Inabelow 2°C scenario, the Group expects suchimpacts either physicalimpacts,
orimpacts to the successful achievement of the Group’s strategy, to be relatively low. Under a greater than 2°C scenario, such climate
disruption could become prolonged and more extreme, and, therefore, more impactful to the Group’s performance and execution of
strategic objectives. As such, the Group continues to review and improve its resilience to suchimpacts through operational, sourcing and
risk managementimprovements.

Strong governance with oversight by the Board

The Boardis responsible for governance across the Group and takes an active role in the oversight of ESG matters, including strategy
development, culture, risk management and climate-related risks, opportunities and impacts

The ESG teamis responsible foridentifying and evaluating current new and emerging climate-related risks and associated mitigating
actions. The potential likelihood and impact of climate-related impacts are assessed, with significant concerns and risks reported to the
Board

Read more: Governance Framework Read more: Board activities
onpages70to71 onpages76to79

What we do already What we will do next

Climate Change and sustainability topics are discussed regularly Furtherembed climate-related considerations in our strategic
by the Board, with deep dive updates throughout the year on ESG and financial planning as climate change impacts become more
progress presented by our ESG Director critical to our business practices

The Board reviews ESG progress at least annually as a standing
agendaitem

The Audit and Risk Committee reviews the principal risks at least
twice ayearincluding those surrounding climate change

The ESG Committee, Chaired by the CFO, meets quarterly to
oversee the delivery of our strategic objectives andreport to the
Board on progress against targets

Monthly “Green Team” meetings generate ideas and implement
initiatives to reduce our environmentalimpact

Engage and educate colleagues on B Corp, climate change
and sustainability, through internal comms and our designated
Sustainability and Well-being Portal

Prioritising climate change in our strategy

The TCFD framework helps us understand and manage the climate-related risks and opportunities we face. The Board has considered
the potentialimpacts to our strategy of climate changerisks (as set out on pages 42 to 44). These are not considered to have a material
effect on the Group’s financial projections or strategic priorities over the short to medium term; however, could reasonably become

more significant over the longer term

The framework allows us to better understand and manage the climate-related risks and opportunities we face. Integrating climate
change considerations into our day-to-day business activities and strategic objectives is crucial. While we acknowledge the costs
associated with mitigating climate risks and implementing necessary changes, and preventing negative impacts associated with
climate change, we remain committed to responsible action. Our goalis to build aresilient and sustainable business that benefits

all stakeholders

Read more: Climate-relatedrisk
registeronpages42to44

Read more: Reducing our
environmental footprint on page 20

Read more: Sustainability,
Ourplanet onpages 30 to 33

What we do already

What we will do next

Reducing our environmental footprint is a key element of our
Group’s strategy

Alignment of our environmental impacts with the United Nations
Science Based Targets initiative to support internal strategic
decision-making and focus

Developed our Environmental Management System and began
the development of our net zero strategic roadmap in partnership
with carbon consultants to deliver carbon emissions reduction
throughout our business operations and global supply chain

Progressing our eight priority actions for our Scope 1,2 and 3 carbon
reduction strategy as set out on page 41

Developed our strategic roadmap to achieve net zero by 2040,
including understanding the pace at which we can transition and the
tangibleinitiatives to pursue

Completed ourresilience assessment, taking into consideration
different climate-related scenarios, including a 2°C or lower
scenario

Submitted our ESOS Phase 3 action plan andidentified energy
saving opportunities, including behaviour change workshops,
transport and packaging optimisation

Fullreassessment of Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions with carbon
consultantsinFY26

Continue toinvestinresource and expertise to support our
transition towards net zero

Continue toimplement the eight priorities for our Scope 1, 2
and 3 carbonreduction strategy. Build on our foundations and
demonstrate real progress

Utilise ourrelationships with key strategic suppliers to influence
their environmental commitments, targets, and progress

Progress with ESOS Phase 3 action planincluding steps to
improve energy data, colleague behaviours, and transport and
packaging optimisation

Understand our associated emissions in the form of life

cycle assessments of our best-selling products to support
manufacturing and supplier choices of the future

Consolidate sourcing to preferred suppliers, enabling us to
have a greaterinfluence over supplier environmentalinitiatives,
including net zero ambitions, SBTi and joint ethical targets

Understand supplier geographicalinitiatives and energy
zoning data
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Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures

Continued

Arobust approach to risk management

Climate changeis recognised as one of the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties andis integrated into our wider risk management
framework whichis set out on page 52. The Board, Audit and Risk Committee, and the CFO, are responsible foridentifying and
overseeing climate-related risks and tracking progress against our climate goals and targets

To assess potential climate impacts, we have identified climate-related risks and opportunities across the short (up to 2030), medium
(2030-2040), and long term (2040 onwards) under three possible future climate scenarios: below 2°C, between 2-3°C, and above 3°C.
These scenarios are based on the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) Representative Concentration Pathways (RCP 2.6,
RCP 4.5,and RCP 8.5), enabling us to evaluate potential risks and opportunities that could affect our business in the years ahead

Read more: Climate-relatedrisk
registeron pages 42 to 44

Read more: Our approach torisk
management on page 52

Read more: Principal risks and
uncertainties: climate change
onpage 59

What we do already

What we will do next

Clearly defined ESG roles and responsibilities have been
established with regards to environmental management

Climaterisk register developed, whichincorporates short, medium,
and long-term climate-related risks, with an assessment of
potential climate change risks and opportunities that could affect
our business over the following time scales: short term (up to 2030),

Seek external review and feedback on our climate change risk
assessments asrisks evolve

Continue to monitor and identify changes to climate-related
risk (increase, no change, decrease), and review this at least bi-
annually with the Board

Complete a detailed environmental risk assessment for our

mediumterm (2030 to 2040) and long term (2040 onwards)

Oversight of risk management is delegated to the Audit and Risk
Committee by the Board

global supply chain, with regards to water, biodiversity loss
and physical climatic changes, under different climate change
scenarios

Review and update climate change risk assessments at least annually

Monitoring progress using detailed performance indicators and targets

Setting targets and monitoring progress against these are critical to ensure that sufficient headway is being made at the required pace.
The Board monitors arange of performance indicators, including those set out below and our Key Performance Indicators

Following strong progress already made in reducing and mitigating Scope Tand 2 emissions, the Board, in recognition of the urgency of
actionrequiredinthe face of this global threat, has set an overarching target for the Group to achieve Net Zero by 2040.

The Boardrecognises that the achievement of this target requires significant progress to be made by third-parties that are not directly
within our control

Read more: Alternative Performance
Measures on pages 162 to 164

Read more: Key Performance
Indicators on pages 46 to 47

What we do already What we will do next

Scope 1,2 and 3 (over 80% of Scope 3) carbon emissions are
assessed andreported to the Board

Work with our suppliers and carbon consultants to continue to
improve the accuracy and completeness of our carbon emission
data, particularly inrespect of Scope 3 emissions, with full
recalculation to monitor progressin FY26

100% electric company car fleet

100% renewable energy sources used across our business

operations Develop our Net Zero roadmap and associated targets and

timescales, assessing in further detail the cost/benefit, pace,

Waste reduction: Zero waste to landfill certification of our Store : ) o
and action plan to implement initiatives

Support Centre site
ESOS Phase 3recommendations to be integratedinto netzero

. ) o e
Sustainable paper:100% FSC certified paper used across the roadmap, identify energy efficiency improvements for stores

business
Investigate retail stores with the highest kWh/ sq.ft. usage to

. . o o e
Sustainable home delivery packaging: 100% FSC certified home identify where improvements can be made InFY26

delivery boxes and paper packaging are inuse in operations
Engage with our freight and logistics providers regarding the

GLEC framework, and their own targets, which should be aligned
tonet zero by 2040 the global target for the logistics sector

Engaged with ourtop 10 product suppliers to understand their
own environmental performance and action plans and how we can

support their progress
Report on progress towards net zero by 2040, annually,

Introduced closed door policy for extreme temperature conditions;
policy P to the Board

stickers on store doors demonstrate this energy-saving initiative

Transitioned to new pension provider offering more sustainable
investment choices for colleagues to help reduce Scope 3 emissions
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Progressing towards net zero

We acknowledge the need to decarbonise our operations and value chain to minimise

climate risks, retain and grow our customer base and deliver positive outcomes for our
Priority action

Our priorities for Scope 1, 2 and 3 carbonreduction

Progress so far

Actions for FY25

planet and all stakeholders.

Strengthened environmental policies
including Energy, Waste Management,
Environmental, and Environmental
Purchasing Policies. Developed a more
in-depth supplier purchasing policy.

Continue enhancing knowledge of
evolving sustainability legislation

(e.g. CSRD) and ensure compliance.
Expand policies in preparation for future
regulatory changes.

Improved logistics, transport, and
shipping data quality by collaborating
with suppliers and couriers to better
understand emissions related to

our operations.

Strengthendata collection and
management, bridging gaps between
internal teams, suppliers, and external
partners for a unified sustainability
reporting approach.

Enhanced EMS documentation,
including ESG Roles & Responsibilities,
Interested Parties, PESTLE & SWOT
analysis, and climate risk register.

Maintain alignment with ISO

14001 standards, ensuring all EMS
documentationremains relevantand
up to date.

) L . Policies
Having completed our full carbon Net Zero emissions trajectory targets'
footprint analysis, including our Scope Strgngthen andupdate N
1,2 and 3 emissions, we have gained a ‘000s environmental and ESG policies
fullunderstanding of the extent of the 120% 35 (e.9. purchasmg,energy, waste
emissions implicit in ourindirect sourcing 100% management, human rights)
activities, as set outin the Baseline Value .
Chain Carbon Footprint analysis in our 2024 100% 30 /\./’II Data .quallty .
Annual Report and Accounts. N Q Il |Q Identify operational data gaps
5 25 andimprove collectionand
These are significantincomparison to the T 80% m management
relatively modest emissions from our own 3 . 20 2 (e.g. business travel)
operations, which the Group has worked g 55% %-
O,

hard to eliminate and reduce overrecent 5 60% ?. Environmental management
years. Much of the emissions in our supply @ 5 o system (“EMS”)
chain are not directly within our control, and € 34% O &4 f

Yy ) 5 40% o Improve and fully align EMS
beinginsectors and countries where no 10 documents to ISO14001
cleardecarbonisation plans exist yet, we
have now completed a detailed exercise 20% 5
to assess the anticipated timescales on % <0 Engage suppliers
WhICh\.’Zf canh\./vnhade?ree of cgnfldence, 0% 0 ﬂ n Identify key suppliers forinitial
committo achieving netzero emissions 2024 2030 2035 2040 1 engagement and understand
across our value chainas awhole. their environmental targets

Emissions — Reduction %

The Board has agreed a target of achieving
netzero emissions by 2040 through

Engagedtop suppliers to better
understand their environmental
commitments through Sedex and
questionnaires. Strengthened
relationships through supplier visits to
factories and our SSC.

Deepeninsightsinto suppliers’ future
sustainability initiatives, including
regional energy zoning data. Explore
alternative manufacturing regions

to diversify the supply chainand
mitigate risk.

reducing our total emissions (all Scope 1,

Reduce andrecycle packaging
2 and 3 carbon emissions associated with

A

VAAAAAAN/ . .

ri@ Continue to improve our product
packaging recyclability and
remove single-use plastics

our activities) by atleast 90% by 2040,

with any remaining emissions needing

to be mitigated or offset. We have set
anintermediary target to delivera 45%
reductionintotaltCO, e per £1m of Revenue
by 2030. Furtherinformation on carbon
emissionsis set outonpage 110.

1 Giventhe inherent challengesin measuring emissions onindirect activities outside of the
Group’s control, especially those in Scope 2 and 3, the Group has worked with expert carbon
consultants making use of best industry practices using judgement and estimates where
necessary based on company and country data. Therefore, these emissions lack absolute
precision but are considered by the Group to be reasonably indicative, and will be refined as
more precise databecomes available

Minimised single-use plasticsin product
packaging, replacing plastic tags with
string and polystyrene inserts with
corrugated cardboard. Used cardboard
void fillers where possible and switched
to thinner-grade plastic in unavoidable
cases. Trained warehouse operatives to
optimise packaging use, random spot
checks ensure compliance.

Explore further packaging reduction
opportunities throughimproved
inner/outer configurations and
enhanced container fill engineering.

Engagement and education

Develop acommunication
planinformed by a stakeholder
analysis to engage colleagues
and achieve cross-Company
commitment

Expanded colleague sustainability
training, focusing on our net

zero journey, including net zero
workshops, jargon-busting sessions,
B Corp presentations, and anin-depth
induction. Completed ESOS Phase 3
ActionPlan.

Shift focus towards raising customer
awareness of our sustainability efforts
and B Corp certification through
in-store, online, and social media
engagement.

n More efficient property

Improve store efficiencies.
Understand differencesin
energy usage of similar size
ProCook stores to make
improvements and reduce
overall energy consumption

Completed ESOS Phase 3 site visits
and action plan. Fully renewable energy
sources are used across our portfolio,
and a closed-door policy hasbeen
introduced during adverse weather to
reduce energy consumption.

Action agreed opportunities fromthe
ESOS Phase 3report to be completed
and assess the impact of moving to the
new Store Support Centre. Explore well
performing, energy efficient stores and
take learnings fromthese.

Travel

Improve WFH and employee
commuting data and distribute
sustainable travel plans for our
new headquarters

Researched colleague commuting
practices to establish a current
emissions baseline and setatarget to
reduce single-occupancy car travel by
10% by 2027 at SSC.

Promote car-sharing and the Cycle

to Work scheme, including creating a
cycle club at the Store Support Centre
to encourage participation. Investigate
climate-friendly travel incentives.




Climate-relatedrisk register

Risk

Opportunity

ProCook’

Mitigating action

Transition Risks (associated with moving towards a greener, less polluting economy)

Regulatory risks

Increased compliance costs Potential operational savings Scenario Link to principalrisks ~ Work with external advisors
andreporting obligations. from transitioning towards a Variable Regulatory to ensure compliance
Increasing extended circularand lower-emission acrossall compliance with evolving regulations
producer responsibility, operating model. Improved scenarios Riskimpact (including CSRD)
driving operational waste customer perception may Time horizon - Build internal expertise
disposal costs up(for enhance brand loyalty and n to manage changing
example packaging and revenue Riskimpactchange  opjigations effectively
roduct waste g ) )
P ) Budget forincreasing costs
Risk of climate regulatory Long-term operational Scenario Link to principalrisks  Developinternal carbon
requirements, including savings and revenue growth Variable Regulatory pricing strategy to account
carbon pricing, energy, from reducing emissions and acrossall compliance forpotential future costs
waste, and plastic taxes, improvingresource efficiency.  scenarios Riskimpact Proactively adjust business

driving operational costs as
Governments aim to meet net

Stronger environmental
credentials enhance brand

Time horizon

models to stay ahead of

[ evolving regulation

zero commitments value Riskimpact change

=
Higher costsrelated to Potential long-term cost Scenario Link to principalrisks ~ Continue energy efficiency
changesinbuilding efficiency  savings throughimproved Variable Regulatory improvements and align
standards and mandatory building efficiency andenergy  acrossall compliance operations withESOS
energy audits (suchas ESOS usereduction. Opportunityto  scenarios L Phase 3recommendations

Riskimpact

Phase 3)

transition to renewable energy

Time horizon

Monitor emerging energy

sources
performance standards
L Riskimpact change
Technology risks
Transition to low-carbon Long-term cost savings from Scenario Link to principal risks Accelerate adoption of
technologies may lead adopting more efficientand Below Technology renewable energy and
toincreased costs and sustainable technologies. 2°Cand platforms, dataloss low-carbon technologies
potentialinefficienciesduring  Enhanced reputation by between and cybersecurity Ensure investments align
implementation demonstratinginnovationand  o_zec with emerging industry
environmental leadership Riskimpact
" . standards and best
Time horizon )
practices
u Risk impact change
=
Internal systems becoming Leveraginginnovative Scenario Link to principal risks Conductregular
inefficient ornew technologies may drive Variable Technology technology reviews
technologies becoming operational efficiencies and across all platforms, dataloss and adopt future-proof
obsolete before ROI reduce overall environmental scenarios and cybersecurity solutions that support
isrealised footprint circularand low-carbon
Time horizon  Riskimpact ambitions
[
Riskimpact change
=
Risk key Time horizon Riskimpact Riskimpact change year on year
. Short/ Mediumterm Low = No change
- Medium term Medium Increase
I Medium/Long term B High Decrease

Risk Opportunity Mitigating action
Marketrisks
Changing consumer Usinginnovative materials Scenario Link to principalrisks  Expand partnerships
preferences towards and alternative production Variable Brand and customer with sustainable material
sustainable products could methods may reduce acrossall Riskimpact suppliers andinvestin
leadtoincreaseddemandfor  long-term costsand align scenarios supply chain diversification
limited, sustainable materials,  with shifting consumer Time horizon u to mitigate price
raising manufacturing costs expectations Riskimpact change fluctuations
- B
Increased costs of energy Transitioning torecycled Scenario Link to principalrisks ~ Continue toimprove
andraw materials forproduct  and alternative materials Variable Competition, supply chainresilience
production as global supply may reduce costs overtime acrossall market and macro- by diversifying suppliers
chains are affected by andimprove supply chain scenarios economic and exploring alternative
climate-related changes resilience . . . materials
Time horizon = Riskimpact
Prioritise renewable energy
[ | ;
sources wherever possible
Riskimpact change
=
Higher demand for circular Increased revenue potential Scenario Link to principalrisks ~ Strengthen circular
economy products (reuse, fromintroducing more Variable Brand and customer product offerings and
repair) could reduce new sustainable, circular product across all Riskimpact continue collaboration with
product sales orleadtoloss ranges that appeal to scenarios suppliers toinnovate on
of market share to more environmentally conscious Time horizon | reuse and repairmodels
sustainable competitors consumers Risk impact change
[
Reputationalrisks
Inability to recruit and retain Improved reputation and Scenario Link to principalrisks  Maintain B Corp
top talentif ProCookis not brandimage through stronger  Variable People and culture certification and ensure
recognised as aresponsible sustainability credentials, acrossall Riskimpact continuous progress on
business enhancing employee scenarios sustainability initiatives
attraction andretention Time horizon Promote employer brand
. Riskimpactchange  553eaderin ethical
| business
Shiftsinconsumer Continually improving Scenario Link to principalrisks  Leverage marketing
preferences, unable toretain sustainability strategy/ Variable Brand and customer channels to educate
and attract customers if credentials willlead to a acrossall Riskimpact customers about our
we are notrecognisedas a stronger customer reputation scenarios sustainability journey and
responsible business andbrandimage, attracting . . achievements
Time horizon L
abroaderrange of loyal - Risk impact change Highlight product
customers | innovations and
certifications
Increased stakeholder Proactive sustainability Scenario Link to principalrisks ~ Continue to strengthen
(investor)interestin leadership and enhanced Variable Financialand treasury  ESGreporting, aligning with
sustainability performance, transparency strengthen acrossall Riskimpact international frameworks
withrisk of divestment if investor confidence and scenarios (including TCFD, CSRD) to
targets are not met improve access to capital . . build trust with investors
Time horizon Riskimpact change
[




Climate-relatedrisk register

Continued

Risk

Opportunity

Physical Risks (associated with the physical impacts of climate change)

Increased frequency and
severity of extreme weather
events (heatwaves, storms,
floods) may disrupt supply
chains, particularly inregions
where key suppliers operate

Improved supply chain
resilience through stronger
supplierrelationships and
climate adaptation measures
may reduce long-term

costs andimprove product

Scenario
Between
2-3°Cand
above 3°C

Time horizon

ProCook’

Link to principal risks
Climate change

Risk rating

Riskimpact change

Mitigating action

Continue climate risk
assessments, prioritising
suppliersinvulnerable
regions

Strengthen supply chain
contingency plans

availability u
Increased risk of supply Strongersupplierrelationships ~ Scenario Link to principalrisks  Enhance supplier
chain disruption andrising and proactive risk Above 3°C Climate change engagement and climate
raw material costs due to management canimprove adaptationplans

) g . o P Time horizon  Riskrating P P
climate-related changes supply chainresilience and Diversify supplier base to
in precipitation and reduce disruptions L help mitigate risk
temperature affecting crop Riskimpact change
yields and natural materials
Reduced employee Improved workplace Scenario Link to principalrisks ~ Continue implementing
productivity due to extreme conditions and flexible Above 3°C Climate change policies to protect
heat, flooding, or other working arrangements ma . i . . colleague well-bein
9 ; ) 9 9 y Time horizon  Riskrating ) 9 9

weather-related disruptions help protect employee during extreme weather

well-being and maintain

events

productivity Riskimpactchange  pngyre facilities are
| equipped with appropriate
climateresilience measures
Risk key Time horizon Riskimpact Riskimpact change year on year
. Short/ Mediumterm Low = No change
- Medium term Medium Increase

I Medium/Long term B High

Decrease

Non-financial information

and sustainability statement

Inaccordance with Section 414CB of the Companies Act 2006, the statements below set out our approach
and commitment to our people, our communities and environment, anti-bribery and corruption, and human

rights across the Group.

Additionalinformation on our business model can be found on pages 6 to 7, our approach to risk management on page 52, and our

non-financial KPls onpages 46 to 47.

Our people

We are committed to creating an even better place to work for our
people, with a safe working environment and a supportive culture
where our colleagues can develop their skills, experience, and careers.
We promote well-being, inclusion, diversity, and equal opportunities,
and we treat everyone with respect, providing fair reward for each of
their contributions. Ourleadership play a critical role in fostering and
developing our culture and our working environments, whichis why
we’re committed to developing the best possible leaders we can.

E]\ Read more on Our people and other social matters:
Create an evenbetter place to work on page 19
Engaging with our people on page 9
Sustainability: Our People on pages 25 to 29
Code of conduct: see www.procookgroup.co.uk
Gender pay gap: see www.procookgroup.co.uk

Diversity, equality, and inclusion policy:
see www.procookgroup.co.uk

Mental Health and well-being policy:
see www.procookgroup.co.uk

Our communities and environment

ProCookis committed to supporting the communities in which

we operate. We offer all colleagues the opportunity to contribute
to theircommunities through our Good Causes Days scheme. We
alsoraise funds for, and promote, our charity partner Life’s a Beach
and our colleague-nominated charity of the year, with £21,000
raised forFoodCycle in FY25. We develop relationships in our
local communities by providing mentoring and work experience
opportunities for people with barriers to work.

We are proactive in our activities toreduce ourimpact onthe
environment, with sustainability a key part of our decision making. We
source quality products that are designed to last, helping customers
make more sustainable choices and we eliminate allunnecessary
plastics from our packaging. We operate a zero waste to landfill
Store Support Centre, whichis BREAAM excellent-rated, and we are
committed to progressively reducing our emissions across all of our
operations and supply chain, with a goal of Net Zero by 2040.

E]\ Read more on Our communities and environment:
Reducing our environmental footprint on page 20
Engaging with our communities on page 10
Sustainability - communities on pages 25 and 27
Sustainability: Our Planet on pages 30 to 32
Responsible sourcing on pages 34 to 35
Inspiring action to reduce single-use plastics on page 33

Task Force for Climate Change Related Disclosures
onpages 36 to 39

Anti-bribery and corruption, and humanrights

ProCookis committed to doing the right thing, with robust policies
and procedures in place to prevent bribery, corruption, and human
rights abuse.

We have established controls around giving and receiving
hospitality, entertainment, and gifts, and around the introduction
of new supplier partners. Colleagues undergo training and are
required to confirm, on an annual basis, theirunderstanding of the
policies that we have in place around anti-bribery and corruption,
and any non-compliance with the policy would result in disciplinary
action and possible dismissal.

We are committed to azero-tolerance policy on modern slavery,
and we expect both those who work within our organisation and
our external partners to adhere to and respect the highest ethical
standards in working conditions bothinthe UK and internationally.
The provenance of our products is of paramount importance to
us, and we work closely with our suppliers, staff, and contractors
to ensure there is complete transparency in labour conditions at
every level of our business and stage of a product’slifecycle. As
part of our Modern Slavery framework, we continue to audit and
monitor the conditions of our supply chain and internal ecosystem
onanongoing basis to identify improvements and uphold our
commitment.

We operate a whistleblowing helpline for colleagues who may
be concerned about these and other topics, and who may prefer
toreportin confidence. All whistleblowing contacts are shared
with the Audit and Risk Committee for oversight and further
investigationif required.

Read more on Our policies on anti-bribery and corruption
and humanrights:

Code of conduct: see www.procookgroup.co.uk
Humanrights: see www.procookgroup.co.uk

Anti-bribery and corruption:
see www.procookgroup.co.uk

Modernslavery: see www.procookgroup.co.uk

Sustainability: Our Product on pages 34 to 35



ProCook’

Key Performance Indicators

Improve operating Create agreatplace Be aforce

Our Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) are set and monitored by the Board to assess performance across a Link to Accelerate profitable

range of financial and non-financial targets and to help determine senior management remuneration.

These KPIs provide arange of information aligned to the Group’s strategic mission to be the customers’ first choice for kitchenware, with our
sustainability goals and financial performance in mind. During the year, the Board has agreed to monitor two new measures which have been
addedto the KPIs set out below inrespect of Underlying EBITDA and Underlying operating profit margin.

Financial
Revenue Gross profit Underlying EBITDA
f£mand % fmand % B £m
o) ()

£69.5m 11.0% £45.7m 65.8% £8.9m

FY25 £69.5m 11.0% FY25 £45.7m 65.8% FY25 £8.9m

FY24 £62.6m 0.4% FY24  £411m 65.7% FY24 £6.8m

FY23  £62.3m (9.9)% FY23 « £38.3m 61.5% FY23 ' £5.5m

FY22  £69.2m 29.5% FY22 £45.0m 65.1% FY22 £13.3m

FY21  £53.4m 37.5% FY21  £359m 67.2% FY21 £13.5m

Revenue of £69.5m (+11.0% vs FY24)
reflects animproving performance
trend as the year progressed, with
six consecutive quarters of revenue
growth against the continuing
backdrop of the challenging
consumer environment.

Link to strategy

Underlying operating profit
XX £m and % of revenue

£3.2m 4.6%

FY25 £3.2m 4.6%
FY24 £2.1m 3.4%
FY23 £0.8m 1.2%

FY22 £9.2m 13.3%

FY21 £9.7m 18.2%

Underlying operating profit, a key
measure within our strategic plan,
increasedto £3.2m (FY24: £2.1m).

The OP% measure was added to
Group KPIsinFY25 as a key metric
to demonstrate progress against
the Group’s medium term strategic
targets.

Link to strategy

Gross profitincreasedto £45.7m
(FY24: £41.1m) primarily driven by top
line revenue growth butimpacted by
marine freight and foreign exchange
volatility in the period.

Link to strategy

Underlying profit before tax’
X4 £m and % of revenue

£1.5m 2.2%

FY25 £1.5m 2.2%
FY24 £1.0m 1.6%
FY23 £(0.2m (0.3)%
FY22 £9.5m 13.7%

FY21 £8.3m 15.5%

Underlying Profit Before Taxincreased
to £1.5minFY25 (FY24: £1.0m)
reflecting top line growth and strong
costdiscipline to help mitigate
significant inflationary pressures.

Link to strategy

Underlying EBITDA (Earnings Before
Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortisation) increased by 31.3% to
£8.9m (FY24: £6.8m) primarily driven
by revenue growth.

This measure was added to the
Group’sKPIsin FY25 as a key indicator
of cash-generating profitability.

Link to strategy

Free cash flow?

B fm
£1.7m

FY25 £1.7m
FY24 £2.0m
FY23 £(0.5)m

FY22 £(3.0)m

FY21 £8.2m

Free cashflow of £1.7minFY25
(FY24: £2.0m)reflectsimproved
cash generation offset by £4.1m of
investment capex (FY24: £1.9m), with
ayearend net cash position of £1.0m
(FY24:netdebtof £0.7m).

Link to strategy

strategy sales growth

efficiency towork forgood

1 Furtherinformation on how Underlying Profit Before Tax s calculated is set out on page 120.
2 Furtherinformation on how Free cash flow is calculated is set out on page 164.
3 tCO,e emissions are defined as emissions from all Scope 1and 2 activities relating to the Group’s operations.

Customer

Environmental Social Governance

Number of new customers

('000)

737

FY25 | 737
FY24 687
FY23 ' 692
FY22 723
FY21 417

The Group attracted 737,000 new
customers to shop with ProCook during
FY25,7.1% more thanin FY24, primarily
due to Retail expansion and stronger
Ecommerce performance. New
customers are those who shopped with
ProCook for the first time inthe year
and, at that point, first registered their
details on our customer database.

Link to strategy

12 monthrepeatrate

%
20.5%

FY25 [ 20.5%
FY24 21.3%
FY23 ' 23.6%
FY22 25.5%

FY21 18.6%

Our customers’ 12 month repeat rate
decreased by 0.8% points yearon
yearto 20.2% largely reflecting the
continued channel shift back towards
Retail, which typically has a lower
repeat frequency. Repeatratesin
bothretailand online channels also
reduced slightly yearonyear.

Link to strategy

Number of active customers (L12M)

= (000)
1,130

FY25 [ 1,130
FY24 1,047
FY23 991
FYy22 974
FY21 557

During FY25, we further grew our
active customer base (+7.9% YoY)

as we continued to attract new
customers and drive repeat sales.

Of these customers, 393,000 were
repeat customers originally acquired
in previous periods (FY24: 360,000).

Link to strategy

Trustpilot score
(Max5)

4.7

FY25 | 4.7

FY24 4.8

FY23 4.7

FY22 4.8

Fy21 48

With over130,000 5-starreviews,
we continue to maintain our Excellent
rating, outperforming the average

rating for kitchenware retailers on the
platform of 2.9.

Link to strategy

Colleague engagement score

%

FY25 | 77%
FY24 66%
FY23  66%
FY22 77%
FY21 n/a

The Group was certified a Great Place
to Work™ for the fourth consecutive
yearin December 2024, withan 11%pt
improvement in colleague engagement
score yearonyear.

Link to strategy Link to sustainability

nH Ourpeople

CO,e emissions intensity?

tCO,e/£Imof revenue
FY25 | 6.0
FY24 6.9
FY23 < 5.9
FY22 6.5
FY21 8.0

CO,e emissions intensity reducedin
FY251t0 6.0 tonnes of CO, per £1m of
revenue generated, where expansion
of the store estate in the year partially
offset dual running of previous
warehouse locations in FY24, which
resultedinincreased usage of energy.

Link to strategy Link to sustainability

En Ourplanet



CFQO’sreview

FY25 FY24  YoY growth
£m/ % £m % %
Revenue 69.5 62.6 11.0%
Ecommerce 2585 22.7 12.3%
Retail 44.0 39.9 10.3%
LFLRevenue 62.9 60.0 4.9%
Ecommerce 251 227 10.3%
Retail 37.9 37.3 1.5%

Totalrevenue in FY25 (the 52-week period ending 30 March 2025)
increased by 11.0% to £69.5m (FY24, the 52-week period ending
31March2024: £62.6m). Trading performance improved through
the year with total revenue growth increasing each quarter.

We have continued toincrease our share in the UK Kitchenware
market' during the year, driven by the strong Ecommerce
performance, and Retail revenue growth both from expansion and
in our like-for-like estate. Our mix of revenue remains more heavily
weighted to Ecommerce (37%) than the wider market (28%).

Ecommercerevenue grew by 12.3% to £25.5m (FY24: £22.7m)
including a 2.0%-point benefit from the relaunch of a small, curated
range on Amazon UK, and an encouraging sales performance
through our own website, whichincreased by 10.3% year onyear.

ProCook’ Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2025

£ £ \We have delivered
encouraging results and
improved trading momentum
in the first year of executing
our refreshed strategic plan.
Together with our continuing
focus on cost discipline and

operational efficiency, we

have improved profitability and
strengthened our balance sheet
whilst self-funding significant
growthinvestment to expand our
retail store estate.”

Dan Walden
Chief Financial Officer

Performance on our own website was muchimproved following
the disruptionin the prior year from the transition to a new platform,
supported by significantimprovements in social media marketing
capability and improved basket-building supportingincreased
average ordervalues yearonyear.

Retailrevenue increased by 10.3% year onyearto £44.0m

(FY24: £39.9m), including like-for-like growth of 1.5% and an 8.8%
impact of 12 new stores opened in the year, partially offset by

the closure of three smaller garden centre stores. Like-for-like
growth was driven by continued product innovation, including the
expansion of the new Electricals ranges and continued focus on
delivering outstanding customer service. At the end of the financial
year, our UK Retail estate comprised 66 stores.

1 Management estimates based oninternal sales data and GFK weekly
kitchenware sales data.

Gross profit of £45.7minFY25 (FY24: £41.1m)reflected
slightly improved gross margins of 65.8% (FY24: 65.7%) as we
absorbed heightened shipping costs as a result of the Middle
East conflicts, and delivered an encouraging Q4 exit rate of
66.8% (Q4FY24:64.5%).

Underlying operating expenses net of otherincome

Totalunderlying operating expenses net of otherincome were
£42.6m(FY24: £39.0m) representing 61.2% of sales (FY24: 62.3%).
The growthin costs was driven by a number of key factors:

e Expensesinrelationto the twelve new stores and onerelocation
upsize opened this year and the annualisation of the two new
stores opened lastyear: +£1.7m

o Operational efficiencies realisedin the like-for-like store
estate: -£0.2m

o Payinflationandreward: +£2.5m
o Increased marketing efficiencies: -£1.4m

o Increasedvolume-related ecommerce costs: +£1.0m

Otherincome

Total otherincome of £47kin FY25 (FY24: £49Kk) related solely to
rentalincome.

Non-underlying operating expenses

Itisthe Group’s policy to disclose separately suchitems that relate
to non-recurring events and are material in nature, and incurred
outside of the normal business operations, in order to provide a
consistent and comparable view of the underlying performance
of the Group. Non-underlying operating expensesin FY25 were
£0.3m(FY24: £0.1m).

Consistent with prioryears, expensesinrespect of employee
share-based awards that relate to the IPO eventin FY22, which
itself is non-recurring, have been presented as non-underlying
costs. These expenses have concluded in FY25 with the third
anniversary of the IPO in November 2024 and the vesting of
the scheme.

InFY24, the Group initiated a restructuring of the senior
management team which finalised within FY25. The one-off costs
of £0.2m (FY24: £0.7m) have been treated as non-underlying given
their material and one-off nature.

The Group carried out animpairment assessment as at

30 March 2025, which did not resultin any expense (orreversal
of previous expense) to the Consolidated Income Statement
(2024: noimpairment recognised).
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continued

Total underlying operating profit for the period was £3.2m (FY24:
£2.1m). Ecommerce operating profitability improved from 23.5%
of revenue to 26.2% benefitting from the improved gross profit
margins and digital marketing efficiency gains. Retail profitability
remained broadly stable, reducing slightly to 20.0% of revenue
from 20.6% last year (reflecting a small dilutive effect of new
store openings before they reach maturity), also benefitting
fromimproved gross profit margins and operating efficiencies,
more than offsetting inflationary pressures. The total operating
profit from the Ecommerce and Retail channels combined was
£15.5m (FY24: £13.5m). Central costsincreased by £0.9myearon
year driven by increased bonus costs, capability investment and
inflation in both pay and other administrative costs.

£m FY25 FY24
Underlying operating profit

Ecommerce 6.7 53
Retail 8.8 8.2
Central costs (12.3) (11.4)
Total 3.2 2.1

Underlying operating profit % of

revenue
Ecommerce 26.2% 23.5%
Retail 20.0% 20.6%
Central costs (17.7%) (18.3%)
Total 4.6% 3.4%

Total reported operating profit, after the £0.3m of non-underlying
expenses set out above was £2.9m (FY24: £2.0m).

Underlying profit before tax was £1.5m (FY24: £1.0m).

During the year, there was a net expense of £1.7m (FY24: £1.2m)in
respect of financial items in the period. Financial items included
interest expenses onlease liabilities and borrowings of £1.4m
(FY24: £1.4m), and otherlosses inrespect of foreign exchange of
£273k (FY24: £114k gain).

After non-underlyingitems, reported profit before tax was £1.2m
(FY24: £0.7m). Reported profit after tax was £1.0m (FY24: £0.6m).

The effective tax rate onunderlying profit before tax was 16.3%
(FY24:16.4%).

Earnings per share

Underlying basic earnings per share for the yearincreased to 1.17
pence (FY24:0.77 pence) and underlying diluted earnings per share
increased to 1.08 pence (FY24: 0.73 pence).

Reported basic earnings per share for the yearincreased to 0.92
pence (FY24: 0.56 pence) and reported diluted earnings per share

fortheyearincreasedto 0.85 pence (FY24: 0.53 pence).

ProCook’

We have continued to carefully manage our cash position

during the year, resulting in free cash flow of £1.7m after £4.1m

of investment capital expenditure, primarily in new stores (FY24:
£2.0m, after £1.9m of capital expenditure), and a closing net cash
position of £1.0m (FY24: net debt of £0.7m) with available liquidity
headroom of £17.0m (FY24: £15.3m).

£m FY25 FY24

Reported profit before tax 1.2 0.7

Depreciation, amortisation,
impairment, and profit/loss on

disposal 5.7 3.1

Share-based payments 0.3 0.2

Finance expense 1.4 1.4

Unrealised FX (gains)/losses 0.2 (0.4)
Net working capital 2.2 3.6

Tax paid (0.0) (0.0)
Net operating cash flow 1.0 8.6

Net capital expenditure 4.0) 1.9)
Interest (1.4) (1.3)
Payment of lease liabilities (3.8) (3.4)
Free cash flow 1.7 2.0

Movementin borrowings (0.9) (2.0)
Dividends paid - -

Movementin cashand cash

equivalents 0.8 0.0

£m FY25 FY24

Cashand cash equivalents 2.8 2.0

Borrowings (1.8) (2.7)
Net cash/(debt) 1.0 (0.7)

The reported profit before taxin the yearincludes £0.3m of
non-underlying operating expenses, whichresultedin £0.4m of
cash outflow (FY24: £2.1m cash outflow).

Areductionin net working capital resulted in a cash inflow of
£2.2mintheyear(FY24: £3.6m)reflecting controlled investment
ininventory and anincreased trade payable position. Inventory
on hand at the year-end (excluding inventory in transit) was £9.7m
(FY24: £8.1m) up 19.8% year onyear as we invested ininventory
fornew stores and increased sales volumes. Total inventory at the
year-endwas £12.1m (FY24: £9.7m).

Net capital expenditure of £4.1min the year primarily related to the
opening of 12 new stores within the year. In the prioryear, net capital
expenditure of £1.9m largely related to the investmentin the new
SSCand two new stores.

As at 30 March 2025, the Group held a current tax asset of £0.1m
(FY24:£0.1m)and a deferred tax asset of £0.5m (FY24: £0.7m).
We anticipate, based on our current financial projections, that this
deferredtax asset will be utilised against taxable profits generated
within the next three financial years.

The Group has access to acommitted £10m Revolving Credit
Facility (“RCF”) to provide additional cash headroom to support
operational andinvestment activities. Additionally, the RCF
agreement provides an accordion option, subject to the lender’s
approval, to extend the facility by a further £5m.

Shortly before the year-end, on 28 March 2025, the Group
successfully arranged a one-year extension to the RCF, which
extends the expiry date out to from April 2026 to April 2027.
Additionally, the termsinrespect of leverage coverhave been
amended for Q2 test dates for FY26 and FY27 with net debt to

be no greater than 3.0x EBITDA. It remains at 2.0x for all other

test dates. The fixed charge covenant test remains unchanged,
requiring EBITDAR to be no less than 1.4x fixed charges. Both
covenants are tested quarterly and are calculated on alast 12 month
rolling, pre-IFRS 16 basis.

The Group’s ability to meet these covenants has been stress
tested as part of going concern and viability considerations, which
are describedin more detail on pages 124 to 125, and 66 to 67,
respectively.

The Group has retainedits access to an existing uncommitted
£6.0m trade finance facility, which is due to expire on

28 February 2026, althoughitis expected to be renewed at that
date. Thereis a performance KPI (inventory to payables ratio), which
is monitored on a quarterly basis; however, there are no covenants
orguarantees or other collateral associated with this facility.

Innormal circumstances, the Board currently believes that, to
ensure operating flexibility through the business cycle, it must
maintain a minimum unrestricted cash/debt headroom, which the
Boardreviews on an annual basis, or more frequently as required.
Maintaining this headroom provides a level of flexibility sufficient
to fund the working capital and investment needs of the Group
(aswell as set aside an appropriate operating reserve for
unexpected events).

The Group’s dividend policy targets an ordinary dividend pay-
out ratio of 20-30% of profit after tax during the financial year
to which the dividendrelates. The Board anticipates, under
normal circumstances, that it will consider returning surplus cash
to shareholders if average cash/debt headroom over a period
consistently exceeds the minimum headroom target, subject to
known and anticipated investment plans at the time.

The full capital and dividend policy is available on the
Group’s website at www.procookgroup.co.uk

In order to ensure that planned growth investment is self-funded,
in areas such as new stores, which will supportimproved future
profitability and cash generation, the Board is not recommending a
dividend payment for this financial year.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk throughits trading
activities. The main source of thisrelates to stock purchases from
non-UK suppliers, which accounts for, approximately, 95% of the
Group’s annual stock purchases. To manage the exchange rate
risk, a mixture of standard (“vanilla”) forwards and outperformance
trades are utilised. The Group seeks target levels of coverage for
future USD payments, as determined by internal forecasts and the
Group’s Treasury Management Policy.

Given the level of USD transactions and cover obtained via financial
instruments, the Group is exposed to a counter-party risk with each
of the financial institutions where arrangements are held. The Group
manages this risk by ensuring only highly credited institutions are
used and limiting the level of exposure with each.

The Group s also exposed tointerest rate risk where the Group has
financial obligations that giverise to a variable interest charge. To
minimise the charges and exposure driven by interest rates, the
Group ensures that credit facilities are used optimally in parallel with
the latestinterest rate information and forecasts.

The Group’s tax policy is to manage its tax affairs in aresponsible
and transparent manner in line with our commitment to high
corporate governance standards. This ensures the Group complies
with the relevant legislation and has due regard to our reputation
and, thus, seeks to promote the long-term success of the Group
and deliver sustainable shareholder value.

A full copy of the Tax Strategy is available on the Group’s
website at www.procookgroup.co.uk

Chief Financial Officer
24 June 2025



ProCook’

Risk management

Geopolitical tensions remain high this year, with ongoing conflicts in Ukraine and Risk management framework
Gaza and significant changesin US global trade policy continuing to dominate the

news cycle, impacting supply chains and consumer confidence. This uncertain world Board
highlights the importance of developing and maintaining effective risk management
processes. During the year, we have continued to develop ourinternal controls and our
risk management framework to improve our ability to effectively manageriskandin

readiness forthe FRC’s 2024 updates to the Corporate Governance Code.

Audit and
Risk Committee

Executive Directors Risk
and Leadership Team process owners

Drives and coordinates
local risk assessment
and compliance with risk
management processes

Ultimately responsible for the
Group’srisk management
systemandreviewingits
effectiveness

Responsible for the oversight Day-to-day responsibility for
of riskmanagement processes  risk management activities,
and controls processes, and controls

e Examines andreviews the e Ensuresthe day-to-day

Approach to risk management

Risk managementis anintegral part of the
effective governance and management of the
Group, and we continually develop and evolve
ourriskmanagement framework and associated
processes. The Board is ultimately responsible
for determining the level of risk the Group is
willing to take to achieve its strategic objectives
and enhance the sustainability of value creation,
including risks that may threaten our business
model, future performance, solvency, orliquidity.
The Board takes abalanced view onrisk to ensure
an appropriate position betweenrisk aversion,
opportunity, and gains.

The Audit and Risk Committee, with delegated
authority from the Board, isresponsible for

the oversight of the Group’s risk management
processes and controls. The Executive Directors
and Leadership Team (“LT”) have responsibility
forday-to-day risk management activities,
processes, and controlsin theirrespective
functions, and support the Audit and Risk
Committee in executing theirresponsibility by
ensuring that control processes are operating
effectively, risks are beingidentified and
monitored, any control weaknesses are identified
andresolved, and changesin therisk environment
are being considered.

The Group’s approachis set outin our Risk
Management Policy, whichis reviewed annually
by the Board to ensure it remains relevant and
appropriate. The risk management and control
procedures set outin the Risk Management
Policy form part of the Group’s management and
governance processes:

The Group’s Risk Management
Policy is available online

Read more:
www.procookgroup.co.uk

Identification

Review

Communication and Training

Risks are identified through both a top-down approach (strategic risks) as well
as abottom-up (functionalrisks) approach. Principal risks are identified by the
Board andrisk appetites are considered and set. Functional risks are identified
by LT members or delegates. The Board carefully considers the risks it is willing
to take to achieve strategic objectives. New and emerging risks are assessed
and determined. The procedure seeks to capture top-down strategic risks
and well as bottom-up operational risks.

Strategicrisks are assessed on at least a sixmonthly basis during LT meetings. The
principalrisks are revisited and if necessary, updated on a semi-annual basis, in

line with the financial reporting timetable. Functionalrisks are assessed by the LT
members or delegates, through maintenance of the risk and control register. The
Risk Registeris reviewed for completeness onaregular basis andincludedin the LT
meeting agendas. The Board will complete an annual horizon scanning exercise.

Risks are recorded in the Risk Register by LT members or delegates (risk
owners). Everyrisk on the registeris allocated to anindividual and appropriate
controls are identified and, where necessary, remedial actions are identified.
Risk managementis embedded in the business operations and functions.
The process allows colleagues and the Board to monitorrisk, as well as
demonstrating a shared responsibility for the management of risks.

The Risk Registers and management of risk is monitored and reviewed as part
of the LT meeting cadence. Reports over strategic risks and functional risks are
generated periodically on no less than a semi-annual basis with support from
the Finance team to the LT and from the LT to the Audit and Risk Committee
and the Board.

Each Audit and Risk Committee meeting receives an update onrisk topics and
internal controls and no less than once a year the Board carries out a review of
the risk management process and assesses whether any improvements are
necessary. The Board re-evaluates risks measures and determines if controls
are appropriate, taking into account business planning. The Board completes
anannualreview of risk appetite.

The Leadership Team, operational and Group functions receive training and
support, and have access to external resources where necessary.

e Establishesand
communicates the Group’s
Risk Management Policy

o Setsthetone and culture D
formanagingrisk across
the Group

e Reviews overall Group D
principalrisks at least
annually

o Setstherisk appetite of
the Group

o Ensuresresponsibility for o
specificrisks are allocated
toindividual Executive
Directors

e Performsanannual o
horizon-scanning exercise
foremerging risks

o Considersrecommendations

from the Audit and Risk
committee

Group’srisk registerand
internal control environment
atleasttwice ayear

Reports to the Board
onthe status of the risk
management processes

Provides guidance onrisk
and control improvements

Highlights where minimum
expected standards are
not met

Makes recommendations
to the Board about

any requirements for
independent assurance

Maintains relationships with
the independent Auditor
receiving theirreports on
the control environment
and any recommended
improvements

effectiveness of risk
management activities

Responsibility forrisk
prioritisation, identification,
and assessment at
Functional level

Reviews risk assessments,
sharing relevant material
to the Audit and Risk
Committee/Board

Completes anannual
horizon-scanning exercise
foremergingrisks

Reviews the Group’srisk
register on a quarterly basis

Develops functional risk
registers aligned to principal
risks where appropriate and
required, ensuring regular
review of the performance
of mitigating controls

Takes action toimprove the
overall control environment,
increasing mitigating
activities where necessary

o Actively shares knowledge

and best practice through
contact with other
functionalleads

Acceptsresponsibility
fortherisk, its evaluation,
monitoring it and reporting
its status

Coordinates and
contributes to the
development and
maintenance of an
appropriate control
environment, and reporting
the ongoing effectiveness
of controls

In combination with the Risk
Register Owner, updates
therisk report to show the
current status

Group risk appetite statement

The Boardisresponsible for setting
therisk appetite for the Group and
does so taking into consideration the
expectations of its stakeholders and
members as awhole. The Group’s

risk appetite statement provides
auseful guide to inform strategic
decision-making, facilitate the review
of riskmanagement, and to set targets
against whichrisk objectives must be
progressed.

We are generally more opento
strategic and operational risks,
recognising the clear growth
opportunity ahead, and the need
to test and trial new ideas and ways
of working. In these areas, we have
moderate or higherrisk appetite.

"1
. ”

We are more cautious withregard

to financial, regulatory compliance,
Technology, data and cybersecurity,
people and culture, and climate
changerisks. Inthese areas, we have a

lowerrisk appetite.

The Group has a very low appetite for
risks that could damage ourbrand and
reputation, including the healthand

safety of all our colleagues, customers,
suppliers, and any non-compliance to
our policies and procedures.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Inaccordance with the Group’s Risk Management Policy, the Board has undertaken
adetailed review of the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties, including new or
emergingrisks, and those that could damage our business model, or adversely impact our
operational activities or financial performance and position.

There are two current overarching macro themes that continue to have a significantimpact on the level of risk that the Group currently
faces. These are geopolitical tensions and conflict, which include the wars in Ukraine and the Middle East, and US trade policy, and ongoing

depressed consumer confidence in the UK prolonging spend caution, despite some pressures on householdslesseningin the
last12 months.

These have broad-ranging impacts across our principal risks and uncertainties, and, therefore, have not been presented as individual
principal risks themselves.

1 Geopolitical tensions

Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and Israel’s
war on Hamas continue to bring
uncertainty to the macro-environment,
with ongoingimpacts on consumer prices

to continue to evolve throughout the year, o FarEast suppliersreducing production
presenting direct and indirect risks for capacity due to lessened US demand

the Group:  Heightened geo-political tension

« Inflationary pressures directly impacting and instability could lead to more

Changes to our principal
risks and uncertainties

The two macro themes set out previously
have resulted in changes to either the
likelihood orimpact (or both) of the
principal risks that the Group faces. After
the effect of existing or new mitigating
internal control activities, the Board
considers that the residualrisk has,
therefore, marginally decreasedin two
of the principal risks, and has increased
intwo:

With the resulting globalimpacts
of US trade policy still remaining
uncertain and limited progress
achieving lasting ceasefire
agreements in the two major
conflicts which continued
throughout the year, competition,
market and macro-economic
risks remain heightened and have
increased yearonyear

Supply chainrisk has decreased,
with theimpacts on Red Sea
shipping routes from Middle East
instability now betterunderstood,
builtinto shipping schedules, and
with additional internal controls put
in placein the year mitigating some

of the ongoing heightened inherent

riskin this area

»

Increasing activity and
sophistication of cybercriminals,
with sizeable impacts seen at other
retailers fromransomware attacks,
drives anincreased likelihood of
technology platforms, data loss
and cybersecurity risk

Regulatory compliance risk
reduces, with continued
improvement ininternal processes
and strengthening of policies since
last year’s assessment

and shipping routes as the Gaza conflict
createsinstability in the wider Middle
East. Additionally, since the change
inadministrationinthe United States
there have been significant policy shifts
towards an America-first trade policy,
with uncertainty around the potential of
retaliatory tariffs adding volatility to the
currency markets. We expect these risks

2 Consumer confidence

business operations and profitability

o Inflationary pressuresimpacting
customers’ disposable income and
behaviour

o Politicaluncertainty impacting
consumer shopping behaviour

o Disruption and potential for higher costs
when shipping goods to the UK

widespreadregional or global conflicts
Increased foreign exchange volatility

Increased threats to cybersecurity as
warfare continues to evolve into new
arenas

Despite somewhat reducing pressures on
discretionary spendinthe UK, and aninitial
improvement in consumer confidence
indices afterthe general election last
summer, uncertainty and negative
Government messaging around the Budget
in October depressed confidence figures
again. Together with sticky inflation, giving
continued pricerises particularly in utilities,
council tax and motoring costs, a slowdown
inthe Bank of England rate cutting cycle,
and arisk of price increases due to tariffs,

public expectations of economic health
overthe next 12 months are reducing. We
foresee that this couldimpact us via:

o Inflationary pressures on our cost base
including fuel, energy, wages, food, raw
materials in product costs

o Reductionsinconsumer spending,
either due toincreases in essential
costs orwider uncertainty increasing
propensity to save, impacting trading
performance

Foreign exchange volatility and
heightened cost of debt

Increased retail selling prices to partly
mitigate cost growth, furtherimpacting
trading performance

Increased competition to acquire
customers, particularly through direct
paid media marketing channels

Emergingrisks

The Board have carefully considered the principal
risks and uncertainties, and whether there are any new
emerging risks which the Group faces. The principal
risks and uncertainties are not exhaustive, and the
Group may be exposed torisks wider than those
listed, including risks not currently known oridentified,
or currently deemed to be less material, whichmay
alsohave an adverse effect on our activities.

Awareness of emerging risks isimportant to support
strategic planning and decision-making, and to
identify mitigating actions and controls which may
be required as events andrisks evolve. This year,

the Board considers to key emerging risks and
uncertainties to be:

o FarEasternsourcingreliance, withimpacts on
factories uncertain as high US tariffs and retaliatory
measures having the potential to significantly
change the balance of these major economies,
and ongoing geopolitical tensions between
China and Taiwan

» Alandthe heightened pace of technological
change giving both opportunities to the Group but
the risk of competitors leveraging improvements
faster ormore effectively

o Further UK Government policy changes, with
manifesto pledges to notincrease tax onindividual
taxpayers meaningin the October Budget that
requirements to increase Treasury revenues were
met by businesses such as by increasing National
Insurance costs. We consider that further cost
increases or the removal of reliefs may be used
in order to meet the Fiscal Rules, withimpacts on
profitability and/or tax burden for the Group

Principal risk heatmap

The heat map diagramillustrates the Board’s assessment of the principal
risks and uncertainties, and theirmovement year on year after the effect of

existing or new mitigating internal control activities:

Likelihood

o
10

Impact

FYZS:‘Strategic ‘Operational ‘Financial and compliance

FY24:"  Strategic Operational @ Financial and compliance
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Continued

How our principal risks and uncertainties link to our strategy
The table below highlights how our principalrisks and uncertainties link with our strategic priorities, as set out on pages 12 to 23.

ProCook’

Ref Principalrisks and uncertainties ChangevsFY24
1 Strategy and business change No change
2 Competition, market and macro-economic Increase

3 Brand and customer No change
4 Climate change No change
5 Supply chain Decrease
6 Technology platforms, dataloss and cybersecurity Increase

7 Marketing effectiveness No change
8 People and culture No change
9 Financial and treasury No change
10  Regulatory compliance Decrease

Strategicrisks

1 Strategy and business change

Ouirfailure to identify and successfully execute appropriate strategies to develop and grow the brand over the mediumtolong term
could be affected by arange of factors, including changes in competition or products, consumer behaviours and trends, inadequate
change management orleadership. This could slow or limit the growth of the business, distract from and/or damage the overall
customer proposition, incur additional cost, or serve to demotivate colleagues if not led effectively.

Ri

sk appetite

Open (moderate to high)

Link to strategy
[1]203]4]

Board oversight

Annual Board strategy
planning day and 3-5 year
financial plan review
Periodic strategic progress
updates

Rotational deep dive

strategy sessions at each
Board meeting

Context and potential risk impacts
There are currently three business-critical strategic
programmes underway, including:

1. Expanding our UK store network

2. Enhancing customer experience online

3. Supply chain transformation

Each of these have theirowninherent risks and
require effective programme management and

leadership to deliver alongside the full strategic
programme, at pace, on time and within budget

@\ Read more: Our strategy on pages 03 to 67

Potential riskimpactsinclude:

o Failure to meet financial or other non-financial
targets

¢ Reduced orlimited business growth

o Disruptionto core business operations which
couldimpact performance

o Failure toretain colleagues, orloss of colleague
engagement

o Lossof focusoncore business activities

o Delaysinstrategy execution may lead to aloss
of investor confidence

Mitigations

Medium to long-term business strategy is
developed andreviewed by the Board at
least annually

Steering Groups established for key
projects reporting to the Board

Clear accountability for strategic
executionis delegated to the Executives
and progress monitored by the Board

Experienced leadership and development
of the Leadership Team within a
performance and growth culture

Use of external expert advisors to support
strategy development and execution
where appropriate

Use of trial/experimentation
methodologies for agile change
programmes to monitor change impacts

2 Competition, market, and macroeconomic

Ouir failure to adapt to changing consumer needs given external macro factors, and to maintain a compelling customer offer compared
to competitors could limit or reduce profitability and opportunities for growth. Macro-economic factors which reduce consumer
confidence and/or disposable incomes or create additional cost pressures could impact revenue growth and profit generation.

Risk appetite
Open (moderate)

Link to strategy
[1]2]

Board oversight

L]

Monitoring market
share, competitor, and
customer data

Reviewing and challenging
sales performance and cost
base efficiency in periodic
Boardreports

Developing and monitoring
strategic and operational
action plans

Context and potential risk impacts
Consumer confidence in the UK remains low and
isimpacted by uncertainty around global trade,
escalating geopolitical tensions, and doubts
around the speed of economic recovery. While the
kitchenware market remains stable, the number of
competitors continues to increase and previously
US-bound volumes from China may be redirected
to the UK market at a discount, oraccess to China-
produced goods (on which the Group is heavily
reliant), could become restricted

Potential risk impactsinclude:

e Reduced profitability and inhibited growth
opportunities

o Loss of market share to competitors

e Pricingvolatility in costs such as fuel, energy,
raw materials, marketing, shipping and labour

e Reduced new customer acquisition
o Slowerrepeat purchase frequency
e Loweraverage transactionvalues

o FXandinterestrate volatility orhigher costs

Mitigations

o Strongandvaried LT and Board, with
experience across various markets and
experience from previous macro-events

e Focus onexceptional value and
high-quality service with KPIs monitored by
the Leadership Team

¢ Continual monitoring of market
performance, and competitor activity
including pricing and promotions

o Continued focus on customerlens through
NPS metrics and customer focus group

¢ Investmentintechnology and supply
chain capabilities toimprove customer
experience

o Regularrangerefreshto attract new and
repeat business with 278 new products
launchedinFY24

e Retained “Which?” certificationand
obtained B Corp status, focusing on
customer demand for sustainable,
high-quality products

o Comprehensive foreign exchange hedging
policy and robust coverage in future
periods

e Prudent cash managementand
preservation to minimise debt
interest costs

¢ |dentification of business efficiencies, and
close working with suppliers to mitigate
cost pressures

Link to 1 Accelerate profitable 2 Improve operating 3 Create agreat place 4

strategy sales growth

Risk impact change
yearonyear

towork

¢ Increase

efficiency

= NoChange

Be aforce forgood

4; Decrease
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Continued

3 Brand and customer = 4 Climate change =

Reputational damage leading to loss of consumer confidence in ProCook products or services, which could be caused by a variety
of factorsincluding customer data loss, product quality, health and safety, level of direct marketing activity, ethical or sustainability
concerns, poor customer service, orregulatory non-compliance.

Risk appetite
Cautious (low)

Link to strategy
(1]3]4]

Board oversight

« Monitoring market
share, competitorand
customerdata

Reviewing and monitoring
Trustpilot review KPIs
and data

Regular technology updates
and review of Disaster
Recovery plans

Review and approval of the
ESG strategy

Context and potential risk impacts
Therisk of reputational damage to the brand is
considered similar to last year, with strong service
metrics and multiple external product awards,
togetherwith reduced discount messaging,
improving brand strength.

The inherent risk remains given the macro
conditions that consumers choose to divert
discretionary spend away from kitchenware
products while cost-of-living pressures persist
Potential riskimpacts include:

o Lowernew customer acquisition

o Loss of existing customers and repeat
business, and lower life-time value

o Reducedrevenue growth and lower profitability
o Loss of market share to competitors

« Lowercolleague retention due to adecreasein
engagement with the brand

Mitigations

Rigorous product quality testing and
certification, accompanied by strong
warranties. Robust supplier selection with
Sedex monitoring to ensure strong ethical
and environmental compliance through
audits of labour standards, health and
safety and environmental assessments

Technology vulnerability and penetration
testing with continual security capability
improvement, Payment Card Industry and
Data Protection compliance

Colleague code of conduct and business
culture, monitoring colleague engagement
and Glassdoorratings

Monitoring of brand health metrics
including Trustpilot reviews and NPS in our
customer focus group

Continued focus on sustainability
recognised with B Corp certification

Any failure to implement our ESG ambitions within acceptable timescales and deliver on stakeholder expectations to reduce the
environmentalimpact of our business and progress towards our net zero targets. These include actions linked to our ESG strategy and
managing any potential adverse consequences of climate change on our business. Failure to meet the expectations of our customers,
colleagues, investors and other stakeholders, may impact our brand reputation and future trading performance.

Risk appetite
Cautious (low to moderate)

Link to strategy

Board oversight

o Deepdivereview sessions on
ESG provide opportunity to
challenge

e Review and approval of the
ESG strategy

Context and potential riskimpacts
ProCook remains committed to reducing our
environmentalimpact andraising awareness of
climate change across our stakeholder groups

As we transition towards alow-carbon economy
there are a variety of potential risks to strategy
execution and financial performance including:

o Increasing frequency of natural disasters, which
could impact our operations, including our
supply chain

¢ Legaland compliance changes, which may
disrupt our operations andincrease costs
(including taxation)

e Reputational damage due to insufficient
progress or compliance failure, which could
alsoresultinlower colleague engagement

e Changesincustomers preferences that may

require product or proposition changes, which
couldincrease costs

Mitigations

Focus at Board, Executive and Leadership
Team. ESG Committee meets quarterly

to oversee progress. Green Team meets
monthly toimplement actions and
generate new ideas

ESG strategy developed by ESG
Committee and ESG Director and
approved by the Board

Departmental sessions to engage
colleagues with our net zeroroadmap

Continued partnership with Ecologito
mitigate unavoidable ScopeTand2 CO,
emissions

B Corp certification awarded in September
2022, working towards September 2025
recertification

Electric vehicle fleet for allcompany
cars and colleague salary sacrifice
scheme, renewable energy sourcesinall
UK locations, BREEAM-certified Store
Support Centre

Removal of allunnecessary product
packaging (including single-use plastic)
acrossourrange

Comprehensive environmental
management systemin place for
monitoring water, waste, energy and CO,,
emissions

Environmental marketing to promote
sustainable choices

Link to 1 Accelerate profitable 2 Improve operating 3 Create agreat place

strategy sales growth

Risk impact change
yearonyear
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ProCook’

Principal risks and uncertainties

Continued

Operationalrisks

5 Supply chain 6 Technology platforms, dataloss and cyber security
Failure to source products effectively and efficiently, potentially relating to geopolitics surrounding Far East manufacturing reliance, Any failure to develop and maintain appropriate technology to support operations, including the timely adoption of newer technologies
orto ensure inventory is maintained in the right volumes at the right locations could adversely impact our short and medium-term (suchas Artificial Intelligence, Machine Learning and Robotics), or the loss of key platforms or data due to cyber-attacks or other
operational and financial performance. failures without an adequate response, could lead to reputational damage, fines or higher costs, or aloss of stakeholder and customer
confidenceinourBrand.
Risk appetite Context and potential risk impacts Mitigations
Open (moderate) The Group sources products from established « Continuous communication with product Risk appetite Context and potential riskimpacts Mitigations
Link to strategy suppliers around the world, with the majority of and freight suppliers Cautious (low) Robust technology systems are vital to support o Robust security procedures, policies and
nan products sourced from Far East manufacturers, « Earlier ordering of product intake during Link to strategy our business operationsincluding inventory protocols established, and strengthened
andimports them directly to our Distribution periods of manufacturing and shipping nnn and supply chain management, recording furtherinlight of recent competitor
Board oversight Centreinthe UK fromwhere we despatch disruption and processing customer transactions, and in attacks, including disaster recovery plans
i i i roducts to couriers forhome delivery or to our . i analysing performance results and customer data and system documentation
* Deep dive review sessions P | y « Robustinventory management Board 0Y9r3|ght . ysingp Y
on supplylcham provide retail stores including intake planning and availability o Deep dive review sessions The increasing sophistication and frequency of « Highlevel of system monitoring and
opportunity to challenge The geo-political tensions between China and optimisation. Monitored by weekly reviews onTechnologyroadmapand  malicious cyber activity, including targeting of UK “on-call” procedures support high level of
« Review and discussion of US continue, and may escalate further, and the with Leadership Team strategy provide opportunity retailers in recent months heightensinherent riskin system up-time (>99.9% in FY25)
Stock and Supply Chain UK government orlconsumermayforceashnl‘tln « Use of well-established outbound tochallenge thisarea « Testand deployment and change
Reports eachBoardmeeting  the Group’s sourcing strategy away from China suppliers with monthly performance review  Review and discussion of Ourreliance on third parties to provide technical management procedures established for
which could be disruptive and/orincrease costs meetings Technology and Cyber services including hosting and digital technology technology deployments
forthe Grou i i . .
p o . « Ournew central Distribution Centre brings Securlty Report eachBoard presents risks that we do not have full control over « External expertise utilised to support
The Israel war on Hamas and conflictin the wider inventory into one location and has added TSEHE] « Loss of access or functionality could resultin system monitoring, Data Protection and
Middle East continue to mean shippingis avoiding capacity for growth  Approval of Tech Strategy loss of revenue and/or reputational damage Payment Card Industry compliance
the Suez Canal, but the longer transit times are now ire sianifi i - .
> ong : . « Product supplier base exceeds 100 eachyearandregular and could require significant investment to « Regularly perform vulnerability scanning
builtinto schedules and initial cost inflation has PP monitoring of development remediate . .
; ; - established suppliers providing flexibilit and penetration testing procedures to
subsided, reducing related risk compared to ppliersp 9 y roadmap delivery . . . .
L . and resilience « Lossof customer data could cause reputational assess status and identify security and
last year, however, supply chainrisk could still ) . I .
: . . . damage, impact our operations and/ orresult systemresilience improvements to make
manifest via: o Operationalresilience through the use of . . . e .
. . . in breach of regulations with potential financial
« Delaysin product shipments could lead to multiple outbound suppliers for both Retail penalties
inventory shortages, availability issues and and Ecommerce orders protecting against Delaved or Unsuccessful implementation of
. . L]
possible loss of revenue network disruption Y P

new technologies as our business evolves and

i i Review of near-shor rcin tential, _ .
* Increased costs frominput or raw material ¢ ineclu(ijino miaetirsw (\)Ni;oitcen?i:a;an: U becomes even more digitally led could disrupt
costs, and/ or higher costs of shipping, could ; 9 9 P business operations, slow the pace of strategic
reduce gross margins, or require increased suppliers progress, or result in higher costs

selling prices, which may reduce revenue

o Delaysinorder shipment to customers may
damage the overall customer experience and
impact brand reputation

+ Geo-political tensions or future wars or
pandemics may impact our ability to source
products of sufficient quality, when needed
and at the right price

e Higherinventory levels maylead toincreased
costs of storage and logistics and lower free
cash flow

Link to 1 Accelerate profitable 2 Improve operating 3 Create agreat place 4

strategy sales growth efficiency towork ORISR

Risk impact change
yearonyear

= NoChange ¢ Increase 4; Decrease




Principal risks and uncertainties

Continued

7 Marketing effectiveness

ProCook’ Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2025

The Group’s future performance depends on customer acquisition and retention with cost-efficient marketing spend, appropriate
creative messaging and relevant media mix. Any failure to attract new customers and retain existing customers in a cost-effective and
engaging way could impact short-term performance and medium-term strategic growth ambitions.

8 People and culture

Any failure to attract, retain and develop the right talent, skills and capabilities or to successfully protect and develop our culture could
impact operational activities, including customer service and our longer-term strategic objectives.

Risk appetite
Cautious (moderate to high)

Link to strategy
1

Board oversight

Monitoring and challenging
performance across
customer andrelevant
financial KPIs

Regular deep dive sessions
on customer and marketing
activity

Reviewed and approved the
brand purpose and customer
promise framework

Context and potential risk impacts
ProCook has a significant opportunity to grow
brand awarenessin the UKand expand our
customer base. Effective marketing activity is
critical to achieve this

Competition to attract and convert customers can
resultin higher costs of marketing andincreased
promotional activity and discounting. While
consumer confidence remains low, customers

are likely to be more price-driven and take greater
consideration prior to purchase which could have
the following potentialimpacts:

o Failure to attract new customers and
successfully grow brand awareness could limit
the achievement of our strategic objectives

o Lower marketing effectiveness (eitherin
engagement or cost) could result inlower
revenue from fewer new customers or falling
repeat rates, and higher costs/lower profits

¢ Increased promotional discounting, or higher
frequency of communications could deter
certain customers and has the potential to
damage brand reputation

Mitigations

The Group ensures the CEO and Marketing
Director sign off key messaging and spend
within a defined budget

Monitoring of detailed marketing metrics
against budgets, including Return On Ad
Spend (“ROAS”) and Cost per Acquisition
(‘CPA")

Communications Framework established
to sign off customer messaging

Attracted 737,000 new customers
during FY24, grew our number of active
customers (L12M) to in excess of 1,100,000

Refinement of our brand purpose and
propositionto provide a “North Star” for all
marketing activity

Continually assess, test and trial new
recruitment channels, while optimising our
paid media mix

Established CRM platform, which acts

as email service provider to consolidate
activity and improve retention capability
through segmentation and data analytics

Risk appetite
Cautious (low)

Link to strategy
(1]2]3]4

Board oversight

Deep dive review sessions on
people and culture strategy
provide opportunity to
challenge

Review and discussion of
People Report each Board
meeting

Review of annual
engagement score
results and associated
improvement plans

Designated NED attends
Colleague Advisory Panel
and reports to the Board

Succession planning
reviewed by the Nominations
Committee

Context and potential risk impacts
ProCook employs over 600 committed and
talented colleagues. Creating a great place to
work, and protecting our culture is critical to our
continued success in attracting andretaining top
talent

Currentand potential colleagues continue to show
greater preference forroles with purpose and
greater flexibility to support their own life choices

Key risks include:

o Loss of existing expertise and knowledge which
couldimpact operations or delivery of strategic
objectives

¢ Increased risk of cost growth through total
reward inflation due to macro-factors

o Higherlevel of colleague absence orreduction
in colleague engagement could impact our
operations and customer service

Mitigations

o Monitoring of colleague engagement,
turnover and other metrics by the
Leadership Team and Board

o Established annual appraisal reviews,
objective setting and performance related
reward

e Continuedinvestmentinlearning and
development programmes, and personal
development plans

e Leadership training programme
establishedin FY24, with two cohorts now
having completed

o Established Code of Conduct explained to
allnew starters

o Comprehensive policiesincluding
Diversity and Inclusion, Mental Health
and Well-being, Stress, and Menopause
policies

o Clearly defined business values to help
protect and develop our culture

e Continued commitment to fairreward
including the Real Living Wage
¢ Awarded Great Place to Work™

certification for a fourth consecutive year
inFY25

Link to 1
strategy

sales growth

Risk impact change
yearonyear

Accelerate profitable 2

Improve operating 3

efficiency towork

¢ Increase

= NoChange

Create agreatplace 4

Be aforce forgood

4; Decrease




Principal risks and uncertainties

Continued

Financial and compliance risks

9 Financial and treasury

ProCook’

Any failure to effectively manage our financial affairs and ensure an appropriate financial position and sufficient liquidity for future
growth, or any failure in financial planning, financial reporting, compliance with tax legislation, or the maintenance of a robust financial
control environment, could impact our ability to deliver our strategic objectives, as well as have an adverse impact on business viability.

10 Regulatory compliance and corporate responsibility

Any failure to comply with legal and regulatory obligations, or our wider corporate responsibility could result in financial orlegal
exposures, ordamage to our reputation with our Stakeholders, as aresponsible brand.

Risk appetite
Cautious (low)

Link to strategy
(112314

Board oversight

CFOreportsreviewed and
discussed at each Board
meeting

Annual budget and re-
forecasts reviewed and
approved by the Board

Audit and Risk Committee
reviews financial control
framework and risk
management framework

Various policies reviewed
and approved by the Board
including Treasury Policy and
Capital Allocation Policy

Context and potential risk impacts

The macro-environment continues to require
greaterlevel of focus on cash, foreign exchange
management, covenant management, and
forecasting and reporting. We continue to focus
on these ensuring that we have appropriate
liquidity headroom, to support our operational
performance and strategic objectives

Continued FX volatility is likely given the geo-
political environment, including US trade policy,
and while inflation and interest rates have fallenin
the yearthe pace of theirreduction has slowed

Other potential riskimpacts include:

¢ Inaccurate oruntimely financial reporting may
result in misguided decision- making impacting
future performance

« Non-compliance with regulatory requirements
including tax could resultin fines or penalties
and damage our reputation

o Failurein financial controls couldresultinloss
of business assets or higher costs reducing
profitability

o Loss of business flexibility if insufficient liquidity
headroom maintained to support working
capital orinvestment decisions

Mitigations

Establishedrelationships with banking
partner with £10m available RCF undrawn
atyear-end and movement to net cash
position from prior net debt positionyear
onyear

External professional support utilised
where required for technical advice

Foreign exchange hedging undertaken
to help mitigate risk of volatility within
approved Treasury Policy

Robust approach to budgeting and
forecasting throughout the year

Financial Position, Prospects and
Procedures documentation reviewed
annually by the Board

Finance Risk Register and process
documentation established and
continually developed

Continual focus on strengthening financial
controlsincluding process automation and
systemsintegration

Risk appetite
Cautious (low)

Link to strategy
(1[2]3]4]

Board oversight

Corporate governance
topics reviewed and
discussed at each Board
meeting

CFOreports to the Board
onany key internal policy
changes seeking approval
where needed

Audit and Risk Committee
review regulatory risks as
part of risk management
procedures

Context and potential risk impacts
We are committed to compliance with all relevant
regulations

The legal andregulatory landscape in which

we operate remains stringent and is subject to
frequent changes and updates, which require us to
adapt our operational and compliance procedures

Any failure to remain compliant couldresultina
range of potential riskimpactsincluding:

o Adverse publicity, which could damage
customer or other stakeholder confidence, and
potentially impact revenue growth, profitability
orfunding

e Finesorotherpenalties fornon-compliance,
orcostsinrelationto any legal proceedings or
remedial actions

o Potentialinjury orloss to a colleague, customer
orother stakeholder (particularly in the event of
aHealthand Safetyissue)

o Loss of focus onbusiness operations and
strategic objectivesin the event of a significant
compliance breach

Mitigations

Group policies and code of conduct
shared with colleagues and training
provided

External professional advice obtained on
relevant matters, e.g. GDPR, property legal
advice, employment advice, tax advice

Head of Health and Safety leads the
development of the Groups’ Health and
Safety Policy and completes site audits
and maintains incident reporting and
monitoring

Established policies and procedures

for technical topics such as Trading
Standards, WEEE, Waste Management,
Market Abuse Regulations, GDPR, PCI,
which are overseen by senior management
Company Secretary facilitates ongoing

review of governance best practice with
the Board

Link to 1

strategy sales growth

Risk impact change
yearonyear

Accelerate profitable 2

Improve operating 3

efficiency towork
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Assessing long-term viability

Inaccordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Board
of Directorsis required to assess the viability of the Group overa
longer time period thanis requiredinrespect of going concern, to
determine whetherit has areasonable expectation that it willbe
able to continue in operation and meetitsliabilities as they fall due,
andtoissue a “Viability Statement”.

As part of this assessment, the Board has considered the future
prospects of the Group by reference toits current financial
position, recent trading performance and market outlook,
forecasts and financial projections, its strategy and business
model, and its principal risks and uncertainties.

The Board has determined that a three-year viability assessment
period covering the three financial years ending March 2028
appropriately reflects the speed of change in the retail and
consumer environment andis consistent with the Group’s annual
strategic planning cycle. This time period provides areasonable
balance between the long-term nature of investments and the key
drivers of near-term business performance.

The Directors have considered the Group’s principal risks and

have assessed the impact of arange of downside scenarios,
including a severe but plausible downside scenario, onthe Group’s
expected financial performance, position and cash generation.

The scenarios have beeninformed by a comprehensive review of
the macro-economic environment, including consideration of
slowdownin the Bank of England base rate cutting cycle, reduced
yet persistentinflationary pressure, risks associated with increased
tariffs and other geo-political tensions including the impacts on our
supply chain.

Consideration has been given to the availability of facility headroom
and covenant compliance within the Group’s financing facilities, the
recently extended RCF agreement and amended leverage charge
covenant terms, details of which are as follows:

o The Group’s bank facility agreements and the associated
covenants are set outin the CFO’s Review within this report and
include acommitted £10m RCF, with a £5m accordion option to
the RCF, subject to lender approval, and anuncommitted £6m
trade finance facility.

e Onthe 28 March 2025, the Group successfully arranged a
one-year extension to the RCF, which extends the expiry date
out from April 2026 to April 2027. Additionally, the termsin
respect of leverage cover have been amended for Q2 test
datesforFY26 and FY27 with net debt to be no greater than
3.0x EBITDA. It remains at 2.0x for all other test dates. The fixed
charge covenant test remains unchanged, requiring EBITDAR to
be noless than1.4xfixed charges.

o The Group ended the financial year with net cash of £1.0m, with
£2.8m cash and cash equivalents and drawings on the trade
finance facility of £1.8m with available liquidity headroom of
£17.0m.

The base case for the scenario modelling extends from the Group’s
annual budget plan that was approved by the Board in March 2025.
Forecasts for FY27 and FY28 are based on the Group’s strategic
objectives and its medium term financial plan, which projects
forwards fromthe latest FY26 budget.

Key assumptionsinclude Ecommerce and Retail like-for-like (“LFL”)
revenue growth, gross margin performance, the financialimpacts
of opening of new stores (including capital investments and time

to maturity), operational efficiencies being delivered, investmentin
marketing activity, and the appropriate level of inventory required
to maintain strong product availability for customers.

In their consideration of the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties
the Board believes that the most likely and mostimpactful risks

that the Group faces are those surrounding geopolitical tensions
and the resulting macro-economic factors, including supply chain
disruptionrisk, and depressed consumer confidence having the
potential to drive alonger time reduction in demand and aresulting
increase in competition within the kitchenware market.

The Board has reviewed the potential downside impact of these
risks unfolding, modelled under a number of scenarios including
asevere but plausible downside scenario, which reflected the
following assumptions:

¢ Asignificant reductionin customer demand and shopping
frequency, caused by continued disposable income pressures
and consumer caution inlight of economic uncertainty, and
additional costimpacts driven by continued supply chain
disruption associated with the Suez Canal diversions and other
geo-political tensions. The impacts of these factors have been
reflectedin a10% lower revenue performanceinthe FY26
year compared to base case, increasing to a15% decreasein
FY27 and an18% decrease in FY28, combining to reflect a 62%
reduction in Group revenue growth over the assessment period
compared to the base case.

o Fewernew store openingsinbothFY27 and FY28 are included
on the basis that there would be lower management confidence
of positive return oninvestment from such openings.

e Areductioningross marginsin FY26 of -100bpsincreasing to
-200ps forboth FY27 and FY28 compared to the base case to
reflect the risk of heightened supply chain costs and potential
increased promotional requirements to stimulate demandina
more competitive market.

Under this severe but plausible downside scenario, and before
mitigating actions, the Group would remain withinits available
borrowing facilities throughout the assessment period and remain
compliant with all covenants related to its banking arrangements.

The Board has also reviewed areverse stress test, which has
been appliedto the base case model to determine the level of
sales decline that would result in a breach of financial covenants.
Areductioninrevenue, with no mitigations applied, of 12%,
compared to the base case in FY26, would be required to breach
the fixed charge covenant at the quarter two test date inFY26. A
furtherreductioninrevenue of 18% in FY27 and 21% in FY28 would
be required to breach the fixed charge covenant at the FY28 test
dates. The sales decline required to trigger a breach of the fixed
charge covenant would need to be sustained over anumber of
months, with mitigating actions available to Management, which
have not beenfactoredinto the scenario. Such a scenariois,
therefore, not considered by the Board to be reasonably likely to
occur, or to threaten the viability of the Group over the three-year
assessment period.

The Board has also considered the potentialimpacts of climate
changerisks (as set out on pages 42 to 44). These are not
considered to have a material effect on the Group’s financial
projections over the assessment period.

If any of the downside scenarios were to arise, including the
severe but plausible downside scenario and the reverse stress
test scenario, there are a series of mitigating actions that the
Group could seek toimplement to protect or enhance financial
performance and positionincluding to:

¢ Increase selling prices for products that have lower price
elasticity to help offset additional sourcing costs

¢ Increase promotional activity to accelerate trading
performance and reduce stock levels, or alternatively, reduce
promotional activity to better protect gross margins

o Reduce paid media marketing spend and postpone orreduce
other planned marketing activities

e Reduce variable costsin operational functions to reflect the
lower sales volumes

o Reduce central overhead costs (including headcount
investment) over the short or medium term

¢ Delay new store openings or capital expenditure intechnology
andlogistics

o Renegotiate or seek extended payment terms with suppliers on
apermanent or temporary basis

o Seek alternative forms of financing or new banking terms to
support working capital and investment requirements

Conclusion

The Board has undertaken a comprehensive review and
assessment of long-term viability over the period to March 2028.
Having reviewed current performance, financial projections under
avariety of scenarios related to the Group’s principal risks and
uncertainties, total facilities and liquidity (including the reduced
liquidity risk resulting from the revised leverage covenant attached
to the RCF), and debt servicing requirements, the Board expects
the Group to have adequate resources to continue in operation,
meetits liabilities as they fall due, and retain sufficient available
liquidity across all three years of the assessment period. The
Viability Statement can be found on page 112.

This Strategic Report from page 3 to 67 was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

Dan Walden
Chief Financial Officer

Lee Tappenden
Chief Executive Officer
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Chair’s governance letter

This Governance Report describes our
corporate governance structures and
processes and how they have been
applied during the financial year ended
30March2025.

As Chair, my role is to ensure that the
Boardis operationally effective, carefully
balancing best practice governance
procedures and strategic supportand
challenge to the Executive Directors (and
wider Leadership Team) to promote the
long-term success of the Group for the
benefit of all stakeholders. | seek to ensure
that Board proceedings are structured
and conductedinsuch away as to allow
all Directors to have the opportunity to
express theirviews openly and that, in
particular, the Non-Executive Directors
can provide constructive support and
challenge to the Executives.

During the last year, we welcomed Meg
Lustmanto the Board as Non-Executive
and Chair of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 25 June 2024 following
the decision by Luke Kingsnorth to step
down from the Board to focus on other
professional commitments.

More about my role, and the roles of all the
Directors and Committees, can be found
onpages72to75.

The Board maintains a detailed focus
onthe Group’s strategy and the proper
execution of the actions and initiatives
that will support progress. The strategy
was refreshed during FY24 and has been

€& The Board carefully balances
best practice governance with
strategic focus to promote

the long-term success of the

Group for the benefit of all
stakeholders.”

Greg Hodder
Chair

revisited in detail with the Executive
Directors and wider Leadership Team
during FY25 toreview progress one year
on, and to ensure the actions and strategic
priorities being pursued inthe years ahead
are those that would most likely ensure the
long-term success of the business for all
stakeholders.

Further details of our Board activities and
discussions, and how these contributed to
strategy, canbe found onpages 76 to 79.

The Board continues to review and improve
its governance framework and policies,
while monitoring changes (and their
potentialimpacts) to the UK Corporate
Governance Code, including the updates
which came into effect from January 2025
and the new Financial Conduct Authority
Listing rules which came into effectinJuly
2024. Overthe year ahead, the Board will
continue to work with external advisors

to continually assess and improve our
governance arrangementsinline with the
expectations of our stakeholders, the needs
of the Group, and best practice principles.

During February 2025, we completed an
internal evaluation of the Board and its
Committees. The purpose of the evaluation
was to review the effectiveness of the
Board, its Committees and individual
Directors. The evaluation was facilitated

via an anonymous questionnaire, through
which the Directors were able to provide
feedback onarange of mattersrelevant

to Board, Committee and individual
performance. The results were shared with
the Directors and discussed at the March
2025 Board and Committee meetings.

| am pleased that, following careful review
of the evaluationresults, we collectively
concluded that the Board and Committees
continue to operate effectively. While
cognisant of the significantly increased
diversity of the Senior Leadership Team
achieved over the last eighteen months, it
was, again, noted that the diversity of the
Board could potentially be improvedin the
future.

The 2025 AGM will take place on

10 September 2025 at ProCook,

10 Indurent Park, Gloucester, GL10 3EZ.
Shareholders are strongly encouraged to
register their proxy votes online, regardless
of whether they plan to attend the AGM

in person. Further details are included
inthe Notice of AGM, which will be sent

to shareholders within the prescribed
timescales. |look forward to meeting those
of youwho are able to attend.

Chair
24 June 2025
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Compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance
Code

The Company is required to report on
its compliance with the principles and
provisions of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”), a
copy of whichis available at www.frc.
org.uk. The Board considers that it

has compliedin full with the Code’s
principles and provisions during the
period, with the exception of Provision
11, which specifies that at least half

the Board, excluding the Chair,

should be Non-Executive Directors
whom the Board considers to be
independent. The Board acknowledges
the importance of this provision and
considers that the introduction of
Daniel O’'Neill as a non-independent
Non-Executive Director last year, which
hasled to the imbalance, remains

the right decision for the Group at

this time, given Daniel’'s unparalleled
experience as founder of ProCook.
The Boardis committed to keeping
this underreview when considering the
Board’s succession planning and future
composition.

Furtherinformation on how the
Group has complied canbe
found on the following pages:

Leadership and purpose:
pages76to 79

Division of Directors’
responsibilities: pages 74 to 75

Composition, succession
and evaluation - Nomination
Committee Report: pages
841085

Audit, risk andinternal control
- Audit and Risk Committee
Report: pages 86 to 89

Remuneration - Remuneration
Report: pages 101to 107
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Governance framework

The Board comprises the Chair, two independent Non-Executive Directors, one non-independent Non-Executive Director, and two

Executive Directors.

The Board keeps a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved forits decision. These include the approval of the annual and half-yearly
results and associated announcements, recommendation of dividends, convening of shareholder meetings, Board appointments,
strategic plans and budgets, ESG plans, significant capex proposals, acquisitions, systems of internal control and risk management and
corporate governance arrangements. No one Board member has the power to make decisions on behalf of the Board without the sanction

of the othermembers.

The Board has formally delegated specific responsibilities for audit, risk management and financial control, Board composition and
remuneration to three standing Committees, namely the Audit and Risk Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, respectively. Eachis chaired by the Chair oranindependent NED, enabling the Non-Executives to take anactive rolein
influencing and challenging the work of the Executive Directors. The Terms of Reference of the Committees are reviewed on aregular basis.

The Board has also established the Disclosure Committee to oversee the identification, management and disclosure of inside information
concerning the Group. The Committee comprises the CEO, CFO and Senior Independent Director and meets on an ad hoc basis as required.

Board responsibilities

Purpose, Mission and Strategy

Governance

Performance

« Setting, developing and role modelling
our purpose and business values

¢ Setting the strategy and mission to
deliver onthe Group’s purpose and
promote the continued performance
and growth of the Group over the long
termin the interests of all stakeholders
o Ensuring that appropriate resources

areinplace to successfully deliver the
Group’s mission and strategic priorities

« Instilling and maintaining a positive
culture that encourages strong ethical
behaviours

o Ensuring that the business control
environment is appropriate and
operationally effective, and that sound
risk management practices are in place

o Oversight of succession planning and
talentmanagement

o Setting anappropriate remuneration
policy to attract and retain talent

¢ Ensuring that appropriate information

is shared with stakeholdersina
transparent way

o Ensuring full compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code

« Reviewing performance atan
operational and strategic level

¢ Reviewing the performance of the
Board, the Executive Directors and the
Leadership Team

o Ensuring that the Boardis well equipped
with appropriate skills and expertise,
and that Committee memberships are
appropriate and effective

Board meetings

In advance of Board meetings, Board Directors are provided with an
agenda and all relevant documentationin advance in a timely manner
to assistin the discharge of their duties and to ensure that decisions are
well-informed and made in the best interests of the Group. The Board
maintains an annual agenda planner andreviews and agrees the agenda

forthe next meeting as part of each meeting agenda. If a Directoris
unable to attend a Board meeting, they always have the opportunity to
discuss any agenda items with the Chair before the meeting.

Board and Committee meeting attendance

financial year.

Conflicts of interest are managed in accordance with the procedure
described under “Directors’ conflicts of interest” on page 110.

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at relevant
meetings of the Board, Audit and Risk, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees during the year.

The Board held five formal scheduled meetings last year and also met on
anad-hoc basis as necessary. The table below summarises attendance
at the scheduled Board and Committee meetings during the year. In
addition, the Disclosure Committee met five times throughout the
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Board and Committee governance structures: How we govern

ProCook Group plc Board

The Board of Directors as at the date of this report has sixmembers comprising the Chair, two Executive Directors, two Independent
Non-Executive Directors and one non-independent Non-Executive Director.

El ForDirectors’ biographies see pages 72 to 74.

Audit & Risk Committee

Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committee

Colleague engagement NED

The Committee is made up of
two Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Committee is made up of
the Chair, and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Committee is made up of
the Chair,and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Meg Lustmanis the designated
Non-Executive Director for
Colleague Engagement

Key responsibilities:
Reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s
internal financial reporting and
internal control policies and
systems

Monitoring the integrity of the
financial statements of the Group
and any formal announcements
relating to financial performance

Overseeing the Group’s
arrangements forits people to
raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible wrongdoing
infinancial reporting or other
matters

Reviewing the Group’s
procedures for detecting fraud
and preventing bribery and
money laundering

Overseeing the effectiveness
and performance of the
external Auditor and making
recommendations to the Board
regarding theirappointment or
removal

Advising the Board onthe
Group’s overallrisk appetite,
tolerance and strategy, and
principal and emerging risks

Monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’srisk

Key responsibilities:

Reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and
diversity) of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board
withregard to any required changes

Ensuring plans arein place for
orderly succession to the Board
and senior management positions
and overseeing the development
of adiverse pipeline for succession

Reviewing the leadership needs of
the organisation, both Executive
and Non-Executive, with aview to
ensuring the continued ability of
the organisation to successfully
deliverthe Group strategy

Identifying and nominating, for the
approval of the Board, candidates
tofillBoard vacancies as and when
they arise

Evaluating the balance of

skills, knowledge, experience

and diversity on the Board,

and, inlight of this evaluation,
preparing a description of the
role and capabilities required fora
particular appointment

Reviewing the time required

from Non-Executive Directors.
Performance evaluationis used to
assess whether the Non-Executive

Key responsibilities:
Recommending to the Board
the over-arching principles,
parameters and governance
framework of the Group’s
remuneration policy

Determining, within that
framework, individual
remuneration and benefits
packages of each of the Chair,
Executive Directors and senior
management

Reviewing the design of all share
incentive plans for approval by
the Board and, where required,
shareholders

The key purpose of thisroleis to
ensure the views and concerns
of the workforce are brought to
the Board and considered.
In doing so this role seeks to:
o Understand the concerns
of colleagues by either
attending orreviewing
minutes of Colleague
Advisory Panel meetings

Articulate and share insights
from colleague feedbackin
Board meetings

Ensures the Board, and
particularly the Executive
Directors, take appropriate
steps to evaluate the

impact of proposals and
developments on colleagues
and consider what steps
should be taken to mitigate
any adverse impact

o Feedbacktothe Colleague
Advisory Panel on any
relevant Board plans or
responses to their feedback

The designated NED is not
involvedinthe company’s
whistleblowing procedure.

management framework
Directors are spending enough
time fulfilling their duties
See page 86 for See page 84 for See page 90 for See page 47 for further
the Audit and Risk the Nomination the Remuneration detailon Colleague
Committee’s Report Committee’s Report Committee’s Report Engagement

Terms of Reference for each of the Committees are available on ProCook’s website at www.procookgroup.co.uk

Name

GregHodder
Daniel O'Neill
Lee Tappenden
Dan Walden
David Stead
Meg Lustman

Luke Kingsnorth

Audit and Risk
Committee

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

Remuneration
Committee
3/3

n/a

n/a

n/a

Nomination
Committee
2/2

n/a

n/a

n/a

2/2

2/2

1/1
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Our Board of Directors

Non-Executive Chair

Chief Executive Officer

Gregwas appointed on 29 October2021

Greg brings a wealth of experience with
previous Non-Executive Directorand
CEO appointments and a history of
driving fast growth from entrepreneurial
companies with particular experiencein
e-commerce and multi-channel. Greg
has spent much of his career working
inthe retail sector, including roles as
President of New York-based company
Smallbone plc, CEO of Charles Tyrwhitt
LLP, Chair of Majestic Wines plc and
SeniorIndependent Director at Hotel
Chocolat Group.

Gregis Non-Executive Director at Jarrold
& Sons Ltd and Non-Executive Chair at
Purdy & Figg Ltd.

Board and Leadership Team diversity'

Number
of Board % ofthe
Directors Board

Male 5 83%

Lee was appointed on19 September2023

Lee Tappendenwas appointed CEO of
ProCookin September 2023, bringing
extensive leadership, retailand consumer
experience to the Group having spent over
25 years with Walmart and Asda, where
he held arange of seniormanagement
roles, and also at Amyris Inc and Boston
Consulting Group. His tenure at Walmart
includedrolesin merchandising and
operations, before becoming Chief
Operations Officer, and then President
and CEO of Walmart Canada. Lee spent
the early part of his career with Mobil Oil.

Lee holds no significant external
directorships.

Number of

senior Board

positions Numberin % of the

(CEO, CFO, Leadership Leadership
SID and Chair) Team Team

100% 3 43%

Female 1 17%

White British 100%

- 4 57%

6 86%

White Asian -

1 14%

Chief Financial Officer

Danwas appointed on 14 October 2021

Prior to joining ProCookin May 2021,
Dan was Chief Financial Officer of
Booking.com Transport. Before that,
he held several roles at Dunelm Group
plcincluding Group Finance Director
and Commercial Finance Director.
Before Dunelm, Dan held various senior
finance and commercial roles at Halfords
and Sainsbury’s. Danis a chartered
accountant, having begun his career
with KPMG.

Danholds no external directorships.

Board independence (excl. Chair)

2

Independent

3

Non-Independent

1 FY25presented as at 30 March 2025 and is consistent as at the date of this report. See page 85 for furtherinformation on Board Diversity. Ethnicity information
is collected by the Groupin voluntary colleague surveys.
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SeniorIndependent
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director (Deputy Chair
and Founder)

David was appointed on 29 October 2021

An experienced Director of companies
inthe UK retail sector, David was

Chief Financial Officer of FTSE-listed
Dunelm Group plc from 2003 to 2015.
Previous Non-Executive positions
include Non-Executive Director at

Card Factory plc, Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director of Joules Group
plc, and Non-Executive Directorand
then Chair at Naked Wines plc. Prior to
theseroles, David served as Finance
Director for Boots The Chemists and
Boots Healthcare International between
1991and 2003. Davidis a chartered
accountant, having spent the early part of
his career with KPMG.

Davidis currently Non-Executive Chair
at Highbury Square Management
Company Ltd.

Board skills and experience

Strategy
Consumer/Retail
Ecommerce

Finance
Manufacturing
General management

Marketing

Daniel was first appointed on
14 October 2021 and transitionedto a
Non-Executive role on 16 October2023

Daniel founded ProCook over 25 years
ago and was employed full-time inthe
business since then until his transition to
aNon-Executive role in October2023.
Prior to founding ProCook (originally
trading as the Professional Cookware
Company until2008) in the 1990s, Daniel
had an early careerin direct marketing
businesses, consultancy services and
software development, developing
skillsets and experiences that have
provided guiding principles to support
the development of the ProCook
business.

Daniel holds no significant external
directorships.

Non-Executive Director

Meg was appointed on 25 June 2024

Meg has over 35 years of retail
experience, and was previously CEO of
British affordable luxury brand, Hobbs.
Priorto this, she held senior positions at
many of the UK’s leading fashionretailers,
including John Lewis, Warehouse, and
Aurora/Mosaic Fashions. Megis an
experienced Non-Executive Director
having held anumber of roles with both
listed and non-listed businesses and
organisations.

Megis currently Vice Chair of Court of
Glasgow Caledonian University, Chair

of St Luke’s Hospice (Harrow and Brent)
and Non-Executive Director of Shepherd
Neame Ltd.
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Division of Directors’ responsibilities

Clear division of roles and responsibilities on the Board
The key responsibilities of the members of the Board, including the division of responsibilities between the Chairand CEO, are set outinthe

table below.

Role

Responsibilities
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Role

Responsibilities

Non-Executive Chair

The Chair’s principal responsibility is the effective running of the Board and includes:

» Ensuringthe Board, as awhole, plays a full and constructive partin the development and
determination of the Group’s strategy and overall commercial objectives

Ensuring the Board determines the nature and extent of the significant risks the Group is
willing to embrace in the implementation of its strategy

Running the Board and setting its agenda

Ensuring that all Board members are given the opportunity to share their views and
participate in the business of the Board

Encouraging allBoard members to engage in Board and Committee meetings by
drawing on their skills, experience and knowledge

Ensuring that there is effective communication by the Group withits shareholders,
including by the CEO, CFO and other Executive management

Ensuring that members of the Board develop an understanding of the views of the major
investors

Leading the annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees, and
individual Directors

Shaping the culture of the boardroom

Ensuring that the Board listens to the views of shareholders, the workforce, customers
and other key stakeholders

Senior Independent Director
(“SID”)

The SID’s principal responsibility is acting as a sounding board for the Chairman and serving
as anintermediary for the other directors and shareholders, including:

o Working with the Chair, Directors and shareholders to resolve significant or
sensitive issues

Assisting in the maintenance of the stability of the Board and Group, particularly during
any periods of stress

Taking responsibility for an orderly succession process for the Chair, working closely with
the Nomination Committee

Being available to shareholders should they have concerns that are unresolvable through
the usual channels of the Chair, CEO or other Executive Directors

o Leadingthe performance evaluation of the Chair on behalf of the other Directors

Chief Executive Officer
(“ CEO")

The CEOQ’s principal responsibility is running the Group’s business, including:

o Developing the Group’s purpose, strategy and commercial objectives, and proposing
these to the Board

o Implementing the decisions of the Board and its Committees

« Providinginput to the Board agenda, including that from other members of the
Executive team

o Conducting the affairs of the Group with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
corporate governance

o Setting anexample to the Group’s people and communicating expectations regarding
the Group’s culture

o Leadingcolleagues to achieve performance and organisational objectives
o Establishing policies thatimprove and promote the Group’s purpose, values and culture

Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“NEDs”)

The independent NEDs have been appointed for their knowledge and expertise. Their key
roleis to contribute to the strategic direction of the Group, including:

« Providing healthy debate and challenge, as well as guidance and support, to the
Executive Directors
¢ Providing anindependent sounding board to the Chair and Executive Directors

¢ Serving onthe Board Committees, with responsibility for the oversight of audit and risk,
remuneration, and composition of the Board

¢ MegLustmanis the designated Non-Executive Director for workforce engagement
(see more on page 78)

Non-independent
Non-Executive Director
(Deputy Chair and Founder)

The non-independent NED role held by Daniel O’Neill has been created to ensure that
Daniel’s unparalleled experience and knowledge of the ProCook business is retained by
the Group. This role contributes to the strategic direction of the Group, including:

¢ Providing healthy debate and challenge, as well as guidance and support, to the
Executive Directors

o Providing vast experience of the sector, market, supplier, product and customer and
sharing that knowledge with the Board as a whole

Chief Financial Officer
(ﬂ CFO !!)

The CFO is responsible for the overall planning and management of the Group’s financial
affairs, and overseeing daily operational and administrative functions of the business
including:

» Working closely with the CEO to ensure that strategic plans are underpinned by solid
financials

o Developing the Group’s budget and monitoring performance against this

Assessing the benefit of new investment opportunities and capital expenditure initiatives

Drafting the Group’s statutory financial statements and monthly management accounts

Responsibility forinternal control and risk management, in conjunction with the Audit and
Risk Committee

Assessing and enhancing the efficiency of operational processes

Ensuring that operational policies and practices drive behaviour and that appropriate
standards of governance permeate throughout the organisation
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Board activities 1]

Group purpose Strategy continued

The Boardis responsible
forleading and governing

all activities of the Group,

with overall authority for
establishing the Group’s
purpose, mission and strategy
and overseeing performance
against the strategic
objectives.

The Board sets the Group’s strategic
direction and approves the decision-
making policies of the Group. These
activities are underpinned by regular
financial reporting, provision of
information to the Board, and arobust
approach to risk management.

The Board has agreed the Group’s
purpose: Equipping everyone with the

tools to bring joy to everyday cooking.

This purpose guides the Group’s entire
strategy andis reflected throughout
the organisation’s culture.

Link to strategy and
stakeholders

Strategy

Accelerate profitable
sales growth

Improve operating efficiency

Create aneven better
place to work

Being aforce forgood

Stakeholder

Customers
. Colleagues

Suppliers

Communities

Shareholders

(1[2]3]4

During the year, the Board reconsidered
the Group’s purposeinrespect to the
principles, values and the customer
promise that ProCook aims to fulfil. The
purpose guides all the Group’s activities,
marketing and development of culture,
and was considered to stillbe relevant and
appropriate as a “North Star”.

s.172: Decision-making

At the Board strategy day, andin
subsequent Board meetings, the Board
reviewed the Group’s purpose, mission
and customer promise, and its alignment
to all stakeholderinterests and the Group’s
updated medium-term strategy. The
Board agreed that it consistently and
concisely articulated the Group’s strategic
objectives.

Following previous discussions, the
Boardreviewed plans put forward by the
Marketing Director to amplify the customer
promise with better communication for
customers, and agreed that the plans

were directionally appropriate and should
be woven through the Group’s marketing
activities.

The Board considered theimpact on
colleagues, and agreed with the Executive
Directors’ plantorevisit the purpose,
strategic objectives and customer promise
at the Managers conferencein April 2025,
and continue with the functional objective
and KPImonitoring inthe year ahead such
that all colleagues could understand how
theirrolesladderup to delivering the
Group’s purpose.

The Board maintains a detailed
focus on strategy and Board
agendas are designed to ensure
that sufficient time is dedicated
to discussing and debating those
matters critical to delivering
strategic success. During

the year, the Board received
regular strategy updates from
the Executive Directors Board
meetings, and undertook
regular deep dive reviews with
Leadership Team members
often attending, into key areas of
strategic focus.

Setting our strategy

[1]203]4]

The Boardregularly reviews and discusses
strategy throughout the year, including
atits annual strategy day where the key
strategic priorities and plans are discussed
and approved, and progress against
planned initiativesis assessed.

s.172: Decision-making

Inapproving the Group’s strategy, and
reviewing the improvementin Group
performance since it was refreshed in FY24,
the Board has considered theimpact of its
plans and activities across all stakeholders.

Market conditions and opportunities
for expansion

The Executive Directors present market
updates onaregularbasis to the Board,
allowing consideration and discussion
around market share, competitor activity
and timeliness of entering into new markets
or categories. The strategy for new product
and channel expansion opportunities is
regularly discussed at Board meetings.

s.172: Decision-making

During the year, the Board supported the
Executive Directorsin their focus on the UK
market, recognising the significant growth
opportunity ahead and ability to serve more
customers and create new employment
opportunities. Additionally the Board
supported the decision torelaunch trading
via the Amazon UK marketplace, adopting
asmall curatedrange for customers who
prefer to shopin that channel.

Expand our UK store network

[1]2]

The strategic priority to accelerate new
store openings has beenreviewed and
discussed by the Board, andregular
progress updates are provided at
eachBoard meeting on new opening
opportunities and post-opening
performance. During the year, the Board
also reviewed and agreed the Executive
Directors’ proposal to close certain stores
atlease events, that did not provide
sufficient positive benefit to business or
brand performance.

s.172: Decision-making

In considering the opening of new stores,
the Board reflected that new openings
would benefit customers, provide
employment opportunitiesinlocal
communities and generate appropriate
future returns for shareholders. The Board
has agreed appropriately robust business
case targets for opening new stores with
the Executive Directors.

Strengthening our specialist
product offer

Designing and sourcing high quality
products at every price point that are built
to last and that customers enjoy using,

is considered by the Board to be critical
to the continued success and growth

of the Group. During the year, the Board
has monitored progress on new product
development, including the new category
developmentin small kitchen electricals
and has explored the potential for further
category expansion with the Executive
Directors and the Commercial Director.

s.172: Decision-making

Consideration was given by the Board to
the impact of Daniel O’Neill transitioning
from CEO into a NED role, and recognising
Daniel’s unparalleled experience in this
area and his long-established supplier
relationships, agreed he would continue to
work with the new product development
team until such a time that fullknowledge
transferhad been completed, which was
deemed complete by October2024.

The development of the new small kitchen
electricalsrange has continued to be
closely monitored by the Board, who
recommended the Executive team to
develop strong marketing launch plans to
maximise raising of awareness amongst
customers, which has successfully been
implemented during the year.

Bestin class customer service
and experience

The Board monitors and regularly discusses
customer satisfaction metrics bothin store
and online. While performanceis strong,
asrecognised by the 5-star Trustpilot
reviews, the Board considers there to

be opportunity to improve furtherand
become famous for outstanding service,
making it easy for customers to shop with,
and has supported the recruitment of an
experienced Retail Director during the year
tolead onthisin stores.

s.172: Decision-making

At the Board strategy day, the Board
reviewed and approved the strategic
actions proposed by the Executive
Directors and Leadership Team with
respect to furtherimproving service in store
and enhancing the online experience to
benefit stakeholders.

Grow brand awareness and
engagement

The Board regularly monitors customer
acquisition andretention metrics and holds
deep dive discussions on digital and brand
marketing strategies. The opportunity
toraise awareness of the ProCook offer
remains significant.

s.172: Decision-making

The Board has monitored the performance
of further marketing trials during the year,
including the expansion of Social Marketing
activities, and reviewed and challenged the
latest plans for brand marketing as awhole
during deep-dive sessions. The Board has
supported the strategic investment and
focus around social marketing as a way

to attract more customers to discover
ProCook for the first time.

Supply chain transformation

1[2]3]

The supply chain transformation
programme, set out by the Executive
Directors at the Board strategy day last
year, has been monitored closely by the
Board, reviewing supply chain service
levels and performance KPls, alongside the
progress made in executing the strategic
actionsidentified, with a particular of
improving retail store product availability
forcustomers and reducing total
handling costs.

s.172: Decision-making

The Board, having spenttime inthe
Distribution Centre togetherwith the
Leadership Team, have approved the plans
to transform operations that will benefit
customers through greater product and
service availability, colleagues through
reduced handling time, and suppliers
throughimproved demand forecasting.

Technology

1[2]3]

As acritical enabler for performance,
growth and operations, the Boardreceives
aTechnology and Cyber-security Report
ateachmeeting and has held a deep dive
session on the Technology strategy during
the year, including supporting a external
review of existing technology architecture
to support planning for continual
improvement across the Tech stack.

s.172: Decision-making

The Technology roadmap is reviewed each
meeting by the Board and any delivery
challenges are discussed. The Board
supported the continued development

of security capability during the year
toreducerisk for stakeholders and
customers, and monitored a series of
customer and operational investments
being deployed to deliver greater customer
and colleague experience, andimproved
business efficiency.
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Board activities

Continued

Strategy continued People and culture

Creating a great place to work, through attracting, developing and
retaining highly engaged and talented colleagues is highly prioritised
by the Board. During the year, the Group was recognised for the fourth
yearrunning as a Great Place to Work™,

ESG strategy

(1[2]3]4

ProCook aims to be aresponsible retailer
for the benefit of all stakeholders, with a
strong ESG focus led by our ESG Director.
The Board holds deep-dive discussions
on ESG progress each year, particularly
focused on environmental aspects, and
the strategy toreduce our environmental
footprint, which the Board considered and
approved.

s.172: Decision-making

The Group’s ESG strategy is recognised by
the Board asimportant to all stakeholders,
requiring continual focus and progress
beingmadeinall areas. During the

year, the Board discussed and agreed

with the planto remeasure the Group’s
total emissions during FY26 in order to
compare to the baseline emissions from
FY22 tounderstand progress made and
opportunities to explore further.

Link to strategy and
stakeholders

Strategy

Accelerate profitable
sales growth

Improve operating efficiency

Create aneven better
place to work

Being aforce forgood

Stakeholder

Customers

Colleagues

Suppliers

Communities

Shareholders

Colleague engagement

(1]2]3]4]

Annual colleague engagement results and
action plans are presented to the Board by
the People Director for consideration and
discussion.

s.172: Decision-making

The Board supported the action planin
response to the FY24 engagement survey,
which focused onincreasing survey
participation which was substantially
increasedinFY25. This provided more
training and development opportunities for
colleagues, which has been acceleratedin
recent months, and improving awareness
of how personal performance contributes
to Group success and developing a
high-performance culture for the benefit of
stakeholders.

Talent recruitment, retention and
development

(102]3]4

The Boardreviews and discusses

People Reports at each Board meeting,
considering relevant metricsincluding
labour turnover and departmental
vacancies. Additionally, during strategy
deep dives, the Board considers functional
leadership capability and development
opportunities.

s.172: Decision-making

Following initial discussions with the
Nomination Committee, the Board
supported the need torecruit anew
Retail Director, subsequently approved
the appointment of Joe Pennington who
hasrecently joined the Leadership Team.
Additionally, the Board has supported the
Executive Directors’ plan toimplement
further leadership development training
throughout FY25, supported by external
facilitators for the Group’s wider senior
management and functional leadership.

Total reward

[1]2{3]4]

The Boardreceives and considers regular
updates from the People Director, including
opportunities to enhance the total reward
package forourcolleagues.

s.172: Decision-making

The Board has considered reward
feedback and recommendations and has
supported the Executive team in making
rewardimprovementsin FY25, including
adopting performance-related pay and
bonuses, improving holiday allowances,
and other benefits for colleagues, to
promote improved engagement and
retention.

Colleague Advisory Panel

(1[2]3]

Inaccordance with the Code, the Board has
taken ablended approach andlaunched
the Colleague Advisory Panel as well as
appointing Meg Lustman as the designated
Non-Executive Director to oversee the
Board’s engagement with the workforce.

s.172: Decision-making

Suggestions from colleagues on the Panel
have led to Board discussions on various
important topics, and resulted ina number
of tangible actions around open door trials
in stores, arenewed approach to store
rotasleading toincreased flexible working
options, more inclusive conferences for
both Retail and the Store Support Centre
colleagues, as well as revisiting our benefits
package, includingincreased holiday
entitlements and a sustainable pension
salary sacrifice scheme.
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Governance

Financial performance

(1[2]3]4

Financial performance is reviewed and
discussed by the Board at each meeting,
with detailed reviews undertakenin respect
of budgets, reforecasts, long-term
financial plans and interim and final results.

s.172: Decision-making

Budgets andreforecasts were carefully
scrutinised by the Board as the year
progressed.

The Board challenged the Executive team
to drive stronger top line growth to better
leverage fixed costs, while also continuing
to focus on efficiency improvements and
has supported the Executive Directors’
actions to invest selectively in areas that will
supportlong-term growth.

Cash management and liquidity
(1[2]3]4

The Board monitors cash and liquidity
regularly at each Board meeting, and
receives ad-hoc updates on performance
and cash position where necessary from
the Executive Directors.

s.172: Decision-making

The Board has supported the Executive
Directors’ recommendations to preserve
cash, while stillinvestingin the areas that
supportlong-term growth, including new
stores for the benefit of stakeholders. The
Board has supported the CFO’s proposal
to amend and extend the Revolving Credit
Facility and renegotiate the covenant terms
of that facility with the Group’s banking
partner during the year.

Risk management

(1]2[3]4]
The Group’srisk appetiteis set by
the Board, and the framework of risk

management s reviewed by the Board and
Audit and Risk Committee.

s.172: Decision-making

The Boardreviewed and debated the
principal risks, and challenged the progress
made against agreed risk management
objectives through the year to enhance the
control environment, including ensuring
readiness for the Provision 29 requirements
of the Code.

Board evaluation

(102]3]4

The Group’s annual Board effectiveness
evaluation was undertaken during the year
and theresults reviewed and discussed by
the Board.

s.172: Decision-making

Consideration was given to the feedback
from the evaluation and the Board

noted again that an area highlighted
forimprovement was improved Board
diversity, which the Board had considered
as part of the process of recruiting a new
Non-Executive Director last financial year.

Shareholder engagement

The Board is committed to maintaining
anopen and constructive dialogue with
shareholders to ensure there isacommon
understanding of the strategic objectives,
governance and performance of the
Group. The Group has appointed financial
public relations advisers and corporate
brokers to gatherinvestor and analyst
feedback, whichis presentedto and
reviewed by the Board.

s.172: Decision-making

The Board supports the Executive Directors
as they undertake investor roadshows and
meetings following the release of annual
andinterim financial results and provide
feedback through careful review and
considerationinadvance of messaging,
presentations and results.

Whistleblowing and compliance

H

The Boardis responsible for monitoring
and periodically reviewing the Group’s
whistleblowing, anti-bribery and anti-fraud
policies.

s.172: Decision-making

The Board s satisfied that sufficient
arrangements are in place to protect
stakeholders’ interests and assistin the
prevention of fraud, enabling colleagues to
reportirregularities confidentially and allow
appropriate investigation and follow-up
actionto be taken.

Corporate Governance

The Boardis responsible for compliance
with the UK Corporate Governance Code
and considers and discusses regular
updates fromthe Company Secretary at
Board meetings.

s.172: Decision-making

The Boardis satisfied thatit operates
incompliance with the Code, with the
exception of Provision 11 as outlined within
the Chair's governance letter, and that
sufficient arrangements are in place to
protect stakeholders’ interests as awhole.
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S.172 statement

Our stakeholders have a variety of occasionally conflicting priorities and interests, and the
decisions that are made by our Board can have significantimpacts on them.

Board decisions must, therefore, be carefully considered to ensure that these stakeholder needs are best
balanced and met, while ensuring that decisions taken promote the long-term success of the Group as set
outin Section172(1) (a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006.

Directors are required under the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of ourmembers as a
whole. In doing so, they must have regard to the interests of all stakeholders.

The Directors confirm that they have, during the year, acted in a way that they consider, in good faith, to be most likely to promote the
success of the Group for the benefit of its members and stakeholders as a whole and, in doing so, have had regard to the matters set outin
s172(1) (a) to (f) of the Act.

This confirmation, together with the accompanying detail on these pages, and that set out on pages 08 to 11 of the Strategic Report
comprises our Section 172(1) statement (“S.172”) , and sets out how the Board, in performing its duties over the last year, has had regard to
the matters set outin Sections 172(1) of the Act. In this section, we describe how the Directors fulfil their S.172 duties, and provide examples
of key Board decisions made during the year whereby the Board has carefully considered the needs of our differing stakeholders.

Read more about how the Directors have had regard for S.172 factors

S.172 Factor

E]\ Read more:

S.172 Factor

E]\ Read more:

(a) The likely consequences
of any decisionin the long
term

Business model
onpage 06 to 07

Board activities on pages
76to079

Strategy for growth on
pages12to13

(d) Theimpact of the
Group’s operations on
the community and the
environment

OurPlanet on pages 30 to 33

OurB Corp journey
onpages 22 to 23

Our People on pages 25 to 29
TCFDon pages 36 to 39

How the Directors fulfil their S.172 duties

Engaging with
stakeholders

Read more:
Engaging with
stakeholders
onpages 08to11

Directorsregularly meet andinteract with a variety of stakeholders including customers,
colleagues, suppliers, members of our communities, and our shareholders

This provides first-hand opportunity to learn about their differing needs and priorities and, where
necessary, the opportunity to explain why certain decisions have being made

Where the Directors and Board do not, themselves, engage directly with certain stakeholder
groups, it oversees the engagement activities of management, and receives regular updates on
suchactivities

(b) The interests of the Group’s
employees

Our People on pages 25 to 29

Create anevenbetterplace
towork on page 19

Board activities
onpages76to79

Colleague Advisory Panel
onpage78

Remuneration Committee
Report on pages 90 to 91

(e) The desirability of the
Group maintaining a
reputation for high
standards of business
conduct

OurPeople on pages 25 to 29

Non-financial information and
sustainability on page 45

Collective breadth of skills
and experience
Read more:

Board of Directors on
pages72to73

The diverse set of skills, experience and knowledge held by the Board, as a collective, helps
ensure that appropriate and well-informed decisions are being made, which promote the long-
term success of the Group, while balancing the various priorities of our stakeholders

(c) The need to foster
the Group’s business
relationships with suppliers,
customers and others

OurProduct on pages 34 to 35

Engaging with stakeholders
onpages 08to11

(f) The need to act fairly as
between members of the
Group

Engaging with stakeholders
onpages 08to11

Board activities
onpages76to79

Strategy for growth
onpagesl12to13

Remuneration Committee
Report on pages 90 to 91

Board reporting and
information
Read more:

Governance Framework
onpages70to 71

The Directors receive comprehensive papers and reports from management on aregular basis
both for scheduled Board meetings and on an ad-hoc basis, as well as in-person updates during
meetings and otherinteractions

Thisinformation, whichincludes stakeholder considerations especially pertaining to key
decision points, provides Directors with the opportunity to query, challenge and debate
decisions to ensure conflicting interests are well considered

Board discussion

Read more:
Board activities
onpages 76 to 79

At scheduled and ad-hoc Board meetings, Directors constructively challenge and debate
decision points, drawing on their own skills and experience and theirunderstanding of
stakeholderneeds

These discussions support making the right balanced decisions for the benefit of our
stakeholders as awhole

Strategy and culture
development
Read more:

Strategy for growth
onpagesl12to13

Our people
on pages 25 to 29

The Boardis responsible for setting the Group’s strategy and developing its culture. Directors
are required to contribute to this through careful consideration and discussion on strategic
direction and actions, and determining the Group’s purpose, mission and cultural values

The Directors are required to set the tone and consistently demonstrate the values, promoting
carefuland diligent stakeholder consideration in decision making throughout the Group
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Making the right decisions for our stakeholders

Expanding our store network

Stakeholders:
L] [

The Group’s refreshed strategy for FY25
included the expansion of our retail
estate as a key pillar for driving profitable
growth, supporting brand awareness,
creating employment opportunitiesin
new communities and providing more
customers access to our products.

Throughout the year, the Board regularly
discussedthe progress being made in this
area and made the following decisions:

o New store business cases were
discussed and approved, on
recommendation from the CFO who
carries Executive responsibility for the
property portfolio

o Performance monitoring criteria
were agreed .I 2

Dedicated Retail Trainerroles approved new stores opened in the year
inthe FY26 budget to provide support to

new colleagues and ensure customers
enjoy excellent customer service across
both new and existing locations, with
these rolesfilled viainternal promotions

Closure of three small garden centre
stores atlease events, where the
locations did not meet the required
performance criteria, with one relocated
within the same city to animproved
shopping centre location with greater
sales potential and providing growth
opportunities to the existing store team

Expansion of social marketing

Stakeholders:
HEE

Following the recruitment of Marta Navas
as Ecommerce Directorin October2023
and Claire Tait as Marketing Director in April
2024, it was recognised that our existing
paid media strategy was predominantly
focused on search engines, with our mix

of spend on social media channels being
below the industry average. The Board
recognised that there was significant
growth potential available on these
platforms with extended reach improving
brand awareness and introducing us to new
customers and demographics

The Board approved a strategy to devote
greaterresources to social media channels,
including:

Stakeholders key:

Customers

. Colleagues Suppliers

o Trialling a partnership with an external
marketing agency who specialisein
Meta channels, where our presence was
limited, including product seeding and
the use of User Generated Content as
social proofing

70%

of UK adults say they now use
social media as a source for
cookinginspiration and recipes

Reallocation of marketing spend

from search engine advertisinginto
social channels, which delivered
improvements in customer acquisition,
revenue and ROAS

Creation of aninternal Social Content
team, including internal promotions
and growth opportunities as well as
recruitment of external expertise

Testing expansion into new discovery
channels such as TikTok and Pinterest,
expanding ourreach to different
demographics andincreasing brand
awareness

Communities Shareholders
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Focusing on Leadership

Stakeholders:
|

As aresponse to the FY24 colleague
engagement survey, the Board supported
actions to provide more training and
development opportunities for colleagues,
andimprove awareness of how personal
performance contributes to Group
success, customer service, and developing
ahigh-performance culture for the benefit
of stakeholders.

Inthe year, the Board agreed investment
in an external leadership development
programme, with the Senior Leadership

1

]

T

s R

X

Team and two further SSC management
cohorts now having completed the six
month course. Store managers will be next
to benefit from this during FY26 to ensure
strong leadership skills across all areas of
our business. Developing our colleagues,
along with our growth enabling the creation
of internal progression opportunities, will
increase engagement, improve colleague
retention and, in conjunction with the

Retail Trainers, this will ensure that when
customers visit our stores they are met with
excellent customer service.

9% pt

increase in Leadership
Effectiveness measured in GPTW
survey December 2024
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Nomination Committee report

Overthelast year, the Committee has
reviewed andrecommended changes to
the composition of the senior Leadership
Team,; discussed long-term succession
planning and development of the Executive
Directors and Leadership Team and
recommended the appointment of the new
Retail Director.

Throughout the year, the Executive
Directors have beeninvited to attend
Committee meetings and have provided
the Committee with considered insight
into the resourcing and leadership needs
of the business, and provided updates on
agreed actions being taken to ensure the
necessary skills and experience areinplace
to drive forward the Group’s strategy.

Members

o GregHodder - Chair

o David Stead - Member

e MegLustman - Member (appointed 25 June 2024)
o Luke Kingsnorth - Member (resigned 25 June 2024)

Read more: The skills and experience of all Committee
members on pages72to73

E]\ Read more: Committee meeting attendance on page 71

Read more: Committee Terms of Reference are available
at www.procookgroup.co.uk

Read more: Group policy on Diversity and Inclusion is
available at www.procookgroup.co.uk

The purpose of the Committeeis to
maintain arigorous and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new
Directors to the Board, as required by
the UK Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”). The Committee’s main
responsibilities, as outlined inits Terms of
Reference, are:

e Reviewing the structure, size
and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity) of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board with
regard to any changes

e Ensuring plans areinplace for orderly
succession to Board and senior
management positions and overseeing
the development of a diverse pipeline
forsuccession

¢ Reviewing the leadership needs of
the organisation, both Executive
and Non-Executive, with aview to
ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectivelyin
the marketplace and execute strategic
priorities

o |dentifying and nominating, for the
approval of the Board, candidates to fill
Board vacancies as and when they arise

Evaluating the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity on
the Board, and, in light of this evaluation,
preparing a description of the role and
capabilities required for a particular
appointment

Reviewing the time required from
Non-Executive Directors. Performance
evaluationis used to assess whether the
Non-Executive Directors are spending
enough time fulfilling their duties

Policy Statement

The Board recognises the benefits

of diversity and believes that the

Board’s capabilities are improved by
adiverse balance of skills, expertise,
gender, ethnicity, and professional

and social backgrounds. Together, this
brings the widest possible breadth of
perspectives, insights and challenge to
the decision-making process, ensuring,
ultimately, that the Board and Leadership
Team are best placed to support and
deliver the long-term success of the Group.

The Board supports the recommendations
setoutinthe FTSE Women Leaders Review
on gender diversity and the Parker Review
on ethnic diversity.
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Objectives and Progress

Supported by the Nomination Committee,
the Board:

o Considers all aspects of diversity,
including gender and ethnicity, when
reviewing the composition and balance
of the Board and when conducting the
annual Board effectiveness review

« Only engages Executive search firms
who have signed up to the Voluntary
Code of Conduct on gender diversity
and best practice

» Encourages and monitors the
development of internal high-calibre
colleaguesincluding consideration to
allaspects of diversity to support the
internal talent pipeline for succession at
both Board and Leadership Team level

o Ensuresthat candidate lists for
Non-Executive Director positions are
compiled by drawing from a broad and
diverse range of candidates, including
those who may not have previous listed
company experience but who possess
suitable skills or qualities

The Boardis committed to being
representative of all aspects of society
and for colleagues to feel involved, valued
andrespected, as well as following the
provisions relating to diversity in the Code.
However, the Committee acknowledges
that the diversity of the Board has not
yetmet the FCAtargets of 40% female
representation on the Board, and one
ethnic minority member, and one of the
senior positions onits Board being held by
awoman. The Committee has considered
the size and composition of the current
Board including the Non-Executive
Directors, theincumbent Board Directors,
and the value that Daniel O’Neill brings to
the Board as a Non-Executive, and believes
that the current composition provides an
strong mix of diverse skills and experience
to provide adequate governance and
strategic oversight to the Group and that
adding more Board Directors at this time
would be disproportionate to the relative
size and complexity of the Group. The
Committee is committed to continuing

to focus onimproving the diversity on the
Board and considering it carefully when
making recommendations to the Board on
new Board appointments.

The Board and Nomination Committee
is, however, pleased to have made good
progress with developing a more diverse

senior Leadership Team with four out of

the seven members of the Leadership
Team (57%) now being female, including
the Commercial Director, the Ecommerce
Director, the Marketing Director and the
People Director, who are regularly invited to
attend Board meetings to discuss relevant
topics to their areas of responsibility.

Gender balance of the Board

and Leadership Team

The genderbalance of the Board and
Leadership Teamis shownonpage 72. The
gender balance of the Leadership Teamis
alsoincluded in the Sustainability section of
the Strategic Report onpage 26.

Last financial year, the Board announced
the appointment of Lee Tappenden to
the role of CEO and Executive Director,
following Daniel O’Neill’s planned
stepping back from the CEO role andinto
aNon-Executive Directorrole. Having
founded ProCook over20 years ago,
Daniel’s knowledge of the businessis
unparalleled, and, as such, the Nomination
Committee asked that Daniel continue

to support Product Developmentinan
advisory capacity until such atime as both
Daniel and Lee were happy that sufficient
knowledge transferhad been completed.
Following the appointment of Laurie
Houghton as Commercial Directorin July
2024, and the completion of knowledge
handover through to October 2024, Daniel
and Lee agreed that this advisory support
was no longer formally required; however,
Danielremains available to support Lee
and the widerteam asrequired onan
informal basis.

Also last financial year, Luke Kingsnorth,
independent Non-Executive Directorand
Remuneration Committee Chair, noted
that he did not intend to extend his Board
membership past the initial three-year
term such that he could focus more fully
on his other professional commitments. In
June 2024, Meg Lustman was appointed
as Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Board has delegated its responsibility
to the Committee forleading the process
foridentifying and nominating Board
candidates, as well as keeping the diversity
of the Board under review. When making
aBoard appointment, the Committee
seeks toidentify anindividual with the skills,

knowledge and experience required to fulfil
therole, taking account of the added value
that the individual brings to the Boardin
terms of creating a diverse and, therefore,
more effective, decision-making body.

The Committee, therefore, has
responsibility for oversight of the
development of a pipeline of potential
Board Directors and Leadership Team
members. During the year, the Committee
reviewed and discussed the structure of
the Group’s Leadership Team with the
Executive Directors. Following the decision
inearly spring 2025 of the Group’s Retail
Director to pursue other opportunities
afteralong and successful careerwith
ProCook, the Committee supported the
Executive teamin theirrecruitment fora
suitable replacement and recommended
the appointment of Joe Pennington to the
Board forapproval.

During the year, the Board conducted an
internal evaluation of the effectiveness of
the Board andits Committees. The review
highlighted that the Committee and its
Chair perform effectively and there were no
material concerns toreport.

Inaccordance with the Code and the
Company’s Articles of Association,

all Directors will offer themselves for
election by shareholders eachyear at

the Company’s Annual General Meeting.
Both the Committee and the Board are
satisfied that the Directors continue to be
effective in,and demonstrate commitment
to, theirrespective roles on the Board and
that each makes a valuable contribution
to the leadership of the Company. The
Committee, therefore, recommends that
shareholders vote in favour of all Directors’
nominations forre-election at the AGM.

Nomination Committee Chair

24 June 2025
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Audit and Risk Committee report

The principal focus of the Committee
has been on supporting and guiding the
Executive Directors as they continued to
enhance theinternal control environment,
in particular this year considering the
increased future requirements resulting
from the 2024 updates to Provision

29 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, while also dealing with the
continued macro-economic challenges.
Inthe context of this heightened risk
environment, the Committee continued
to challenge and support management
through the actions being takento
strengthen the balance sheet, preserve
cash and drive improved trading
performance.

Committee meetings are routinely attended
by the Chair of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer,and the
external Auditor. The Committee also meets
separately with the external Auditor without
management present at least annually.

The Committee’s key responsibilities, as
outlinedinits Terms of Reference, are:

« Monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group and any formal
announcements relating to financial
performance

¢ Reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’sinternal
financial reporting andinternal control
policies and systems

Members

o David Stead - Chair
e MegLustman - Member (appointed 25 June 2024)

¢ Luke Kingsnorth - Member (resigned 25 June 2024)

Read more: The qualifications and experience of all
Committee members on pages 72 to 73.

Read more: Committee meeting attendance

onpage71.

Overseeing the Group’s arrangements
forits people toraise concerns, in
confidence, about possible wrongdoing
in financial reporting or other matters

Reviewing the Group’s procedures for
detecting fraud and preventing bribery
and money laundering

Overseeing the effectiveness and

performance of the external Auditor and
making recommendations to the Board
regarding theirappointment or removal

Advising the Board on the Group’s
overallrisk appetite, tolerance
and strategy, and principal and
emergingrisks

Monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management framework

The Committee’s terms of reference are
available onthe Company’s corporate
website.

The Committee has unrestricted access to
documents andinformation as well as to
employees of the Group and the external
Auditor. The Committee Chairmeets
regularly with the Chief Financial Officer.
Members of the Committee may, in pursuit
of their duties, take independent financial
advice onany matter, atthe Group’s
expense. The Committee Chairreports

the outcome of Audit and Risk Committee
meetings to the Board.

The Committee meets atleast three timesa
year and has an agendallinked to the events
inthe Group’s financial calendar.

Updates to UK Corporate
Governance Provision 29

Within the year, the Committee has begun
reviewing with management onthe
Group’sreadiness for the FRC’s upcoming
strengthening of internal control disclosure
requirements, with the Board being
required from FY27 to provide a declaration
of the effectiveness of material internal
controls as of the reporting date in the
Annual Report.

The Committee reviewed management’s
assessment of current status, gap analysis
androadmap forimprovements such that
evidenced effectiveness of these controls
is available to the Board for the future
reporting cycles.
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Going concern and viability
assessment

The Committee conducted a
comprehensive review of the going
concern position and longer-term
viability assessment in preparation for the
publication of the Group’s FY25 financial
statements. Management prepareda
paper setting out the methodology and
assumptions used for the assessment,
summarising projected performance over
athree-year forecast period, together
with sensitivity analysis. The Committee
discussed the assumptions and resultsin
detail, including:

e The assumptions driving the base case
projections, appliedin the approved
budget and three-year plan

¢ Results of the downside and severe but
plausible downside scenarios

o Theresults of the stress tests
undertaken

o The variability and fixed nature of the
costbase

o The profile of projected cash flows
under each scenario and stress test, and
any areas where cash headroom may
become tighter

o The available finance facilities and the
impact of the scenarios and stress tests
on meeting covenant tests

o The mitigations available to
management and likelihood of timely
implementation, should they be needed

Following this detailed review, the
Committee confirmed to the Board that
they were satisfied that the Group should
continue to adopt the going concern

basis of accounting in preparing the
financial information for the yearended

30 March 2025, that there was areasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational
existence forthe foreseeable future and will
be able to continue in operation and meet
its liabilities as they fall due over the viability
assessment period.

Financial statements and significant
financial judgements

The Committee considered, in particular,
the following matters, as identified by the
external Auditor, inrelation to the Group’s
full-year financial statements:

¢ Impairment of CGUs and investments:
Review of accounting papers and
discussion with management and the
external Auditorregarding the approach
taken, compliance with IFRS and
appropriateness of conclusions drawn

o Criticalaccountingjudgements
and estimates: consideration of the
completeness of these disclosures,
and the inclusion of all significant
judgemental and estimationitems
within these disclosures to enhance
understandability for readers of the
Financial Statements

Share-based payments: reviewed
and discussed withmanagement the
reasonableness of vest expectations
applied to the Group’s share-based
payment schemes

« Going concern and viability: reviewed
managements technical papers, and
considered the downside, severe
downside and stress test scenarios
in the context of the principal risks;
consideration was givento the
likelihood of achieving the base
case forecasts, the Group’srecent
performance and historical forecasting
accuracy

The Boardisresponsible for the Group’s
risk management framework and

the Committee has been delegated
responsibility for reviewing the overall
process of assessing business risks and
theirimpact onthe Group. The Board
retains overallresponsibility for the level
of risk the Group is willing to acceptand
forallocating sufficient resource to the
management of business risk.

The Executive Directors review the Group’s
risk registerregularly andreport any
proposed changes to the Committee and
the Board.

As part of the ongoing assessment of the
business’ principal risks and uncertainties,
the Committee has considered several
factors, including geopolitical and
macroeconomic uncertainty, including
US trade policy and the potential of
reciprocal tariffs or trade wars, supply
chain concentration and disruption, the
continuing conflictsin Ukraine, Palestine
and the wider conflictin the Middle East
(including theimpact on Red Sea shipping
routes), climate change, aswell as cyber
and technology risks.

The principal risks and uncertainties of the
Group and their mitigation are included on
pages 54 to 65. These principal risks and
uncertainties have been consideredin the
Viability Assessment on pages 66 to 67 and
Going Concern Assessment on pages 124
to125.

The Committee is responsible forreviewing
the Group’sinternal financial controls and
internal control management systems

and the Board s ultimately responsible for
establishing procedures to oversee the
internal control framework.

The Committee received updates from
management on the Group’sinternal controls
ateach of itsmeetings, which allowed the
Committee tointerrogate and provide input
onimprovementsin the following areas:

e Annualreview of FPPP

e Finance process automationand
system enhancements, including lease
accounting

o Cybersecurity improvements and
penetration testresults

o Disasterrecovery and business
continuity

On behalf of the Board, the Committee has
considered the effectiveness of the internal
control systems and risk management
processesin place during the year.

During the year, the Committee formally
reviewed draft interim and full-year results
announcements and the Annual Report and
Accounts. These reviews considered:

o The accounting principles, policies
and practices adoptedin the Group’s
financial statements and proposed
changestothem

Significantaccountingissues and areas
of judgement and complexity

The integrity of the financial and non-
financial information

The Committee was satisfied with
management’s presentation of the
FY25interim and full-year results and
announcements and the Annual Report and
Accounts.

The external Auditor confirmed to
management that they were not aware of
any material unadjusted misstatements
during the course of their audit.

The Committee has reviewed the Annual
Report and Financial Statements andis
satisfied that, taken as awhole, they are
fair, balanced and understandable and
provide shareholders with the necessary
information to assess the Group’s position
and performance, business model and
strategy, and should be recommendedto
the Board.
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Continued

The Committee oversees the Group’s
relationship with the external Auditor and
makes recommendations to the Board
concerning the Auditor’s appointment,
re-appointment and remuneration.

Forvis Mazars LLP was appointed as

the Group’s Auditor during 2021and its
audit of the Groupisinrespect of these
financial statements for the yearended
30March2025. Charlene Lancasteris

the Audit Partner. The Committee intends
to comply fully with the FRC Guidance

on External Auditors and carry out an

audit tender at least every tenyears and
mandatory rotation at least every 20 years.

The Committee considers, atleast annually,
the independence and objectivity of the
Auditor, taking into consideration the
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements. InDecember 2024, the
Committee reviewed a statement from

the Auditor detailingitsindependence
policies and safeguards and confirming
itsindependence. Following this review,
and further consideration during March
2025 and June 2025 Committee meetings,
the Committee agreed that the Auditoris
independent.

The Committee has considered and
approved the terms of engagement

and fees of the Auditorinrespect of the
audit of the accounts for the yearended
30 March2025. Audit fees payable by the
Group to Forvis Mazars LLP during the year
totalled £320k. There were no contingent
fee arrangements.

The Committee has approved a non-audit
services policy and confirms that there
were no non-audit services carried out by
the Auditor during the last year.

To fulfilits responsibility regarding the
effectiveness of the external Auditorand
oversight of the audit process, principal
procedures carried out by the Committee
include:

o Review of the relevant skills and
experience of the audit partnerand team

o Review of the Auditor’s planning report
detailing scope of the audit, materiality
and identification of areas of audit risk

« Consideration of formal reports from
the Auditor about the audit process,
issues which arose during the audit and
theirresolution, key accountingissues
andjudgements

o Consideration of recommendations
made by the external Auditorin their
management letters and the adequacy
of management’sresponse

The Committee has recommended the
reappointment of Forvis Mazars LLP, as
external Auditor, to the Board.

During the year, the Group did not have an
internal audit functionasithad been agreed
that the Group’s size and activities were
such thatinternal assurance was achievable
through othermeans, including the close
involvement of the Executive Directorsin
the day-to-day running of the Group and
oversight of the Group’s operations

The Committee has concluded that
regularreporting from, and discussions
with, management remain an appropriate
means of obtaining assurance as to the
effectiveness of the Group’sinternal
controls, given the size and complexity of
the Group, and that a permanentinternal
audit functionis, therefore, not required at
this time. The Committee will continue to
review this position at least annually.

During the year, the Board conducted an
internal evaluation of the effectiveness of
the Board and its Committees. The review
highlighted that the Committee and its
Chair perform effectively and there were no
material concerns to report.

Inthe year ahead, the Committee will
continue to oversee management’s

drive to further enhanceinternal control
policies and procedures, and the level of
preparedness for Provision 29’s enhanced
requirements and any further evolutionin
the corporate governance and landscape
which may arise, including around ESG
reporting. The Committee will also focus on
the Group’s cybersecurity and resilience,
including disasterrecovery plans, in the
context of the continually evolving online
threat environment and complexity of
cyberattacks.

Audit and Risk Committee Chair
24 June 2025
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Remuneration Committee report

Thisreport, in line with UK reporting
regulations, is divided into three sections:

o This annual statement, which
summarises the work of the Committee
and our approach to remuneration

« The Directors’ Remuneration Policy,
which outlines our approach to
remuneration and the parameters
within which we willimplement our pay
arrangements, and how this links to our
strategy

e The Annual Report on Remuneration,
which sets out the remuneration
arrangements and incentive outcomes
forFY25, and how the Committee
intends to implement the Remuneration
Policyinthe FY26 financial year

As this s the third financial year since our
Policy was last approved, we will present
two remunerationrelatedresolutions at our
forthcoming Annual General Meeting:

- Abinding vote on the Directors’
Remuneration Policy

- Anadvisory vote on the annual
statement and the annual report on
remuneration

I have summarised our approach on these
below and further details can be foundin
the Remuneration Report. | trust that you
find this report and our Remuneration Policy
clearand that you will give your support
whenvoting at our AGM.

Members

¢ MegLustman - Chair(appointed 25 June 2024)
e GregHodder - Member

e David Stead - Member

o Luke Kingsnorth - Chair (resigned 25 June 2024)

Read more: The qualifications and experience of all
Committee members on pages 72 to 73.

Read more: Committee meeting attendance

onpage71.

The Group delivered revenue of £69.5min
FY25 (+11.0% year on year) and underlying
profit before tax of £1.5min (FY24: £1.0m).
This performance reflects an encouraging
improvement in trading momentumyear
onyear, and strong execution against the
strategic ambition set out.

Against the targets set, the Group has
performed well, resulting inan annual
bonus award for the Executive Directors
(of which25% is to be deferred into shares
with a two yearvesting period). The total
value of the CEO awardis £355,132 and the
total value of the CFO award is £240,069,
bothrepresenting 88.8% of base salaries.
Further details of performance against the
relevant targets can be found onpage 102
of thisreport.

Long-term Incentives for Executive
Directors grantedin August 2022 under
the Performance Share Plan are due to vest
in August 2025. However, these awards
are expected to lapse as the performance
conditions based on EPS in FY25 have not
beenachieved.

No Committee discretion has been applied
to remuneration outcomes.

Inthe lead up to admission, the proposed
Directors’ Remuneration Policy was
considered carefully to ensure that,
afteradmission, itincentivised and
rewarded long-term, sustainable growth
of the Group, was compliant with the UK

Corporate Governance Code, and was
inline with market best practice and the
guidelines of UKinstitutional shareholders
and advisory bodies. The Policy was
designed to provide market-competitive
remuneration for the achievement

of stretching targets. The incentives
were intended to reward for achieving
the long-termbusiness strategy, witha
significant proportion payable in shares
that must be held long term.

These arrangements were formally
approved by shareholders atthe 2022
AGMwith a 99.99% vote in favour of the
resolution to approve the Directors’
Remuneration Policy.

The Remuneration Policy is set out on pages
92t0100. The Policy has beenreviewed
and considered in detail during the year by
the Committee, with support from experts
from FIT Remuneration Consultants.

The Committee have concluded that no
changes are required. The unamended
Policy will, therefore, be put forward to
shareholders forrenewal at the 2025 AGM.

InMarch 2024, Luke Kingsnorth notified
the Board that he did not intend to extend
his Board membership past the initial
three-yeartermand, inJune 2024, he
stepped down from the Board and as Chair
of the Remuneration Committee. lam

very pleased to have joined the ProCook
Board on 25 June 2024 and to have taken
ontherole of Chair of the Remuneration
Committee from the same date.
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The Remuneration Committee intends to
operate the Remuneration Policy for FY26
as follows:

Base salaries

The CEO’s salary willincrease to £412,000,
and the CFO’s salary willincrease to
£278,512, bothreflecting anincrease

of 3.0%. The wider workforce average
increase forthe periodis 4.5%.

Pensions/benefits

Adefined contribution/salary supplement
of 3% of salary will be offered to the current
Executive Directors (consistent with all
colleagues’ pension arrangements),
togetherwith a standard suite of other
benefits.

Annual bonus

ForFY26, the maximum annual bonus
is100% of salary and payments will be
based on 30% revenue, 30% operating
profit, 30% operating cash flow and 10%
colleague engagement score. 25% of
any bonus will be deferredinto shares for
twoyears.

Long-termincentives

Afurther awardis expected to be made

in summer 2025 under the Performance
Share Plan (“PSP”). Award levels will be set
atamaximum of 100% of salary forthe
Executive Directors. Performance targets
willbe based on EPS performance over the
performance period.

The Committee believes that the above
approach takes due account of market and
best practice and, importantly, alsoreflects
and supports the Group’s strategy and
promotesitslong-term success.

Wider ProCook Team

The Group’s employees are critical to the
development of the business and the
Remuneration Committee takes an active
interestin the wideremployee base. The
Committee is made aware of pay and
employment conditions throughout the
Group and is mindful of this when making
decisions on Executive pay. Itis also
responsible for reviewing wider senior
Leadership Team pay.

Participationinthe Group’s SAYE Scheme
is offered to allemployees and the latest
offerwaslaunched in February 2025 with

the awards granted on 14 February 2025.
There are 70 current participants across
the three SAYE schemes that are live, and
when combined with the participation
underthe IPO Employee Share Plan, which
vestedin November 2024, this means that
a substantial proportion of the workforce
has a directinterestinthe share price
performance of the Company. The Group
intends to continue to offer subsequent
SAYE grants annually.

On behalf of the Committee, thank you for
reading this report and we look forward to
receiving your support at the forthcoming
AGMinrelation to the advisory vote on this
annual statement, the annual report on
remuneration, and the binding vote onthe
Remuneration Policy.

Remuneration Committee Chair

24 June 2025
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This section sets out the Group’s Directors’ Remuneration Policy,

which has been preparedinaccordance with the Large and Clarity
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (as amended) . The Directors’ Remuneration
Policy will be put to a binding shareholder vote at our 2025 Annual
General Meeting and will take effect from that date subject to
shareholder approval. The Policy will formally apply for three years
unless anew policy is presented to shareholders before then.

Our Directors’ Remuneration Policy is well understood by
our senior Executive team and is clearly articulated to our
shareholders and representative bodies.

The Committee has ensured that the Directors’ Remuneration Simplicity

Policy and practices are consistent with the six factors set outin The Committee is mindful of the need to avoid overly

Provision 40 of the Corporate Governance Code: complexremuneration structures, which canbe
misunderstood and deliver unintended outcomes.
Therefore, a key objective of the Committeeis to ensure

that our Directors’ Remuneration Policy and practices are

straightforward to communicate and operate.

Risk

Our Directors’ Remuneration Policy has been designed

to ensure that inappropriate risk taking is discouraged

and willnot be rewarded via: (i) the balanced use of both
annualincentives and long-termincentives, which employ
ablend of targets; (ii) the significant role played by shares

in ourincentive plans (together with bonus deferral and
shareholding guidelines); and (i) malus/clawback provisions
within all ourincentive plans.

Predictability
Ourincentive plans are subject to individual caps, with our

share plans also subject to standard dilution limits. The use of
shares within ourincentive plans results in actual pay received
being highly aligned to the expectations of our shareholders.

Proportionality

Thereis a clearlink betweenindividual awards, delivery of
strategy and our long-term performance. In addition, the
significantrole played by variable pay, together with the
composition of the Executive Directors’ service contracts,
ensures that poor performance is not rewarded.

Alignment to culture

Our Executive pay policies are fully aligned to the Group’s
culture through the use of metrics in both the annual bonus
and PSP, which measure how we perform against key
aspects of our strategy, which has the objective of delivering
sustainable growth in profitability.
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The following table summarises the key aspects of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy:

Executive Directors

Purpose andlink to
strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity Performance measures

Base salary

To provide competitive fixed
remuneration, which attracts and
retains Executives of a superior
calibre.

Base salaries will be reviewed each
year by the Committee.

The Committee does not strictly
follow data but uses market data
for similarrolesin comparable
companies as areference pointin
considering, inits judgement, the
appropriate level of salary having
regard to otherrelevant factors,
including corporate and individual
performance and any changesinan
individual’s role and responsibilities.

While there is no prescribed n/a
maximum salary orincrease,

itis anticipated that salary
increases willnormally bein

line withincreases to the wider
workforce salaries. However, in
certain circumstances (including,
but not limited to, changesin

role and responsibilities, market
levels, individual and Group
performance), the Committee
may make larger salary increases
to ensure they are market
competitive. The rationale forany
suchincrease willbe disclosed
inthe relevant Annual Report on
Remuneration.

Benefits

To provide competitive fixed
remuneration, which attracts and
retains Executives of a superior
calibre.

Executive Directors are entitled to
benefits, including life assurance.

Executive Directors will be eligible

for any other benefits, which are
introduced for the wider workforce
on broadly similar terms, and for other
benefits that might be provided
based onindividual circumstances,

if the Committee decidesitis
appropriate.

Forexternal andinternal
appointments orrelocations, the
Group may pay certainrelocation or
incidental expenses as appropriate
(forup to two years fromrecruitment).

Any reasonable business-related
expenses can be reimbursed (and any
related taxmet if determined tobe a
taxable benefit).

Executive Directors canalso
participate in all-employee share
plans on the same basis as other
employees.

Asitis not possible to calculate, n/a
inadvance, the cost of all

benefits, amaximumis not
pre-determined.

The maximum level of
participationinall-employee
share plansis subject to the limits
imposed by the relevant tax
authority.

Pension

To provide all colleagues,
including Executive Directors,
with long-term savings to allow
forretirement planning.

Executive Directors canreceive
acontribution to a pension
arrangement or a cash payment
inlieu.

The maximum defined n/a
contribution or cash allowance

inlieu of pensionis limited to the
contributionlevel available to

most otheremployees, whichis
currently 3% of base salary.
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Purpose and link to
strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity

Performance measures
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Annual Bonus Plan

Rewards achievement of annual
financial and business targets
aligned with the Group’s strategy
and KPlIs.

Bonus deferral encourages
long-term shareholding,
supports retention and
discourages excessive risk
taking.

Awards are based on performance,
typically measured over one year.

Pay-out levels are determined by the
Committee after the year-end based
on performance against pre-set
targets.

Bonusis normally paidin cash, except
not less than 25% of any bonus, which
is deferredinto anaward under the
Deferred Bonus Plan (“DBP”), typically
foratwo-yearperiod. The level of
deferral and period for deferral

may changeinrelation to future
financial years.

Dividend equivalents may accrue on
deferred shares.

The vesting of deferred shares
isnot subject to any additional
performance conditions.

Provisions are included, which enable
the Committee (inrespect of both
the cash and the deferred elements
of bonuses) to recover or withhold
value in the event of certain defined
circumstances (that s, in cases of
misconduct, material misstatement
of financial results, errorin calculation
of abonus payment and reputational
damage).

The normal maximum level of
Annual Bonus Plan outcomes
is100% of base salary perannum.

The normal maximum will only
be exceeded in exceptional
circumstances and is subject to
anoverall limit of 200% of salary
inafinancial year.

Targets are set annually
withmeasures linked to our
strategy and aligned with key
financial, strategic and/or
individual targets.

The performance
measures for FY26 are
setoutonpage107.The
performance measures
applied may be financial or
non-financial, corporate,
divisional orindividual,
andinsuch proportions as
the Committee considers
appropriate.

Agraduated scale of targets
is set foreach measure, with
no pay-out for performance
below the threshold level.

The Committee has the
discretionto amendthe
pay-out should any formulaic
outcome notreflectits
assessment of overall
business performance.

Purpose andlink to
strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity

Performance measures

Share ownership
guidelines

To align with shareholders’
interestsand to fostera
long-term mindset.

All-employee share plans

To encourage share ownership
by employees, thereby allowing
themto shareinthelong-term
success of the Group and align
theirinterests with those of the
shareholders.

Executive Directors are required to
retain all shares that vest, net of any
tax liability, under the PSP and DBP
awards until the guideline is met. Any
share plan awards that have vested
but are subject to a holding period,
and any shares subject to awards
under the DBP, will be credited
forthe purpose of the guidelines
(discounted for anticipated tax
liabilities).

Executive Directors will be required
to maintain a shareholdinginthe
Company foratwo-year period
after stepping down from that
position, being the full value of the
shareholding requirement or the
Executive Director’s actual relevant
shareholding at leaving this position
if lower.

These are all-employee share

plans established under HMRC
tax-advantaged regimes and follow
the usual form for such plans.

Executive Directors will be able to
participate in all-employee share
plans onthe same terms as other
Group employees.

200% of base salary forall
Executive Directors.

The maximum participation levels
forall-employee share plans
willbe the limits for such plans
containedin theirrules, which are
setby HMRC from time to time.

n/a

Consistent with normal
practice, such awards will not
be subject to performance
conditions.

Long-termincentives
Toincentivise andretain
Executive Directors through
long-term performance-related
pay, with a clearline of sight for
Executives and direct alignment
with shareholders’ interests.

Awards will be in the form of nil-cost
share options.

Awards will be granted with vesting
dependent on the achievement

of performance conditions set by
the Committee, with performance
normally measured over at least
threeyears.

Awards will be subject to a two-year
holding period following the end of
the performance term, with options,
typically, not being exercisable by
participants until the end of the
holding period.

Dividend equivalents may accrue on
awards, to the extent they vest.

The PSP includes provisions that
enable the Committee torecover
orwithhold value in the event of
certain defined circumstances (that
is, in cases of misconduct, material
misstatement of financial results,
errorin calculation of a vesting level
andreputational damage).

The normal maximum PSP award
is100% of salaryin a financial
year. The normal maximum will
only be exceeded in exceptional
circumstances and is subject to
anoverall limit of 200% of salary
inafinancial year.

PSP performance measures
may include financial

and shareholdervalue
metrics as well as strategic,
non-financial measures.

The performance measures
forFY26 are setouton
page 107. The Committee
retains the discretion to set
alternative measures and
weightings forawards over
the life of the policy.

Targets are set and assessed
by the Committee onits
discretion.

Amaximum of 25% of any
element vests forachieving
the threshold target,
with100% for maximum
performance.

The Committee has the
discretionto amendthe
vesting level should any
formulaic outcome not
reflectits assessment
of overall business
performance.

Chair and Non-executive Directors

Purpose andlink to
strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity

Performance measures

Chair/Non-executive
Director fees

To enable the Group to
recruit and retain Chairs and
Non-Executive Directors

of the highest calibre, atan
appropriate cost.

The fees paid to the Chairand
Non-Executive Directors aimto be
competitive with other fully listed
companies of equivalent size and
complexity.

The fees payable to the
Non-Executive Directors are
determined by the Board, with the
Chair’s fees determined by the
Committee.

The Chairand Non-Executive
Directors will not participate inany

cashorshareincentive arrangements.

The Groupreserves theright to
provide benefits (including travel
and office support) to the Chair

and Non-Executive Directors

where appropriate. Should any
assessment to tax be made on such
reimbursement, the Group reserves
the ability to settle suchliability on
behalf of the Chair or Non-Executive
Director.

The aggregate fees (and any
benefits) of the Chairand
Non-Executive Directors will not
exceed the limit fromtime to time
prescribed withinthe Company’s
Articles of Association.

If the Chairand/or Non-Executive
Directors devote special
attention to the business of the
Group, or otherwise perform
services, which, in the opinion
of the Directors, are outside the
scope of the ordinary duties

of aDirector, they may be paid
such additional remuneration as
the Directors orany Committee
authorised by the Directors may
determine.

n/a
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Notes to the policy table

Legacy arrangements

In approving this Remuneration Policy, the
Company has the authority to honour any
previous commitments entered into with
current orformer Directors (such as the
payment of a pension or the unwinding

of legacy share schemes or historic share
awards) that remain outstanding.

As setoutinthe Prospectus, the Group has
various legacy IPO arrangements, some

of which remain subject to time vesting
post-IPO. Incentive awards granted prior to
the introduction of this Policy will continue
to operateinline with the terms agreed at
grant, including the IPO Employee Share
Plan awards granted to the Executive
Directors that are outlined on page 104.

Summary of decision-making
process

In determining the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, the Committee followed arobust
process, whichincluded discussions on
the content of the Policy at Remuneration
Committee meetings during the year. The
Committee considered the input from
management and independent advisors, as
well as considering views of shareholders
and proxy advisory services.

Explanation of performance
measures

Annual bonus performance measures

are selected annually to align with the
Group’s KPIs and strategic imperatives
and the interests of shareholders and
other stakeholders. Financial measures
willnormally influence most of the bonus
with any remainder based on key strategic
and/or personal objectives designed to
ensure Executive Directors are incentivised
across arange of objectives. Target
performanceis, typically, setinline with the
year’s business plan, with the threshold to
stretchtargets set around the plan, based
onasliding scale that reflects relevant
commercial factors. Only modest rewards
are available at threshold performance
levels, withrewards at stretch requiring
material outperformance of the business
plan. Details of the specific measures
used forthe annual bonus are set outinthe
Annual Report on Remuneration.

PSP performance measures will be
selectedto provide arobust and
transparent basis on which to measure the
Group’s performance, link remuneration
outcomes to delivery of the business

strategy over the longer term, and

provide strong alignment between senior
management and shareholders. The Policy
provides for Committee discretion to alter
the PSP measures and weightings fromyear
toyear. Thisis to ensure thatit can continue
to measure performance appropriately, if
the Group’s strategic ambitions evolve over
the life of the Policy.

When setting performance targets for the
Annual Bonus and PSP, the Committee will
consider anumber of different factors.
These may include the Group’s business
plans and strategy, external forecasts and
the wider economic environment.

The Committee retains the discretion to
amend the bonus pay-out and the PSP
vesting levelif any formulaic outcome
doesnotreflectits assessment of overall
business performance over the relevant
period.

Flexibility, discretion and judgement
The Remuneration Committee operates
the Annual Bonus, DBP and PSP according
to therules of eachrespective plan, which,
consistent with market practice, include
discretioninanumber of respectsto the
operation of each plan. Discretionsinclude,
but are not limited to:

o Who participatesin the plan, the
quantum of an award and/or payment,
and the timing of awards and/or
payments.

Whether dividend equivalents will apply
to the awards.

Determining the extent of vesting.

Treatment of awards and/or payments
on achange of control or restructuring
of the Group.

o Whetheran Executive Director or
senior manageris a good/bad leaver
forincentive plan purposes andif the
proportion of awards that vest do so
at the time of leaving or at the normal
vesting date(s).

e How and whetheran award may be
adjusted in certain circumstances (for
example, forarightsissue, a corporate
restructuring or special dividends).

¢ What the weighting, measures and
targets should be for the annual bonus
planand PSP awards from year to year.

The ability, within the policy, to adjust
targets and/or set different measures
orweightings for the applicable annual
bonus plan and PSP awards, if the
Committee determines that the original

conditions are no longer appropriate or
do not fulfil theirinitial purpose. Such
changes would be explainedin the
subsequent Directors’ Remuneration
Report and, if appropriate, be discussed
with our major shareholders.

o The ability to override formulaic
outcomesin line with the Policy.

Allassessments of performance are
ultimately subject to the Committee’s
judgement. Any discretion exercised, and
therationale, will be disclosedin the Annual
Remuneration Report.

The Committee may make minor
amendments to the policy set out above
(forregulatory, exchange control, tax or
administrative purposes or to take account
of achangeinlegislation) without obtaining
shareholder approval for that amendment.

Stating maximum amounts for the
Remuneration Policy

The DRRregulations andrelatedinvestor
guidance encourages companies to
disclose a cap within which each element
of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will
operate. Where maximum amounts for
elements of remuneration have been set
within the Directors’ Remuneration Policy,
these will operate simply as caps and are
notindicative of any aspiration.

Travel and hospitality

While the Committee does not consider

it to form part of benefitsin the normal
usage of that term, it has been advised

that corporate hospitality (whether paid
forby any Group company or another)

and business travel for Directors (and
exceptionally their families) may technically
come within the applicable rules and so the
Committee expressly reserves the right for
the Committee to authorise such activities
withinits agreed policies.
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Differences between the policy on remuneration for Directors and remuneration of other employees

While the appropriate benchmarks vary by role, the Group seeks to apply the philosophy behind this Policy across the Group as a whole.
Where the Group’s pay policy for Directors differs fromits pay policies for groups of employees, this reflects the appropriate market rate
position and/or typical practice for the relevant roles. The Group considers pay levels, bonus opportunity and share awards applied across
the Group as awhole when setting the Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

Recruitment Remuneration Policy

The Company’s Recruitment Remuneration Policy aims to give the Committee sufficient flexibility to secure the appointment and
promotion of high-calibre Executives to strengthen the management team and secure the skill sets to deliver our strategic aims.

Interms of the principles for setting a package foranew Executive ~ Forexternal candidates, it may be necessary to make additional
Director, the starting point for the Committee will be to apply awards in connection with the recruitment to buy out awards
the general Policy for Executive Directors as set out above and forfeited by the individual on leaving a previous employer.

structure a package in accordance with that Policy. Any caps For the avoidance of doubt, buy-out awards are not subject
contained within the Policy for fixed pay do not apply to new to aformal cap. Any recruitment-related awards, which are
recruits, although the Committee would not envisage exceeding not buy-outs, will be subject to the limits for Annual Bonus
these capsin practice. Plan and PSP as stated in the general policy. Details of any

The Annual Bonus Plan, DBP and PSP will operate (including recruitment-related awards will be appropriately disclosed.

the maximum award levels) as detailed in the general Policy in For any buy-outs, the Company will not pay more thanis, in the view
relation to any newly appointed Executive Director. Foraninternal of the Committee, necessary and will, in all cases, seek, in the first
appointment, any variable pay element awardedinrespectofthe jnstance, to deliver any such awards underthe terms of the existing
prior role may either continue onits original terms orbe adjustedto  Annual Bonus Plan, DBP or PSP. It may, however, be necessary,
reflect the new appointment as appropriate. insome cases, to make buy-out awards on terms that are more
Forexternal and internal appointments, the Committee may agree  bespoke than the existing Annual Bonus Plan, DBP or PSP.

that the Company willmeet certainrelocation expenses as it All buy-outs, whether under the Annual Bonus Plan, DBP, PSP or

considers appropriate. otherwise, will take due account of the service obligations and
performance requirements for any remuneration relinquished by
the individual when leaving a previous employer. The Committee
will seek to the extent possible to provide any buy-out award ona
broadly like-for-like basis.

Anew Chair/Non-Executive Director would be recruited on the terms explained above in respect of the main policy for such Directors.

Service contracts

Executive Directors

The Committee’s Policy is that each Executive Director’s service agreement should be of indefinite duration, subject to termination upon no
more than sixmonths’ notice by either party. The service agreements of the Executive Directors comply with that Policy. Contracts contain
provisions allowing the Company to make paymentsinlieu of notice (albeit not including bonus or benefits) but do not contain change of
control provisions.

The Committee reserves flexibility to alter these principles, if necessary, to secure the recruitment of an appropriate candidate and, if
appropriate, introduce alongerinitial notice period (of up to two years) reducing over time.

The date of each Executive Director’s contractis:

Lee Tappenden 19 September2023
Dan Walden 19 October2021

Chair and Non-Executive Directors
The Chairand each Non-Executive Directoris engaged for aninitial period of three years. These appointments can be renewed following
the initial three-year term. These engagements can be terminated by either party on three months’ notice.

Neitherthe Chair nor any Non-Executive Directors can participate in the Company’sincentive plans, are not entitled to any pension benefits
and are not entitled to any payment in compensation for early termination of their appointment beyond the three months’ notice referred
toabove.
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Name Date of initial appointment Initial Term Term extended Term extension
GregHodder 29 October 2021 Syears Yes 3years

Daniel O'Neill' 15 October2023 Syears - -

David Stead 29 October2021 3years Yes 3years
MegLustman 25June 2024 3years - -

1 Daniel O'Neill transitioned into a Non-Executive role, effective 15 October 2023, having previously served as CEO and Executive Director of the Group
since 19 October 2021

The Directors’ service agreements and letters of appointment are available for shareholders to view from the Group Company Secretary

onrequest.

Termination/change of control policy summary

Itis appropriate for the Committee to consider treatments on a termination having regard to all of the relevant facts and circumstances
available at that time. This policy applies both to any negotiations linked to notice periods on a termination and any treatments that the
Committee may choose to apply under the discretions available to it under the terms of the Annual Bonus Plan, DBP and PSP.

The Company is entitled to terminate the Executive Directors’ employment by payment of a cash sumin lieu of notice equal to salary during
what would otherwise have been the notice period. Apaymentinlieu of notice can, at the Company’s discretion, be paid as alump sum,
orinequal monthly instalments, over the notice period. There is amechanismin the service agreement to reduce the instalments where
the Executive Director commences alternative employment during the notice period. The Company may also terminate the Executive
Directors’ employment withimmediate effect and with no liability to make any further payments in certain prescribed circumstances

(e.g.inthe case of a serious orrepeated breach of the Executive Directors’ obligations).

The potential treatments for the various incentive arrangements if there is a termination of employment or a change of control before the
awards have vested are summarised in the table below:
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If aleaveris deemed to be a “good leaver”; for example, If aleaveris
leaving through injury, ill-health, disability, redundancy, sale  nota ‘good

Incentives of business or otherwise at the discretion of the Committee leaver’ Changein control

PSP Upondeath, awards become exercisable on the date of death. If Allawards will Awards become exercisable
the date of deathis during the vesting period, the Committeewould  normally lapse, on the Change of Control.
need to determine the extent to which the performance targets are unless the If the Change of Controlis
achieved on such modified basis as it may consider appropriateand ~ Committee during the vesting period,
the Awards would be subject to pro-rating, unless the Committee determines the Committee would need
determines otherwise. If the date of deathis during the holding otherwise, in to determine the extent
period, the Awards are not normally subject to pro-rating, unlessthe  which case, towhich the performance
Committee determines otherwise. the Committee  targets are achieved on
For other “good leavers” during the vesting period, awards become ~ hasbroad suchmodifiedbasis asit
exercisable on the vesting date (subject to performance), unless discretionto may consider appropriate
the Committee exercises discretion to allow them to be exercisable ~ determine the and the Awards would be
from the cessation date (in which case, the Committeewouldneed ~ €xtenttowhich  subjectto pro-rating, unless
to determine the extent to which the performance targets are theAwardcan  the Committee determines
achieved on such modified basis as it may consider appropriate). be exercised otherwise. If the Change of
The Awards would be subject to pro-rating unless the Committee andthetiming  Controlis during the holding
determines otherwise. of exercise. period, the Awards are not
Forother “goodleavers” during the holding period, awards become normally subject to pro—.
exercisable onthe cessation date. The Awards are not normally rating, gnless the Cgmmlttee

. ; : ) ) determines otherwise.

subject to pro-rating unless the Committee determines otherwise.

All- As per HMRC regulations. As perHMRC As per HMRC regulations.

employee regulations.

share plans

If aleaver is deemed to be a “good leaver”; for example, If aleaveris
leaving through injury, ill-health, disability, redundancy, sale  nota ‘good
Incentives of business or otherwise at the discretion of the Committee leaver’ Changein control
Annual Bonuses remain payable onthe normal payment date and willbe Annual bonus Paymentis accelerated to the
bonus determined on such basis as the Committee may decide, which not generally date of the Change of Control.
caninclude pro-rating for time. Bonuses are not subject to deferral paid. The Committee has discretion
underthe DBP. to determine the extent to
which performance targets
are achieved as at the Change
of Control, orcan waive
performance targets. Bonuses
are pro-rated for time unless
the Committee determines
otherwise. Bonuses are not
subject to deferralunder the
DBP.
DBP Upon death, awards become exercisable on the date of death. Allawards will Awards vestin full.

Awards are not normally subject to pro-rating unless the Committee
determines otherwise.

Forother “goodleavers”, awards become exercisable on the
vesting date, unless the Committee exercises discretion to allow
themto be exercisable from the cessation date. Awards are not
normally subject to pro-rating unless the Committee determines
otherwise.

normally lapse.

The Company has the power to enterinto settlement agreements with Directors and to pay compensation to settle potential legal claims.
In addition, consistent with market practice, in the event of the termination of an Executive Director, the Company may contribute towards
thatindividual's legal fees and fees for outplacement services as part of a negotiated settlement. Any such fees will be disclosed as part of
the detail of termination arrangements. For the avoidance of doubt, the Policy does notinclude an explicit cap on the cost of termination
payments.

External appointments

The Company’s Policy is to permit an Executive Director to serve as a Non-Executive Director elsewhere when this does not conflict with the
individual’s duties to the Company, and where an Executive Director takes such arole, they will be entitled to retain any fees which they earn
from that appointment (unless the Committee determines otherwise).

Statement of consideration of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group

Pay and employment conditions generally in the Group are considered when setting Executive Directors’ remuneration. The Committee
receives regular updates on overall pay and conditions in the Group, including (but not limited to) changes in base pay and any staff bonus
poolsinoperation.

Although the Committee has not, to date, formally consulted with employees on matters of remuneration policy, the Committee will ensure
thereis appropriate liaison with the People and ESG Director to discuss any remuneration matters that should be considered as part of its
annual cycle. Employee engagement scores and otherinternal surveys will be considered as appropriate.

Statement of consideration of shareholder views

When determining Executives’ remuneration, the Committee considers the views of shareholders and best practice guidelinesissued by
institutional shareholder bodies. The Committee is always open to feedback from shareholders on remuneration policy and arrangements,
and commits to undergoing shareholder consultation in advance of any significant changes to remuneration policy.

The Committee will continue to monitor trends and developments in corporate governance and market practice to ensure that the
structure of the Executive remuneration remains appropriate.
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lllustrations of application of remuneration policy (£’000)
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The chart above aims to show how the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors will be appliedin FY26 using the assumptionsin the
table below:

Minimum « Consists of base salary, benefits and pension
o Basesalaryis the salary to be paid with effect from 31March 2025
o Estimated value of a full year’s benefits
« Pension measured as company contributions (or cashinlieu) at 3% of salary

£000 Base salary Benefits Pension Total fixed

Lee Tappenden - CEO 412 1 12 425

DanWalden - CFO 279 1 8 288
Target ¢ Annualbonus: consists of an assumed payment of 50% of maximum opportunity

« Long-termincentives: consists of the threshold level of vesting (25%) under the PSP

Maximum ¢ Based onthe maximum remuneration receivable (excluding share price appreciation and dividends)

Annual bonus: consists of maximum bonus of 100% of base salary
« Long-termincentives: consists of the maximum level of vesting under the PSP of 100% of base salary

Maximum with As per the maximum but with a 50% share price growth assumption for the PSP awards
share price growth
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Annual Report on Remuneration

The Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with effect from Admission. It was chaired by Luke Kingsnorth up to, andincluding,
25 June 2024, when Luke stepped down from the Board, and Meg Lustman was appointed as Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee. The Committee’s othermembers are Greg Hodder and David Stead.

The Committee’s principal responsibilities are to:

¢ Recommend to the Board the over-arching principles, parameters and governance framework of the Group’s Remuneration Policy

o Determine, within that framework, individual remuneration and benefits packages of each of the Chair, Executive Directors and senior
management; and

o Review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the Board and, where required, shareholders
The Chief Executive Officerisinvited to attend meetings of the Committee, except when his own remunerationis being discussed, and

the Chief Financial Officer attends meetings by invitation as required. Greg Hodder takes no part in any discussions relating to his own
remuneration.

The Committee met three times during the year for scheduled meetings with allmembers of the Committee present at these meetings.

The Committee has formal Terms of Reference, which can be viewed on the Corporate Governance section of the Group’s website www.
procookgroup.co.uk.

Key activities during the year
During FY25, the Committee carried out the following activities:

o Agreeingthe performance against the targets and pay-out for the FY24 annual bonus awards
o Agreeing Executive Director and senior management base salaries from 31 March 2025

o Setting the performance targets for the FY25 annual bonus and the FY26 annual bonus

o Agreeingthe award levels and appropriate targets for the 2024 PSP awards

o Overseeing the operation of the Group’s Save as You Earn scheme

o Reviewing the Committee Terms of Reference

¢ Agreeingremuneration packages for the new seniormanagement roles

o Reviewing the Remuneration Policy

External adviser

FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP (“FIT”), signatories to the Remuneration Consultants Group’s Code of Conduct, were appointed by the
Committee following a competitive tender process and provide advice to the Committee on all matters relating to remuneration, including
best practice. FIT provided no other services to the Group and, accordingly, the Committee was satisfied that the advice provided by FIT
was objective and independent. FIT's fees, inrespect of FY25, were £16,509 (excluding VAT). FIT's fees were charged on the basis of the
firm’s standard terms of business for advice provided.

Single total figure table (audited)

The remuneration for the Chair, Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Group who performed qualifying services during the financial
yearis detailed below. The Chair and Non-Executive Directors received no remuneration other than their annual fee.

For the yearended 30 March 2025:

Taxable Total fixed Long-term Total variable Total

Salary/fees benefits' Pension remuneration Bonus* incentives remuneration remuneration

Director £’000 £’000 £°000 £000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Lee Tappenden 400 1 12 413 55 - $55 768
DanWalden 270 1 8 279 240 - 240 519
GregHodder 95 - - 95 - - - 95
Daniel O’Neill 50 - - 50 - - = 50
David Stead 45 - - 45 - - - 45
Meg Lustman? 30 - - 30 - - = 30
Luke Kingsnorth® 10 - - 10 - - - 10

Total 900 2 20 922 595 = 595 1,517
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Continued
Forthe yearended 31March 2024 Share awards vesting inrespect of FY25
] . Long-termincentives for Executive Directorsissuedin August 2022 under the Performance Share Plan are due to vestin August 2025;
Taxable Total fixed Long-term Total variable Total however, these awards are expected to lapse as the attached performance conditions have not been achieved.
Salary/fees benefits' Pension remuneration Bonus incentives remuneration remuneration
Director £°000 £’000 £°000 £000 £’000 £°000 £’000 £’000 Pay-out
Daniel O'Neill® 185 1 5 201 - - - 201 Threshold Maximum Actual (% of max)
Lee Tappenden® 215 97 - 224 428 - 42 266 Below
DanWalden 260 1 8 269 100 _ 100 369 FY25 Basic Underlying Earnings Per Share (100% of award) 6.0p 7.3p threshold 0%
GregHodder 95 - - 95 - - - 95 S £ Di ' sh holdi dsh ) dited
David Stead 45 _ _ 45 _ ~ _ 45 tatement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)
) The table below details for each Director, the total number of Directors’ interestsin shares as at 30 March 2025:
Luke Kingsnorth 40 - - 40 - - - 40
Total 840 21 13 874 142 - 142 1,016 o o
Beneficially Beneficially Share- Share-
1 Taxable benefits comprise life assurance and car allowance owned owned Vestedbut holding holding
2 Appointed 25 June 2024 31March 30 March unexercised Unvested Unvested Guideline Guideline
s Stepped down from the Board on 25 June 2024 Director 2024 2025 awards DBP PSP? (% of salary)* met?4
4 Perthe terms of the Deferred Bonus Plan, 25% of Annual Bonus will be deferred into shares with a two year vest period Daniel O’Neill 38,846,902 38,846,902 - - 473,933 - n/a
5 Tran5|lt|oned from CEO Executive Directorrole to NED role on 15 October 2023 Lee Tappenden 228799 228799 _ _ 3168216 200% No
6 Appointed 19 September2023
O,
7 Taxable benefits includes a one-off £8k contribution to relocation expenses DanWalden 50,000 141,380 689,655 - 2,691,912 200% No
8 Bonusincludes a £42k paymentinrespect of the buy-out of awards forfeited on joining ProCook GregHodder 39,137 39,137 - - - - n/a
. . . David Stead 34,482 34,482 - - - - n/a
Further information on the FY25 annual bonus (audited)
) ) ) ) . ) . ) ) Luke Kingsnorth 10,344 10,344 - - - - n/a
InFY25, the annual bonus for the Executive Directors are subject to financial and strategic metrics which related to performance against
financial targets for 90% of the award (revenue, underlying operating profit and operating cash flow) with 10% of the award being based on 1 The beneficial shareholdings set out above include those held by Directors and their respective connected persons as at 30 March 2025 or at the date of
colleague engagement. stepping down from the Board if earlier

2 Performance-based share awards granted as nil cost options
3 Options subject to continued service

4 Shareholding guidelines for Executive Directors are 200% of salary. The value of the shares has been calculated using the closing ProCook Group plc
share price as at 30 March 2025, which was 22p. Executive Directors will be required to retain all shares that vest, net of any taxliability under the DBP and

Specifically, the targets were as follows:

) Pay-out PSP until the guideline is met
£m/% Threshold Target Maximum Actual (% of max)
Revenue (30% of award) 66.1 68.4 70.3 69.5 78.8% PSP awards granted in FY25
Underlying operating profit (30% of award) 17 2.7 3.5 3.2 83.8% The following awards were granted as nil-cost options under the PSP in FY25:
Operating cash flow (30% of award) 5.2 6.5 7.5 10.1 100% .
Colleague engagement score (10% of award) 65% 70% 75% 77% 100% av?aarsés(f’;: Numberof Face value
Total 88.8% Director Date of grant salary) Share price' shares of award Exercise period
Lee Tappenden 12 July 2024 100% 25.9p 1,544,401 £400,000 July 2029 to July 2034
Lee Dan DanWalden 12 July 2024 100% 25.9p 1,044,015 £270,400 July 2029 to July 2034
Tappenden Walden 1 Based onthe share price of 25.9p being the average mid-market closing share price on three working days prior to award grant
Maximumbonus (% of base salary) 100% 100% The performance conditions, applying to the awards made in July 2024, relate to earnings per share (EPS). More specifically:
Total Pay-out (% of Maximum) 88.8% 88.8%
Total Pay-out (% of base salary) 88.8% 88.8% Adjusted EPS for FY28 financial year Portion of award vesting
Total Pay-out (£) £355132  £240,069 Above 4p 100%
Between 3p and 4p Prorata onstraight-line between 50% and 100%
3p 50%
Between 2p and 3p Prorata on straight-line between 25% and 50%
2p 25%
Below 2p 0%

DBP awards granted in FY25

No DBP awards were granted during the year.
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Outstanding share plan awards Performance graph and CEO remuneration table (unaudited)
Details of all outstanding share awards made to Executive Directors are set out below: The following graph shows the Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) performance of aninvestment of £100 in ProCook Group plc’s shares from
itslistingin November2021to 30 March 2025, compared with a £100 investment in the FTSE SmallCap Index over the same period. The
Interest Awards Awards Interest FTSE SmallCap Index was chosen as a comparator because it represents a broad equity market index of similar-sized companies.
Exercise at granted lapsed Awards at
Award price Grant 31March inthe inthe exercised 30 March Exercise 120
Executive type (p) date 2024 year year intheyear 2025 period Notes
Daniel O’Neill PSP 0 08/08/22 473,933 - - - 473,933  Aug?27-Aug 32 2 100
Lee Tappenden PSP 0 19/09/23 1,623,815 - - - 1,623,815 Sep28-Sep 33 3 80
PSP 0 12/07/24 - 1,544,401 - - 1,544,401 Jul29 - Jul 34 4
Dan Walden PSP 0] 12/11/21 344,827 - (344,827) - - Nov 26 - Nov 31 1 60
PSP 0 08/08/22 592,417 - - - 592,417  Aug?27-Aug32 2
PSP 0 19/09/23 1,055,480 - - - 1,055,480 Sep28-Sep33 3 40
PSP 0 12/07/24 - 1,044,015 - - 1,044,015 Jul29 - Jul 34 4
IPOESP 0 12/11/21 172,413 - - (172,413) - Nov 24 - Nov 31 5 20
IPO ESP 145 12/11/21 689,655 - - - 689,655 Nov 24 - Nov 31 5 o
Notes: 10 November 3 April 2 April 31March 31March
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
1 See “PSP Awards Granted in FY22” sectionin the 2022 Directors’ Remuneration Report
2 See “PSP Awards Granted in FY23” sectionin the 2023 Directors’ Remuneration Report —— ProCook FTSE SmallCap
3 See “PSP Awards Grantedin FY24” sectionin the 2024 Directors’ Remuneration Report Source: Datastream (a Refinitiv product)
4 See “PSP Awards Grantedin FY25” section above
5 See “IPO ESP Awards Granted in FY22" section in the 2022 Directors’ Remuneration Report The table below details certain elements of the CEO’s remuneration over the same period as presented in the TSR Index graph.
Dum}‘n;; th:t);eghendigggsM;:ch5025,tlhe hlghzzt mid-market price of the Company’s shares was 43p and the lowest mid-market price Single figure of total Annual Bonus pay-out  Long-term incentive vesting rates
was 1/p. arc +the share price was 22p. Year CEO remuneration (£°000) against maximum % against maximum opportunity %
The aggregate gains by all Directors during FY25 was £nil. FY25 Lee Tappenden 768 88.8% n/a
Payments to past Directors and inrespect of loss of office (audited) FY24 Lee Tappenden’ 266 0% n/a
Daniel O’Neill transitioned to a Non-Executive Directorrole on 15 October 2023. He received his salary, pension entitlement and contractual Fy24 Daniel O'Neill 201 0% 0%
benefits as usual up until the 15 October 2023, after which he is entitled to a fee of £50,000 per annum for his Non-Executive role. Daniel did FY23 Daniel O’Neill 237 0% n/a
notreceive a payment forloss of office. The Committee determined that Daniel O’Neill should be treated as a good leaver for the purposes FY22 Daniel O’Neill 129 0% n/a
Of_ his awards underthe PS.P.based F)n his serwcg tpthe Group. His outsta.nldlng award.5W|||cont|nue and‘vest onthe orlglnaltllmescalles 1 LeeTappendenwas appointed CEO on19 September 2023, with Daniel O’Neill transitioning to a Non-Executive Director role following a transition period
with the PSP awards remaining subject to the original performance conditions and being pro-rated for time such that one-third of his 2022 on15 October2023.
PSP award would lapse. Given the impending transition to his Non-Executive role, Daniel was not granted any options under the 2023 . . , i i
PSP award. Annual change in Directors’ remuneration compared with other employees

The table below presents the year-on-year percentage change in remuneration for each Director and all employees of the Group.

% Change from FY24 to FY25 % Change fromFY23 to FY24 % Change fromFY22to FY23

Salary/ Annual Taxable Salary/ Annual Taxable Salary/ Annual Taxable

Name Fee Bonus Benefits Fee Bonus  Benefits Fee Bonus Benefits
Lee Tappenden 3.0% n/a - n/a - - n/a n/a n/a
DanWalden 3.0% 140% - 4.0% n/a - 4.0% - -
GregHodder 0.0% - - 0.0% - - (20.8%) - -
Daniel O'Neill 0.0% - - 0.0% - - 0.0% - -
David Stead 0.0% - - 0.0% - - (12.5%) - -
Meg Lustman n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Luke Kingsnorth n/a n/a n/a 0.0% - - (12.5%) - -

Allemployees 4.5% 196% n/a 8.3% - - 8.9% - -
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CEO to employee pay ratio
The table below shows the CEO to employee pay ratio.

25th percentile pay Median  75th percentile pay
Year Method ratio pay ratio ratio
FY25 OptionA 29.7:1 28.6:1 25.6:1
FY24 OptionA 18.0:1 17.2:1 14.3:1
FY23 OptionA 1n.5:1 10.8:1 8.3:1
FY22 OptionA 6.2:1 5.7:1 4.6:1

Notes to the CEO to employee pay ratio:
1 Option Atakes into consideration the full-time equivalent basis of all employees and provides a representative result of employee pay conditions across
the Group.

2 Theratios shown are representative of the FTE 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile pay for UK employees within the Group during the financial
year. Fullyear pay data each financial year shown has beenused to calculate the ratios.

3 The pay for part-time employees has been grossed-up to one FTE employee.

4 The Committee has reviewed the employee data and believes the median pay ratio to be consistent with the pay, reward and progression policies for the
Group’s employees over the period.

The total pay and benefits and the salary component of total pay and benefits for the employee at each of the 25th percentile, the median
and the 75th percentile are shown below:

Salary £7000 Total pay and benefits £°000
25th 75th 25th 75th
Year percentile Median percentile percentile Median percentile
FY25 25.0 25.6 27.7 25.9 26.9 30.0

Relative importance of spend on pay (unaudited)

The table below details the spend on total employee pay in FY25 as detailed in Note 7 of the Financial Statements, compared with
distributions to shareholders by way of dividend, share buybacks or any other significant distributions or payments

52 weeks
ended 52weeksended
£'m 30 March 2025 31March 2024
Total gross employee pay 17.7 14.7

Dividends/share buybacks - -

Statement of shareholding voting

The following table shows the results of the binding Remuneration Policy vote at the 20 September 2022 AGM and the advisory Directors’
Remuneration Report vote at the 11 September 2024 AGM.

(Binding Vote - 20 September 2022)

Approval of the Directors’ Remuneration (Advisory Vote - 11 September 2024)
Policy Annual Report on Remuneration
Total number of Total number of
votes % of votes cast votes % of votes cast
For (including discretionary) 96,065,973 99.986% 80,223,616 99.985%
Against 13,567 0.014% 12,061 0.015%

Votes withheld 3,564 - = -
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Implementation of policy for FY26 (unaudited information)

Base salary
Base salaries for FY26 are as follows: £412,000 for Lee Tappenden (FY25: £400,000) and £278,512 for Dan Walden (FY25: £270,400).

Pension
Maximum contribution rates for Executive Directors are 3% of salary. This rate is aligned with the general workforce rate.

Benefits
Details of the benefits received by Executive Directors are set out in the Single Total Figure Table on page 101. There is no intention to
introduce additional benefitsin FY26.

Annual bonus

The annual bonus opportunity for FY26 will be structured in a broadly similar manner to FY25. The maximum bonus willbe 100% of salary
and will be payable based on 30% underlying operating profit performance, 30% revenue, 30% operating cash flow and 10% colleague
engagementscore.

These targets are setinlight of internal and external forecasts and will require significant outperformance to generate higherlevels of
pay-out.

Given the competitive nature of the Group’s sector, the specific performance targets for FY26 are considered to be commercially sensitive
and, accordingly, are not disclosed at this time, although the targets will be disclosed in next year’s report in relation to the bonus outturn.

Long-termincentives
Awards are expected to be made underthe PSP in 2025 to the Executive Directors. The structure of the awards is being finalised and details
willbe includedin the RNS announcing the awards at the time of their grant.

Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ fees
The fees of the Chair and Non-Executive Directors for FY26 willremainin line with the reduced fees, which were implemented from October
2022 onwards as outlined in the Chair's Remuneration Committee Report, for a furtheryear.

GregHodder will, therefore, receive a fee of £95,000 as Chair for FY26. Daniel O’Neill will receive a fee of £50,000 as Deputy Chair
forFY26.

The other Independent Non-Executive Directors eachreceive a fee for FY26 of £35,000 with an additional fee of £5,000 for each of
the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee and Chair of the Remuneration Committee and an additional fee of £5,000 for the Senior
Independent Director.
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Thisreport contains the additional information the Directors are required to include in
the Annual Report and Accountsin accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the

Listing Rules.

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 6.6R
The information required to be disclosed under Listing Rule 6.6R, where applicable to the Group, can be found in this Annual Report and

Accounts at the references provided below:

Listing Rule requirement

Annual Report location

Interest capitalised

Publication of unaudited financial information

Details of long-termincentive schemes
Waiver of emoluments by a Director
Waiver of future emoluments by a Director
Non-pre-emptive issues of equity for cash

Non-pre-emptive issues of equity for cash by a major subsidiary

Parent participationin a placing by alisted subsidiary

Contracts of significance

Provision of services by a controlling shareholder

Dividend waivers

Agreements with controlling shareholders

Not applicable
Not applicable
Pages103to104
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Page 11l

Not applicable
Pagell

Results and dividends

The Group’s underlying profit after tax for
the yearended 30 March 2025 was £1.5m;
details are shownin the Consolidated
Income Statementon page 120. The
Directors are not recommending a final
dividend for shareholder approval at the
2025 Annual General Meeting.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the
year and up to the date of the signing of this
report (unless otherwise indicated) are:

o GregHodder

o Daniel O'Neill

o LeeTappenden

+ DanWalden

« David Stead

e MegLustman (appointed 25 June 2024)
o Luke Kingsnorth (resigned 25 June 2024)

Biographies forthe current Directors are
setoutonpages/72to73.

Information on the Directors’ remuneration,
employee share schemes and service
contracts are set outinthe Directors’
Remuneration Policy on pages 92to0100.

Appointment and
replacement of Directors

The rules about the appointment and
replacement of Directors are contained
inthe Company’s Articles of Association
(‘Articles’). They provide that the Directors
may be appointed by ordinary resolution of
the shareholders or by the Board. Directors
appointed by the Board may only hold
office until the next AGM of the Company
and thenshallbe eligible forre-election.
The Company may remove a Director by
ordinary resolution where special notice
has been given and the necessary statutory
procedures are complied with. In line with
best practice corporate governance,

all Directors will seek re-election at the
2025 AGM.

Re-election

Inaccordance with the Code and
Articles, all Directors are subject to annual

re-election by the shareholders at the AGM.

Time commitment

Each Director’s other commitments are
disclosed and, in the case of significant
appointments, approved by the Boardin
advance. The Boardreviews a schedule
of Directors’ interests at each Board
meeting. The Board is satisfied that the
other commitments of the Chairand the
independent NEDs do not prevent them

from devoting sufficient time to the Group.
The Executive Directors work solely for

the Group and do not hold any significant
external directorships.

Access to advice

All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary,
whoisresponsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters. The
Directors are able to take independent,
professional advice to assist them, if
necessary, atthe Company’s expense.

Powers of Directors

The general powers of the Directors are set
outinarticle 128 of the Company’s Articles.
This article provides that the business of
the Company shall be managed by the
Directors, who may exercise all the powers
of the Company, subject to any limitations
imposed by applicable legislation, the
Articles and any directions given by special
resolution of the shareholders of the
Company.

Compensation for loss of
office

The Company does not have arrangements
with any Director that would provide
compensation forloss of office or
employment resulting from a takeover.
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Future developments

Inaccordance with s414C(11) of the
Companies Act 2006, the Group has
disclosedinformation about future
developments within the Strategic Report
onpages 03to0 67.

Additionally, this Directors’ Report,
Strategic Report and the Financial
Statements contain certain
forward-looking statements with respect
to the financial condition, performance and
business of the Group. All forward-looking
statementsinvolve risk and uncertainty
because they relate to events and
circumstances that may ormay not occur
inthe future. There are anumber of factors
that could cause actual outcomes to differ
fromthose expressed orimplied by any
forward-looking statements. Nothing in this
Governance Report, or Strategic Report
orinthese Financial Statements should be
construed as a profit forecast.

Corporate governance

Areport on corporate governance and
the Company’s compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Codeis setouton
page 69 and forms part of this report by
reference.

Post balance sheet events

There were no post balance sheet events
toreport.

Research and Development

Qualifying R&D expenditure for the year
was £nil (FY24: £nil).

Asset values

Property, plantand equipment is disclosed
inNote 15 of the Consolidated Financial
Statementsonpages120to153.The
Directors do not believe thereis any
material difference between the carrying
value and market value.

Financial instruments

An analysis of the Group’s financial
instruments, risk management objectives
andits exposure to credit and liquidity
risk are disclosedin Note 25 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Global operations

The Group’s Store Support Centre,
accounting, domestic sales and support
functions are basedin the UK. The Group
has 68 stores nationwide as at the date of
this Annual Report.

Political donations

No political donations were made and no
political expenditure was incurred during
theyear.

Charitable donations

Charitable donations of £44k were made
during the year.

Stakeholder engagement

Information relating to how the Directors
have engaged with employees and

other stakeholders, and had regard to
the Group’s relationships with suppliers,
communities and customers when taking
key decisions, are set out in the Strategic
Reportonpages 03 to 67. Ours172(1)
Companies Act 2006 statement canbe
found onpage 80.

Colleague involvement

The Group is committed to colleague
involvementin the activitiesand
development of our business. Colleagues
are keptinformed through regular
newsletters and town hall events, and their
feedbackis sought through surveys and the
Colleague Advisory Panel.

Read more: engaging with
stakeholders on pages 08 to 11

Read more: Sustainability:
Ourpeople on pages 25to 29

Read more: Colleague advisory
panelon page 78

Share incentive schemes, in which
employees participate, are describedin
the Annual Report on Remuneration on
pages101to 107 andinthe Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Group operates
an all-employee SAYE scheme, and also
issued shares to qualifying colleagues on
IPO, whichvestedin the year.

Equal opportunities

The Group is committed to providing equal
opportunities for all existing and potential
colleagues, and has established policies
and procedures around diversity, inclusivity
and equality.

Read more: diversity,
equality andinclusion policy
at www.procookgroup.co.uk

Read more: non-financial information
and sustainability statement
onpage 45

Read more : Sustainability:
Ourpeople onpages 25to 29

Employees with disabilities

The Group is committed to providing equal
opportunities forall, including existing and
potential colleagues with health conditions,
visible and non-visible, who meet the
criteria to perform the duties required of
arole. Where required, ProCook adjusts
working environments or provides other
flexible means of working to support
colleagues. ProCook has beenrecognised
as a Disability Confident Leader (Level 3)
andis committed to taking proactive steps
to support colleagues through any health
issues that may arise.
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Greenhouse gas emissions

The information set out below is that required by the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013 and
Companies Directors’ Report and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report)) Regulations 2018.

Greenhouse Gas emissions (1CO,e)

FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25
Scope1-Direct emissions from gas and fuel 575.4 177.7 90.6 70.2 9.8 4.7
Scope 2 - Indirect emissions from electricity 440.2 252.0 357.1 299.7 421.0 414.0
Total Scope 1and 2 GHG emissions 1,015.6 429.7 447.7 369.9 430.8 418.7
Revenue £m 38.9 53.4 69.2 62.3 62.6 69.5
CO, emissions intensity (tCO,e / £Imrevenue) 26.1 8.0 6.5 5.9 6.9 6.0

Thereductionindirect emissions (Scope 1)in FY25is due to the Group’s continued focus on energy reduction initiatives and transition
towards non-gaseous green energy supply. Increases inindirect emissions from electricity consumptionin FY25 due to expansion of our
store estate were offset by nolongerincluding overlapping use of the two pre-existing distribution centres and the Group’s Store Support
Centre, the dual-running of which increased emissions in FY24 prior to the assignment of the leases, and in-store initiatives such as closed
door trials during periods of adverse weather. Furtherinformation around energy efficiency initiatives can be found on pages 30 to 32.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (“SECR”)

Energy (Gigawatt hours)' FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25
Electricity 1.7 11 1.7 1.5 2.1 2.0
Gas 0.3 0.1 0.1 - - -
Fuel 2.2 0.7 0.3 0.3 - -
Total 4.1 1.8 2.1 1.8 2.1 2.0
Revenue £m 38.9 53.4 69.2 62.3 62.6 69.5
Gigawatt hours/ £Imrevenue 0.1 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03

1 The analysis presented above reflects the Group’s operations in the UK. Operations in the EU in previous financial periods were through a third-party
provider, and so there is nothing to disclose with respect to non-UK operations. The location-based methodology has been adopted by the Group.

Consumption of energy decreased by -2.9% to 2.0 Gigawatt hours during FY25 driven by the factors set out above inrelation to changesin
our property estate.

Directors’ interests and share options

During the yearended 30 March 2025, no Directorhad aninterest in any significant third-party contract between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. Directors’ shareholdings are disclosed in the Annual Report on Remuneration on pages 101to 108. Details of Directors’ share
options are set outin Note 27 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

Inaccordance withthe Companies Act 2006 and the Articles, the Company has arrangements in place to consider and, where appropriate,
authorise any Directors’ direct orindirect interests, which may conflict with those of the Company. Authorisationis only effective where

the matteris put to avote, excluding the Director who is subject to the conflict authorisation. If a Director becomes aware that they, ora
connected party, have aninterestin an existing or proposed transaction with the Company, they should notify the Company Secretary

as soon as possible. Directors have a continuing obligation to update any changes to potential conflicts and the Board formally reviews
any such conflicts periodically. Aregister of conflicts or potential conflicts is maintained by the Company Secretary and is available to all
Directors.

Directors’ liability and indemnity insurance

The Group maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for legal action brought against its Directors.
In addition, third-party qualifying indemnity provisions (as defined in s234 of the Act) forits Directors and Officers were in force during the
yearended 30 March 2025 andremaininforce. There were no qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions.

Articles of Association

A copy of the Articles of Association can be obtained from the Company’s registered office and is also available on the Group’s website and
the Companies House website. The Articles may only be amended by special resolution of the shareholders.
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Share capital and waiver of pre-emptionrights

The Company has one class of share inissue. Therights attached to each share are identical and each share carries equal rights to dividends,
return of capital on the winding up of the Company and one vote at general meetings of the Company. There are no securities carrying
specialrights. There are norestrictions on the transfer of shares in the Company (other than following a service of notice under s793 of the
Act) and there are norestrictions on any voting rights or deadlines, other than those prescribed by law.

As at 30 March 2025, the Company had 108,956,624 fully paid ordinary shares of 1p eachinissue, which are traded on the London Stock
Exchange. Details of the share capital at 30 March 2025 are disclosed on page 149.

Authority for the Company to purchase its own shares

Inline with the approval granted in the 2024 AGM, a new resolution will be proposed at the 2025 AGM that the Company be authorised to
purchase up to approximately 10% of its ordinary shares at the Directors’ discretion. If the resolutionis passed, the authority will lapse at the
conclusion of the 2026 AGM or, if earlier, 15 months from the date of the resolution being passed.

Substantial shareholdings

At 30 March 2025 the Company had been notified of the following disclosable interests of 3% or more inthe Company’s ordinary share
capital:

As at 30 March 2025

No. of % voting
Shareholder shares held rights
Michael O'Neill 36,257,024 33.28
Daniel O'Neill 16,648,725 15.28
Sarah O'Neill 14,798,785 13.58
Fackelmann GmbH + Co.KG 14,548,944 13.35
Daniel O'Neilland Sarah O'Neill as trustees of the O'Neill 2021 Discretionary Settlement 7,399,392 6.79
Canaccord Genuity Wealth Limited 4,500,000 4.31

Between the year-end date and 20 June 2025 (being the latest practicable date prior to the date of this report), the Company had not been
notified of any changes in substantial shareholdings.

Provision of services by substantial shareholders

Daniel O’Neillis the Company’s Deputy Chair and Founder and holds a Non-Executive Director position on the Board. Daniel has a beneficial
interestin 35.65% of the Company’sissued share capital. This includes shares held by Sarah O’Neill, and by Daniel O’Neill and Sarah O’Neill
as trustees of the O’Neill 2021 Discretionary Settlement.

Significant agreements

Daniel O’Neill, Sarah O’Neill, Michael O’Neill, Richard O’Neill, and Daniel and Sarah O’Neill as trustees of the O’Neill 2021 Discretionary
Settlement (together, the “Controlling Shareholders”) collectively exercise or control 69.30% of the Company’s voting rights. The Company
has enteredinto a Relationship Agreement with the Controlling Shareholders to ensure that the Company is managed for the benefit of

its shareholders as awhole and (save in respect of any duties, responsibilities and actions of Daniel O’Neill as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company) independently of the Controlling Shareholders, and that the principle of equality of treatment of shareholders set outin
Listing Principle 5 of UKLR 2.2.1R is upheld and maintained. The agreement also ensures that all transactions, agreements and arrangements
between the Company and any of the Controlling Shareholdersis on an arm’slength basis and on normal commercial terms. Both the
Company and the Controlling Shareholders have complied with these provisions. The agreement remains in place until the Controlling
Shareholders cease to exercise or control 20% or more in aggregate of the total voting rights of the Company. The Company continues to
be able to carry onits main activities independently from the controlling shareholders at all times.

Change of control

Change of control provisions are included in the Group’s banking agreements. Should a change of control event occur, the Group’s
revolving credit facility would be subject toimmediate cancellation and the bank may call forimmediate repayment of any balance
outstanding.




112 ProCook’ Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2025

Directors’ report

Continued

Viability statement

The Directors have undertaken a comprehensive review and assessment of longer-term viability in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code The Directors has determined that a three-year viability assessment period covering the three financial years ending
March 2028 appropriately reflects the speed of change in the retail and consumer environment and is consistent with the Group’s annual
strategic planning cycle. This time period provides a reasonable balance between the long-term nature of investments and the key drivers
of near-term business performance.

Having reviewed current performance, financial projections under a variety of scenarios related to the Group’s principal risks and
uncertainties, total facilities and liquidity (including the reduced liquidity risk resulting from the revised leverage covenant attached to
the RCF), and debt servicing requirements, the Board expects the Group to have adequate resources to continue in operation, meet its
liabilities as they fall due, and retain sufficient available liquidity across all three years of the assessment period.

E]\ Read more: Assessing long-term viability on pages 66 to 67.

Directors’ statement regarding disclosure of information to the Auditor

The Directors confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s Auditoris unaware. The
Directors also confirm that they have taken all reasonable steps to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Group’s Auditor is aware of that information.

Appointment of Auditor

Onthe recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee, resolutions will be proposed at the 2025 AGM to re-appoint Forvis Mazars LLP as
Auditor of the Company and Group, and to authorise the Audit and Risk Committee to set the Auditor’s remuneration.

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s AGM will be held on 10 September 2025. Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM are set out in the Notice of
Meeting, whichis provided to all shareholders.

The Directors’ Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and signed onits behalf by:

Chief Financial Officer

Governance Report
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and Parent Company Financial Statementsinaccordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent Company Financial Statements for each financial year. Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group Financial Statements in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and applicable law. In addition, the Group consolidated Financial
Statements are required under the UK Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules to be preparedin accordance with UK-adopted
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of the Group’s profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group
and Parent Company Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:

¢ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
o Makejudgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant andreliable

» State whetherthey have been preparedin accordance withinternational accounting standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006, and as regards the Group financial statements, the UK-adopted International Financial Reporting
Standards asissued by the International Accounting Standards Board

o Assessthe Group and Parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern

« Use the going concern basis of accounting unless they eitherintend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure
thatits Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

They are responsible for suchinternal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements thatare
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
opento them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and otherirregularities. Under applicable law and
regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Corporate Governance Statement, which comply with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Group’s
website. Legislationin the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of the Annual Financial Report
We confirmthat to the best of our knowledge:

e The Group Consolidated Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and the UK-adopted International Financial Reporting Standards, and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

The Parent Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and the financial reporting standards applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), and give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, and financial position of the Company; and

The Strategic Reportincludes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the issuer
and the undertakings included in the consolidation, taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face. We consider the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s position and performance, business model and
strategy.

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and signed onits behalf by:

Lee Tappenden Dan Walden
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of ProCook Group plc

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ProCook Group Plc
(the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the

52 weeks to 30 March 2025 which comprise the Consolidated
income statement, the Consolidated statement of financial
position, the Consolidated statement of cash flows and the
Consolidated statement of changes in equity, the parent company
statement of financial position and the parent company statement
of changesin equity and the notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statementsis applicable law
and UK-adopted international accounting standards.

The financial reporting framework that has been appliedin

the preparation of the parent company financial statements

is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
inthe UK and Republic orIreland” (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), as appliedin accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

o the group financial statements and parent company financial
statements (the “financial statements”) give a true and fair view
of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs
as at 30 March 2025 and of the group’s profit for the period
then ended;

o the group financial statements have been properly prepared
inaccordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards;

o the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

o thefinancial statements have been preparedinaccordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit inaccordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further describedin the
“Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements”
section of ourreport. We are independent of the group and the
parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statementsin the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities
and public interest entities and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accountingin the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our audit procedures to evaluate the directors’ assessment of
the group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting included but were not
limited to:

o Undertaking aninitial assessment at the planning stage of the
audit to identify events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as agoing concern;

« Obtaining anunderstanding of the relevant controls relating to
the directors’ going concern assessment;

e Making enquiries of the directors to understand the period
of assessment considered by them, the assumptions they
considered and the implication of those when assessing
the group’s and the parent company’s future financial
performance;

¢ Challenging the appropriateness of the directors’ key
assumptionsin their cash flow forecasts, as describedin
note 1, by reviewing supporting and contradictory evidence in
relation to these key assumptions and assessing the directors’
consideration of severe but plausible scenarios. Thisincluded
assessing the viability of mitigating actions within the directors’
control;

o Reviewing the terms of loan agreements and financing facilities
for covenants, and assessing the extent to which they are
restrictive and have been accurately included in severe but
plausible scenarios;

o Inspecting the changesin the terms and conditions of
financing facilities and covenants, and any changesin the
terms that may impact the conclusions made;

o Testing the accuracy and functionality of the modelused to
prepare the directors’ forecasts;

o Assessing the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by the
directors;

o Considering the consistency of the directors’ forecasts with
other areas of the financial statements and our audit; and

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the directors’ disclosuresin
the financial statements on going concern.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern foraperiod of atleast twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised forissue.

Ourresponsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with
respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
thisreport.

Inrelation to ProCook Group Plc’s reporting on how it has applied
the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to
add ordraw attention to inrelation to the directors’ statementin
the financial statements about whether the director’s considered
it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Financial Statements
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect
on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resourcesin the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as awhole, andin forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

We summarise below the key audit matters in forming our opinion
above, together with an overview of the principal audit procedures
performed to address each matter and our key observations
arising from those procedures.

These matters, togetherwith our findings, were communicated
to those charged with governance through our Audit Completion
Report.

How our scope addressed this matter

Impairment of store-level CGUs (Group)

Referto page 133 (accounting policy) and page 140 of the
financial disclosures.

Thereis a significantrisk relating to the carrying value of
Right-Of-Use assets (‘ROUA”) and Property Plant and Equipment
(“PPE”)includedin Cash Generating Units (“CGU”) as aresult of
continued economic uncertainty. As at 30 March 2025, the Group
held £21m (2024: £20.5m)in ROUA and £10.8m (2024: £8.2m)

in PPE.

The Directors are required to determine the CGU and assess

the CGU forimpairment triggers on an annual basis. Where
impairment triggers are identified, the Directors are required to
calculate a Value-In-Use (“VIU”) foreach CGU and compare this to
the carrying amount of the CGU. For the purposes of impairment
assessments, the Group determines each store tobe a CGU.

Our key audit matter focuses on management’s judgmentin
determining whetheranimpairment trigger existed at year-end.
Management has not performed a fullimpairment assessment
for the entire store estate portfolio, as they have concluded that
macroeconomic conditions have not deteriorated to alevel
that would require such areview. Instead, they have assessed
individual stores separately, defining each as a cash-generating
unit (CGU) and applying a two-step approach: first evaluating
whether the store meets quantitative metrics, followed by an
assessment of qualitative factors.

Based onourrisk assessment, ifimpairment triggers are not
appropriately identified, there is arisk that the carrying value of
store assets may be overstated. We have designated thisas a
key audit matter due to the significant audit effort and challenge
involvedin evaluating management’s judgments in this area.

Our audit proceduresincluded, but were not limited to:

o Testing the design and implementation of key controls related
to the review of impairment triggers;

Obtaining and inspecting the directors’ judgement and
assessment of impairment triggers per IAS 36;

Assessing the identification of CGUs at the store levelin
accordance with IAS 36. This assessment considered factors
such as whether each store can generate independent

cash flows;

Challenging the directors’ assessment of store performance
and the completeness and integrity of datausedin
impairment assessments;

o« Comparing and contrasting the directors’ impairment trigger
assessment to external market data and internal qualitative
factors;

Assessing the completeness of the directors’ impairment
trigger assessment and validating that all open stores were
included in the assessment;

o Agreeing assumptions to supporting documentation such as
board-approved budgets;

Assessing management’s assumption that thereis noreversal
of prior period impairments;

Assessing the completeness and accuracy of disclosures
within the financial statementsin accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

Our observations
We are satisfied that the key assumptions utilised in the
impairment review performed, as noted above, are appropriate.

No material exceptions were noted in our testing to confirm the
valuation of the store assets.
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Key Audit Matter

How our scope addressed this matter

Valuation of investment (Company)

Referto page 157 (accounting policy) and page 159 of the
financial disclosures.

The parent company holds a material investment in subsidiaries of
£69m at 30 March 2025.

Thereis arisk of errorrelating to the identification of impairment
triggers, and the judgement required when assessing for
impairment. There is arisk of material misstatement of asset
values if management’s assessment does not accurately
consider potential triggers.

We have identified the recoverability of the parent company’s
investment in subsidiaries as a Key Audit Matter. This is based
on the quantum of this balance relative to the parent company
Statement of financial position (98.6% of total assets).

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to:

¢ Testing the design and implementation of key controls.

» Inspecting and challenging management’simpairment trigger
assessmentincluding but not limited to;

- Comparing the carrying value of the investment with the
year-end market capitalisation of ProCook Group plc.

- Challenging the directors on the extent to which the market

capitalisation when compared to the carrying value of the
investmentindicates animpairment trigger exists.

- Assessment and challenge of external and internal triggers
that may indicate animpairment trigger.

- Assessing the completeness and accuracy of disclosures
within the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

Our observations

We are satisfied that the key assumptions utilised in the
impairmentindicator assessment are appropriate.

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
togetherwith qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit

procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually

and on the financial statements as a whole. Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements

as awhole as follows:

Group materiality

Overall materiality

£521k

How we determined it

0.75% of revenuein the year.

Rationale for benchmark applied

Revenue is prominent to the financial statements and of principal
interest to the users of the financial statements. Revenue has
been selected as the most suitable benchmark due to the
volatility in the profit before taxin the 52-week period ended
30March2025.

Performance materiality

Performance materiality is set to reduce to an appropriately
low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements in the financial statements exceeds
materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

We set performance materiality at £338k, which represents 65%
of overall materiality.

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the directors that we would report to them
misstatements identified during our audit above £24k as well as
misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Financial Statements
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Parent company materiality

Overall materiality

£187k

How we determined it

0.3% of Total Equity

Rationale for benchmark applied

ProCook Group Plc is a holding entity, and therefore not profit
orrevenue focused. Total Equity is deemed to be the most
appropriate benchmark for the users of the financial statements.

We have selected 0.3% of Total Equity whichis capped at
component materiality.

Performance materiality

Performance materiality is set to reduce to an appropriately
low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatementsin the financial statements exceeds
materiality for the financial statements as awhole.

We set performance materiality at £130k, which represents 70%
of overallmateriality.

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the directors that we would report to them
misstatements identified during our audit above £9k as well as
misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

As part of designing our audit, we assessed the risk of material
misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud
orerror, and then designed and performed audit procedures
responsive to thoserrisks. In particular, we looked at where the
directors made subjective judgements, such as assumptions on
significant accounting estimates.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
sufficient work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as awhole. We used the outputs of ourrisk assessment,
ourunderstanding of the group and the parent company, their
environment, controls, and critical business processes, to consider
qualitative factors to ensure that we obtained sufficient coverage
across all financial statement line items.

Our group audit scope included an audit of the group and

the parent company financial statements. Based on our risk
assessment, all components of the group, including the parent
company, were subject to a full scope audit performed by the
group engagement team. Our audit scope covered 100% of the
revenue, total assets and profit before tax (PBT). Allcomponents
were audited by the same audit team.

At the parent company level, the group audit team also tested
the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures
to confirm our conclusion that there were no significant risks of
material misstatement of the aggregated financial information.

Otherinformation

The otherinformation comprises the informationincludedinthe
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the otherinformation and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Ourresponsibility is to read the otherinformation and, in doing so,
consider whether the otherinformation is materially inconsistent

with the financial statements or ourknowledge obtained in the
course of audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify such materialinconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this
givesrise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing toreportin thisregard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the directors’ remunerationreport to
be audited has been properly preparedin accordance with the
Companies Act2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertakenin the course of
the audit:

» theinformation givenin the strategic report and the directors’
report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements
and those reports have been preparedin accordance with
applicable legal requirements;

o theinformation aboutinternal control and risk management
systemsinrelation to financial reporting processes and
about share capital structures, given in compliance withrules
7.2.5and7.2.6inthe Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules sourcebook made by the Financial Conduct Authority
(the FCARules), is consistent with the financial statements
and has been preparedin accordance with applicable legal
requirements; and

¢ information about the parent company’s corporate
governance code and practices and about its administrative,
management and supervisory bodies and their committees
complieswithrules7.2.2,7.2.3and7.2.7 of the FCARules.
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Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

Inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the
parent company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatementsin the:

« strategicreport orthe directors’ report; or

¢ information about internal control and risk management
systems inrelation to financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, givenin compliance withrules 7.2.5
and7.2.6 of the FCARules.

We have nothing to reportinrespect of the following mattersin
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
youif, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
beenreceived from branches not visited by us; or

o the parent company financial statements and the part of
the directors’ remunerationreport to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

o certaindisclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are notmade; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or

e acorporate governance statement has not been prepared by
the parent company.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’ statementin
relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to ProCook Group Plc’s
compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Statement specified for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have
concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit:

o Directors’ statement withregards the appropriateness of
adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified, set out on page 124;

o Directors’ explanation as toits assessment of the entity’s
prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the
periodis appropriate, set out on page 112;

o Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable, set
outonpage113;

e Board’s confirmation that it has carried out arobust
assessment of the emerging and principal risks, set out on
page 54;

o The section of the annual report that describes the review
of effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems, set out on page 87; and;

e The section describing the work of the audit committee, set
outonpage 86.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement
set out on page 113, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible
forassessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors eitherintend to liquidate the group
orthe parent company or to cease operations, or have norealistic
alternative butto do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’'s report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conductedinaccordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance
withlaws and regulations. We design procedures inline with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements
inrespect of irregularities, including fraud.

Based on ourunderstanding of the group and the parent company
and theirindustry, we considered that non-compliance with the
following laws and regulations might have a material effect on the
financial statements: employment regulation, health and safety
regulation, anti-money laundering regulation and data protection.

To help usidentify instances of non-compliance with these
laws and regulations, and inidentifying and assessing the risks
of material misstatementinrespect to non-compliance, our
proceduresincluded, but were not limited to:

» Gaining anunderstanding of the legal and regulatory
framework applicable to the group and the parent company,
the industry in which they operate, and the structure of the
group, and considering the risk of acts by the group and the
parent company which were contrary to the applicable laws
andregulations, including fraud;

o Inquiring of the directors, management and, where
appropriate, those charged with governance, as to whether
the group and the parent company is in compliance with laws
andregulations, and discussing their policies and procedures
regarding compliance with laws and regulations;
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¢ Inspecting correspondence withrelevant licensing or
regulatory authorities;

¢ Reviewing minutes of directors’ meetingsin the year; and

o Discussing amongst the engagement team the laws and
regulations listed above, and remaining alert to any indications
of non-compliance.

We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct
effect on the preparation of the financial statements, such as tax
legislation, pension legislation, the Companies Act 2006.

In addition, we evaluated the directors’ and management’s
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements, including the risk of management override of
controls, and determined that the principal risks related to posting
manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance,
management bias through judgements and assumptionsin
significant accounting estimates, in particularin relation revenue
recognition (which we pinpointed to the occurrence of store sales
and cut-off on online sales) and significant one-off orunusual
transactions.

Our proceduresinrelation to fraud included but were not
limited to:

e Making enquiries of the directors and management on whether
they had knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

o Gaining anunderstanding of the internal controls established
to mitigate risks related to fraud;

¢ Discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud;

o Addressing the risks of fraud through management override of
controls by performing journal entry testing;

o Seeking disconfirming evidence by obtaining external records
to assess management assumptions against;

¢ Incorporating an element of unpredictability in the selection of
the nature, timing, and extent of audit procedures performed;

¢ Including the use of data analytics to identify outliers in testing
performed.

The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of
irregularities, including fraud, rests with both those charged with
governance and management. As with any audit, there remained
arisk of non-detection of irregularities, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal controls.

Therisks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on
our audit are discussed in the “Key audit matters” section of this
report.

Afurther description of ourresponsibilities is available

onthe Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’'s report.

Other matters which we are required to
address

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were
appointed by the Audit and Risk Committee on 22 November 2021
to audit the financial statements for the year ending 3 April 2022
and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted
engagementis 4 years, covering the years ending 3 April 2022 to
30March2025.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard
were not provided to the group or the parent company and we
remainindependent of the group and the parent company in
conducting our audit.

Our audit opinionis consistent with our additional report to the
audit committee.

Use of the audit report

Thisreportis made solely to the company’s members as a body
inaccordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company’s members those matters we are required
to state to themin an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body for our audit work, for thisreport,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Asrequired by the Financial Conduct Authority Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules, these financial statements

will form part of the electronic reporting format prepared annual
financial report filed on the National Storage Mechanism of the
Financial Conduct Authority. This auditor’s report provides no
assurance over whether the annual financial report will be prepared
using the correct electronic reporting format.

forand on behalf of Forvis Mazars LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
One St Peter’s Square

24 June 2025
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Consolidated Income Statement Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Forthe 52 weeks ended 30 March 2025 As at 30 March2025

52 weeks ended 30 025 52 weeks ended 31 March 2024 As at As at
Non- 30 March 31March
£°000s \[-l Underlying underlying G ofelg -1l Underlying underlying Reported £'000s Note 2025 2024
Revenue 1 69,493 = 69,493 62,585 = 62,585 Assets
Cost of sales (23,778) - (23,778) (21,486) - (21,486) Non-current assets
Gross profit 45,715 - 45,715 41,099 - 41,099 Intangible assets 14 26 104
Operating expenses 2 (42,555) (344) (42,899) (39,025) (145) (39,170) Property, plantand equipment 15 10,767 8,232
Bl iREee 6 47 _ 47 49 _ 49 Right-of-use assets 16 20,958 20,522
Operating profit/(loss) 3,207 (344) 2,863 2123 (145) 1978 Deferred taxasset L 526 655
Finance expense 9 (1,415) - (1,415) (1,230) (132) (1,362) Totalnon-current assets 32,277 29,513
Other (losses)/gains 10 (272) - (272) 14 - 14 Currentassets
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,520 (344) 1,176 1,007 (277) 730 Inventories v 12,095 9716
Tax (expense)/credit 1 (247) 73 (74) (165) 45 (120) Trade and otherreceivables 18 2,480 3,742
Profit/(loss) for the period 1,273 (271) 1,002 842 (232) 610 Current tax asset 101 145
Cashand cash equivalents 19 2,762 2,005
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 1,273 (271) 1,002 842 (232) 610 Totalcurrent assets 17,438 15,608
Total assets 49,715 45,121
Earnings per ordinary share - basic 13 1.17p 0.92p 0.77p 0.56p Liabilities
Earnings per ordinary share - diluted 13 1.08p 0.85p 0.73p 0.53p Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 13,932 10,431
Leaseliabilities 16 3,708 3,347
Provisions 21 273 253
Borrowings 22 1,805 2,754
Total current liabilities 19,718 16,785
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 77 48
Lease liabilities 16 19,586 19,295
Provisions 21 639 565
Total non-current liabilities 20,302 19,908
Totallliabilities 40,020 36,693
Net assets 9,695 8,428
Equity and reserves attributable to shareholders of ProCook Group plc
Share capital 26 1,090 1,090
Share optionreserve 27 2,241 4,099
Share premium 26 1 1
Retained earnings 26 6,363 3,238
Total equity and reserves 9,695 8,428

The financial statements on pages 120 to 153 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and were signed oniits behalf by:

Chief Financial Officer

24 June 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Forthe 52 weeks to 30 March 2025 Forthe 52 weeks to 30 March 2025

52 weeks 52 weeks Share
ended ended Share Share option Retained Total

30 March 31March £’000s Note capital premium reserve earnings equity
£000s Note 2025 2024 Asat2 April 2023 1,090 1 6,891 (318) 7,664
Cash flows from operating activities Total comprehensive profit for the period - - - 610 610
Profit before tax 1,176 730 Employee share-based payment awards 27 = = 514 = 514
Adjustments for: Exercise of share options 27 = = (3,306) 2,946 (360)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 1,234 936 As at 31 March 2024 1,090 1 4,099 3,238 8,428
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 78 131 Total comprehensive profit for the period - - - 1,002 1,002
Lossondisposal of property, plant and equipment 2 45 457 Employee share-based payment awards 27 _ - 495 _ 495
Gainondisposal of leases 2 - (2,300) Exercise of share options 27 - - (2,353) 2,123 (230)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16 4,356 3,945 As at 30 March 2025 1,090 1 2,241 6,363 9,695
Unrealised FXlosses/(gains) 10 219 (41)
Share-based payments 27 495 514
Cashoutlay on exercise of share options 27 (230) (360)
Finance expense 9 1,415 1,362
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 8,788 5,003
(Increase)/decrease ininventories 17 (2,379) 1,799
Decrease/(increase)in trade and otherreceivables 1,220 (1,459)
Increase intrade and other payables 3,229 3,255
Increase in provisions 21 94 5
Income taxes paid - 9)
Net cash flows from operating activities 10,952 8,594
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 (3,828) (1,844)
Lease inception costs (249) (77)
Leaseincentivesreceived - 60
Net cash usedininvesting activities (4,077) (1,855)
Financing activities
Interest paid on borrowings (419) (367)
Interest paid on lease liabilities 9 (975) (982)
Proceeds from borrowings 22,521 23,974
Repayment of borrowings (23,470) (25,923)
Lease principal payments 16 (3,775) (3,398)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (6,118) (6,696)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 757 43
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 2,005 1,962

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2,762 2,005
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Accounting Policies
Forthe 52 weeks to 30 March 2025

General information

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the ProCook Group plc (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries, together referred to as
the ‘Group’.

ProCook Group plc (the Company)is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies
Act 2006 (Registration number: 13679248). The registered office is ProCook, 10 Indurent Park, Gloucester, GL10 3EZ.

The principal activity of the Company together with its subsidiary undertakings throughout the period is the sale of kitchenware and
related productsin stores and viaecommerce platforms.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards in conformity

with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, UK-adopted IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The
consolidated Group financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, being the Group’s functional currency, and generally rounded
to the nearest thousand. They are prepared on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated.

The Directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accountingin preparing the financial statements.

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial information are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Group has reported a profit before tax of £1.2m after
non-underlying items for the financial year ended 30 March 2025 (FY24: profit before tax of £0.7m) and had a net asset position of £9.7m
asat 30 March 2025 (31March 2024: £8.4m), with a net current liabilities position of £2.0m (31 March 2024: net current liabilities position
of £1.2m). The Group had net cash (cash and cash equivalents less borrowings) of £1.0m at 30 March 2025 (31 March 2024: net debt of
£0.8m) with available liquidity headroom of £17.0m.

Intheirassessment of going concern, the Board has considered a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing these financial
statements. In considering whetherit is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements, the
Directors have considered the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties and have assessed the impact of arange of downside scenarios,
including a severe but plausible downside scenario, onthe Group’s expected financial performance, position and cash generation. The
scenarios have beeninformed by a comprehensive review of the macroeconomic environment, including consideration of slowdownin
the Bank of England base rate cutting cycle, reduced yet persistent inflationary pressure, risks associated with increased tariffs and other
geo-political tensions, including the impacts on our supply chain.

Consideration has been given to the availability of facility headroom and covenant compliance within the Group’s financing facilities,
the recently extended RCF agreement and amended leverage charge covenant terms, details of which are as follows:

e The Group’s bank facility agreements and the associated covenants are set out in the CFO’s Review within this report and include
acommitted £10m RCF, with a £5m accordion option to the RCF, subject to lender approval, and an uncommitted £6m trade
finance facility.

e Onthe 28 March 2025, the Group successfully arranged a one-year extension to the RCF, which extends the expiry date out from
April 2026 to April 2027. Additionally, the termsin respect of leverage cover have been amended for Q2 test dates for FY26 and FY27
with net debt to be no greater than 3.0x EBITDA. It remains at 2.0x for all other test dates. The fixed charge covenant test remains
unchanged, requiring EBITDAR to be no less than 1.4x fixed charges.

The base case for the scenario modelling extends from the Group’s annual budget plan that was approved by the Board in March 2025.
Forecasts for FY27 are based on the Group’s strategic objectives and its medium-term financial plan, which projects forwards from the
latest FY26 budget.

Key assumptionsinclude Ecommerce and Retail like forlike (‘LFL”) revenue growth, gross margin performance, the financialimpacts
of opening of new stores (including capital investments and time to maturity), operational efficiencies being delivered, investmentin
marketing activity and the appropriate level of inventory required to maintain strong product availability for customers.

In their consideration of the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties, the Board believes that the most likely and most impactful risks that
the Group faces are those surrounding geopolitical tensions and the resulting macro-economic factors, including supply chain disruption
risk, and depressed consumer confidence having the potential to drive alonger time reductionin demand and a resulting increase in
competition within the kitchenware market.
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The Board has reviewed the potential downside impact of these risks unfolding, modelled under anumber of scenarios, including a severe
but plausible downside scenario, which reflected the following assumptions:

o Asignificant reductionin customer demand and shopping frequency, caused by continued disposable income pressures and
consumer cautioninlight of economic uncertainty, and additional costimpacts driven by continued supply chain disruption
associated with the Suez Canal diversions and other geo-political tensions. The impacts of these factors have beenreflectedina
10% lower revenue performance in the FY26 year compared to base case, increasing to a 15% decrease in FY27, combining to reflect
a99% reduction in Group revenue growth over the assessment period compared to the base case.

o Fewernew store openingsin FY27 are included on the basis that there would be lower management confidence of positive return on
investment from such openings.

e Areductioningross marginsin FY26 of -100bpsincreasing to -200ps for FY27 compared to the base case to reflect the risk of
heightened supply chain costs and potential increased promotional requirements to stimulate demand in a more competitive
market.

Under this severe but plausible downside scenario, and before mitigating actions, the Group would remain within its available borrowing
facilities throughout the assessment period and remain compliant with all covenants related to its banking arrangements.

The Board has also reviewed areverse stress test, which has been applied to the base case model to determine the level of sales decline
that would resultin a breach of financial covenants. Areductioninrevenue, with no mitigations applied, of 12% compared to the base
caseinFY26 would be required to breach the fixed charge covenant at the quarter two test date in FY26. The sales decline required to
trigger a breach of the fixed charge covenant would need to be sustained over a number of months, with mitigating actions available to
Management, which have not been factoredinto the scenario. Such a scenariois, therefore, not considered by the Board to be reasonably
likely to occur, or to present arealistic threat to the Group’s existence as a going concern.

If any of the downside scenarios were to arise, including the severe but plausible downside scenario and the reverse stress test scenario,
there are a series of mitigating actions that the Group could seek toimplement to protect or enhance financial performance and position
including to:

o increase selling prices for products that have lower price elasticity to help offset additional sourcing costs;

e increase promotional activity to accelerate trading performance and reduce stock levels, or alternatively, reduce promotional
activity to better protect gross margins;

o reduce paid media marketing spend and postpone orreduce other planned marketing activities;

e reduce variable costsin operational functions to reflect the lower sales volumes;

¢ reduce central overhead costs (including headcount investment) over the short or medium term;

« delay new store openings or capital expenditure in technology and logistics;

e renegotiate or seek extended payment terms with suppliers on a permanent or temporary basis; and

o seekalternative forms of financing or new banking terms to support working capital and investment requirements.

The Board has also considered the potentialimpacts of climate changerisks (as set out on pages 42 to 44). These are not considered to
have a material effect on the Group’s financial projections over the assessment period.

Conclusion

The Board has undertaken a comprehensive review and assessment of going concern. Having reviewed current performance, financial
projections under a variety of scenarios related to the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties, total facilities and liquidity (including the
reduced liquidity risk resulting from the revised leverage covenant attached to the RCF), and debt servicing requirements, the Board
expects the Group to have adequate resources to continue in operational existence and meetits liabilities as they fall due over the period
of atleast 12 months from the date of approving these financial statements. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared
under the going concern basis of accounting.

Furtherinformation regarding the Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and positionis set out in the Strategic Report on pages 03 to 67.
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Accounting Policies continues
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated

based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. In the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised inthe periodin which the estimate is revised andin any future periods affected.

The key estimates and judgements that are used within the financial statements are set out below:

Judgement: Deferred tax asset

The Group has recognised a deferred tax asset of £0.5m on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30 March 2025
(31March 2024: £0.7m). Inrecognising this asset, the Group has applied judgementinits consideration of recoverability. In assessing
recoverability, the Group has reviewed its base case financial projections, which extend from the annual budget plan that was approved
by the Boardin March 2025. Forecasts for FY27 and beyond are based on the Group’s strategic objectives and its five-year financial plan,
which projects forwards from the FY26 budget.

Key assumptionsinclude Ecommerce and Retail like-for-like revenue growth, gross margin performance, the financialimpacts of opening
of new stores (including capital investments and time to maturity), operational efficiencies being delivered, investment in marketing
activity and the appropriate level of inventory required to maintain strong product availability for customers.

The recognition of the deferred tax assetin relation to the carried forward losses is judged to be appropriate given there being projections
of sufficient future taxable profits against which such deferred tax assets could be offset (as prescribed in IAS 12.24).

The Group has also considered upside and downside scenario projections alongside the base case scenario. Evenunder the downside
scenario projections, there were sufficient future profit expectations, against which the deferred tax asset could be recovered. In all
cases, the projectionsindicated that the deferred tax asset could be recovered within a three time period.

Judgement: Lease terms and expiries

Judgement is exercised in determining the lease term and expiry date of the lease. IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of alease together with the options to extend or terminate a lease, if the lessee were reasonably certain to exercise that option, or
when either the lessee or the lessor each has the right to terminate the lease without permission from the other party with no more than an
insignificant penalty. At the inception of any lease, the Group assesses whetheritis more likely than not to continue utilisation of the leased
asset subsequent to any option to terminate, assessing the likelihood of exercising a break option by considering current economic

and market conditions, current trading performance, forecast profitability, the significance of any fees payable, and the level of capital
investment in the property, as well as the status of any open dialogue with Landlords. Subsequent adjustments are made to the lease
terms where break options are reassessed, the results of which could be to extend orreduce recognised lease terms.

Judgement: Indicators of impairment

The Group has determined that only stores that have been open and trading for at least 24 months would be assessed forindicators of
impairment, being an appropriate period to allow the CGU to mature post-opening and therefore to provide a more reliable indication of
the future economic performance.

The Group has reviewed recent financial performance of individual CGUs and given consideration to the wider economic environment,
and arange of other potential factors, including any site-specific circumstances, to identify any indicators of impairment. Given the
gradually improving economic backdrop year onyear, and the continued like-for-like growth in the period, management have concluded
that macro-economic factors do not constitute indicators of material impairment and, therefore, a fullimpairment test across all

CGUs was not required. Where individual CGUs have indicators of impairment, animpairment assessment has been carried out as at
30March2025.

Other accounting estimates

The consolidated financial statementsinclude other areas of judgement and accounting estimates. Other areas of estimation are those
containing estimation on material assets, but where the range of reasonably possible outcomes would not result in a material change to
the financial statements.

Estimate: Discount rates

IFRS 16 states that the lease payments shall be discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate where the rate implicit in the
lease cannot be readily determined. Accordingly, all lease payments have been discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate
(IBR). The IBR has been determined by using arange of data, including current economic and market conditions, review of current debt
and capital within the Group and comparisons against seasoned corporate bondrates. Further details can be foundin note 16.

Judgement: Guarantees relating to assigned leases

InFY24, the Group assigned two leases of warehouse premises formerly occupied for operational purposes under a tripartite licence
agreement agreed with the landlord. The assignee entities are wholly responsible for fulfilling all future obligations under the terms of the
leases, which rununtil July 2035 and September 2040. ProCook Limited has, however, entered into a guarantee contract with the landlord
whereby if the assignees default onrents (which total £682,994 per annum) payable under the terms of the leases, then the landlord may
recover any rent default as that rent falls due from ProCook Limited and has the optionin the event of default, by giving sixmonths’ notice,
torequire ProCook Limited to enterinto a new lease on terms no more onerous than the existing lease for the remainder of the lease term.
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The Group is required to recognise expected credit loss provision (“ECL”) based on unbiased forward-looking informationin relation
to these financial guarantee contracts provided to the landlord. At the reporting date, an allowance is required for the 12-month (Stage
1) ECLs. If the creditrisk has significantly increased since initial recognition (Stage 2), orif the financial instrument s creditimpaired
(Stage 3), an allowance (or provision) should be recognised for the lifetime ECLs. The measurement of ECL is calculated using two

main components: probability of default and loss given default. The probability of default for both assignees has been assessed by
the Directors by reference to credit ratings provided by an external credit rating agency on the basis that credit risk had not increased
significantly since the guarantees were granted to the landlord. The loss given default is based on the Directors’ assessment of the
guaranteed rental and other costs, including business rates and re-marketing costs that would be incurred by the Group in the event of
default by the assignees under the terms of the guarantee contract. The Directors consider that a 12-month period represents a prudent
assessment of the period that rental and related costs would be incurred in the case of default, and this has been reflected in their
calculation of the loss given default.

Applying the assumptions set out above, the resultant ECL provision that would be required is trivial and, therefore, no costinrelation to
the contract and no ECL provision has beenreflected in these financial statements.

Estimate: impairment provision

The Group has performed animpairment assessment in respect of all CGUs, which have indicators of impairment or reversal of previous
impairment. To perform the impairment assessment, the Group has determined the value-in-use of each CGU overits remaining
usefullife. Indoing this, estimates have been made on future financial performance in order to determine areasonable estimate for

the value-in-use of each CGU. The forecast financial performance based on the Group’s three-year plan, has been prepared utilising
both historical experience as well as a forward-looking estimates with respect to trading conditions and performance, together with
allocations of central overheads and an estimate of Ecommerce contribution attributable to customers first acquiredin stores, reflecting
the omnichannel nature of our business. In the year ended 30 March 2025 this assessment has not resulted in any impairment charge or
reversal, thereof, to the Consolidated Income Statement.

Basis of consolidation

Group companies included in the consolidated financial statements for FY25 include ProCook Group plc and all subsidiary undertakings,
which are those entities that it controls. ProCook Group plc controls an entity whenit is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
fromitsinvolvement with the entity and can affect those returns throughits power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which controlis transferred to ProCook Group plc until the date that control ceases. The Company
assesses whetherit controls aninvestee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
controlindicators listed above.

Where necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with ProCook Group plc’s accounting policies.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances, and any unrealised gains and losses orincome and expenses arising fromintra-group transactions are eliminated
in preparing the financialinformation. Losses are eliminated in the same way as gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Revenue recognition

The Group records customer transactions throughits store point of sale systems and its Ecommerce platforms. Revenue isrecognised
at the pointin time when the Group delivers a product or service to a customer, whether this be at the point of sale in store, or later upon
delivery to a customer. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the customer purchases the product in store orupon
ordering online.

Revenue is measured as the fair value of the consideration received orreceivable, excluding discounts, value added tax and other sales
taxes. Revenue isreduced for estimated customerreturns, and other similar allowances.

Deferred revenue

Sales made through the Group’s website are recognised at the point the product is delivered to the customer. Deferred revenue
isrecognised as a creditor at the point where the orderhas beenreceived and not yet despatched, or where the goods have been
despatched but are yet to be delivered to the customer.

Deferred revenue arises inrespect of gift cards as payment has been received for a performance obligation, which willbe performed at a
later pointin time, when the gift card is redeemed or expires. No estimate for breakage has beenrecognisedinrevenue.

Refunds and returns

At the point at which goods are supplied, the Group provides customers with aright to return goods within a 30-day period for a full refund
subject to certain terms and conditions. The Group has established arefunds and returns other payables balance within the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position to provide for the expected level of returns on sales made before the period end but returned after the
period end. The provision forreturns is calculated based on estimated refund and returnrates using historical trends. The associated
estimated value of cost of sales related to the returneditems is also reflected withininventory.
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Expenses

Share-based payments

The Group operates anumber of share-based compensation plans which are all equity settled, in exchange for servicesreceived from
employees. The fair value of these compensation plansis calculated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes model. The resulting cost
is expensed to the Consolidated Income Statement over the vesting period. The value of the expense is adjusted to reflect expected and
actuallevels of vesting, considering any performance conditions that may apply to individual plans.

Social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of the share options are considered anintegral part of the grant itself
and the expense is treated as a cash-settled transaction.

No other entities in the Group other than ProCook Group plc have issued any equity-settled share-based incentives.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Income Statement asincurred. The cost of
any unused holiday entitlementis recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the Group is demonstrably committed to terminate the
employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Pensions
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme using an external pensions partner. Contributions to the scheme are

expensed to the Consolidated Income Statement in the period to which the contributions relate. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group.

Non-underlying items

Non-underlying items are defined as transactions that, in the opinion of the Directors, should be disclosed separately from the reported

Consolidated Income Statement in order to provide a consistent and comparable view of the underlying performance of the Group. This
willinclude those items that relate to non-recurring events and are material in nature and which have beenincurred outside of the normal

business operations, including, but not limited, to restructuring and fund-raising activities.

Finance income and expenses
Finance income comprises interest on bank deposits.

Finance expense comprises of interest payable on the Group’s finance facilities and lease liability interest, which are expensed to the
Consolidated Income Statementin the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency translation

Transactionsin foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Any
exchange gains orlosses are recognisedin the Consolidated Income Statement.

Current and deferred taxation

Taxation, comprising current and deferred taxation, is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement, except where a charge
attributable to anitem of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income or to anitemrecognised directly in equity is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax on profits orlosses for the period, is calculated based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively enacted,
by the reporting date in the UK where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax balancesin the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position are recognised inrespect of all temporary differences that
have originated but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except where:

o Therecognition of deferred tax assets s limited to the extent thatit is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of
deferred taxliabilities or other future taxable profits;

o Anydeferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax allowances have been met; and

« Where timing differences relate to interestsin subsidiaries, associates, branches and joint ventures and the Group can control their
reversal and such reversalis not considered probable in the foreseeable future.
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Dividends

Ordinary dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are only recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when
they have been approved by the shareholders, and the Company is obliged to make payment.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are either acquired separately orinternally developed are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Directly attributable costs associated with software development by the Group’s own IT experts, inrespect of customised IT programmes
and systems controlled by the Group are capitalised as intangible assets, provided they meet the following recognition requirements:

e The development costs canbe measuredreliably

o The projectis technically and commercially feasible

o The Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project

e The Group has the ability to use or sell the software

o The software will generate probable future economic benefits.

Software development costs not meeting these criteria are classified as research or maintenance expenditure and are expensed to

the Consolidated Income Statement as they are incurred. Directly attributable costs include employee costs incurred on software
development and external developer costs.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changesin
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Assets under construction are capitalised as
expenditure isincurred, with amortisation commencing from the point at which the asset starts being utilised by the Group. Annual
impairment assessments are undertaken to ensure the valuations remain appropriate. Amortisationis provided on the following basis:

¢ Intangibles (Software) 3years, straight line

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired and owned by the Group is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulatedimpairment losses. Historical costincludes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary forit to be capable of operatingin the mannerintended by management.

Assets under construction are capitalised as expenditure isincurred and tested forimpairments annually. Depreciation is expensed to
the Consolidated Income Statement to allocate the cost of assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. Depreciationis provided on the following basis, from the point at which the asset starts being utilised by the Group:

e Land and buildings 5-10years, straightline

e Plantand machinery 10 - 20 years, straight line

o Fixtures and fittings 3 -10years, straight line (or over term of the lease)
» Motorvehicles Syears, straight line

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, or if thereis an
indication of a significant change since the last reporting date. At each reporting period end date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered animpairmentloss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less any costs to sell andits value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less thanits carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset isreduced to its recoverable amount and animpairment
lossis recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing any proceeds on disposal with the carrying amount and are recognisedin the
Consolidated Income Statement.
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Leased assets

Atinception of anew contract, the Group assesses whethera contractis, or contains, alease. A contractis, or contains, alease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of anidentified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whethera contract conveys the right to control the use of anidentified asset, the Group assesses whether a physically distinct
asset can be identified; the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the asset throughout the period
of use; the Group has the ability to direct the use of the asset over the lease term; and is able to restrict the usage of third parties as
applicable.

Leases arerecognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as aright-of-use asset with a corresponding lease liability
except for:

o Leases of lowvalue assets (less than £5,000); or
o Leaseswithadurationof12 months orless.

Right-of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received, and increased for:

o Lease payments made at orbefore commencement of the lease;
o Initial direct costsincurred; and
» The amount of any provision recognised where the Group is contractually required to dismantle, remove, or restore the leased asset.

Lease liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position measured at the present value of the contractual
payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as
is typically the case) thisis not readily determinable, in which case the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease
isused.

Oninitial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:

« Amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;
o The exercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Group if it is reasonably certain to access that option; and

¢ Any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the basis of the termination option
being exercised.

Subsequent toinitial measurement, lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on the balance outstanding
and are reduced forlease payments made. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the
lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the lease term. When the Group revises its
estimate of the term of any lease (because, forexample, it re-assesses the probability of alessee extension or termination option being
exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted
at therevised discount rate applicable at the date of estimation. An equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being depreciated over the remaining (revised) lease term.

Where the Group’s property leases contain variable payment terms, payments determined as variable are treated as a charge to the
Consolidated Income Statement and not capitalised. Variable lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability
if they depend on anindex orrate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term.

Dilapidations
The value of any provision for contractually committed future costs to dismantle, remove orrestore aleased asset are included in the initial
measurement of aright-of-use asset.

Inventories

Inventory is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costis
determined on a weighted average cost basis and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their presentlocation and condition. Net realisable value is the amount that can be realised from the sale of the inventory in the normal
course of business after allowing for the costs of realisation.

Inventory in transit at the period end is included withininventory at cost, where ownership of legal title by the Group can be readily
determined.

At eachreporting date, an assessment is made forimpairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of inventory over its estimated selling
price less costs to sellisrecognised as animpairment loss in the Consolidated Income Statement. In the current period, the Group has
determined thatit should reduce the carrying value of inventory to recognise the estimated exposure to writing off damaged items held at
costwithininventory at the year end, which will subsequently be disposed of by the Group whenidentified as damaged of faulty after the
year end. Reversals of impairmentlosses are also recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.
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Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The Group makes use of a simplified approachin accounting for trade and other receivables and records the loss allowance as lifetime
expected creditlosses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential failure to make payment to

the Group inline with agreed terms, at any point during the life of the financial instrument. In calculating this, the Group usesits historical
experience, external indicators, and forward-looking information to calculate the expected credit losses.

The Group assessesimpairment of trade and other receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk characteristics
based on grouping debt by days overdue.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are liquid financial assets and include cashin hand, deposits held on call with banks, cashin transit to the Group
inrespect of debit and credit card receipts, and other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of three months orless.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are all financial assets and financial liabilities that comprise a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity and are detailed in note 25.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the Group becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable (other than financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit orloss are added to or deducted from the
fairvalue as appropriate, oninitial recognition.

Afinancialliability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Afinancial asset s
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

The fairvalues of financial instruments measured at amortised cost and derivative instruments recognised at fair value are disclosed in
note 25.

Financial assets
Financial assets are subsequently classified into the following categories:

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
o Fairvalue through other comprehensive income; or
e Amortised cost.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial asset (i.e. the Group’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows) and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

They are measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets not held at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are held at fair value through profit orloss.
At present the Group only has financial assets held at amortised cost, apart from derivatives, which are measured at fair value through
profit orloss.

Financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements.

Equity instruments are any contract that evidences aresidual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recognised at proceeds received net of issue costs.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss or financial liabilities at amortised cost, which
are measured using the effective interest method. At present, the Group only has financial liabilities held at amortised cost, apart from
financial guarantees and derivatives, which are measured at fair value through profit orloss.
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Financial guarantees

The Group recognises financial guarantees where it has an obligation to reimburse another party for aloss should a specified debtordoes
not make payment to theminline with contractual requirements. These guarantees, relating to the assignment of previously occupied
warehouses, are measured at fair value through profit orloss based on the Expected Credit Losses model and are remeasured at each
reporting date inaccordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires the use of forward-looking information to recognise expected credit losses - the ‘expected credit loss model’.
Recognition of creditlossesis not dependent on the Group first identifying a creditloss event; instead, the Group considers a broader
range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions and
reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at fair value at the date a derivative contractis
enteredinto and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at eachreporting end date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the
Consolidated Income Statement within other gains/(losses)immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in Consolidated Income Statement depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset, whereas a derivative with a negative fair value isrecognised as a
financial liability.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position where alegal or constructive obligation has beenincurred,
which will probably lead to an outflow of resources that can be reasonably estimated. The amount recognised as a provisionis the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting end date, taking into consideration the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. The timing of cash outflows are ,by their nature, uncertain and are, therefore, best estimates. A
contingent liability is disclosed where the existence of the obligations will only be confirmed by future events, orwhere the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with reasonable reliability.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the obligationis recognised
at presentvalue. When a provision is measured at present value, the unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance costin the
Consolidated Income Statement in the period in whichit arises.

Warranties

AllProCook products are offered with a warranty ranging from 12 months to 25 years. This warranty provides the customer with the right to
return the product, should it not be performing in the manner as described when the product was purchased. The customeris then entitled
to areplacement product free of charge.

Allwarranties in the Group are assurance type warranties as the Group assures that the product will perform as expected. The Group’s
warranties do not provide any additional services to the customer and are not able to be purchased separately; the warranties provide a
guarantee to the customer that the product will perform as expected.

The Group maintains a warranty provisionin respect of future expected cost of claims outstanding at the year-end, based on sales which
are accompanied by product warranties made prior to the financial year-end and historical return rate trends.

Dilapidations

The Group maintains a dilapidations provisionin respect of its future restoration cost obligations of leasehold properties occupied by,
or previously occupied by, the Group as at the financial year-end, based on historical average costs incurred to vacate and make good a
property, and any specific contractual requirements detailed within lease contracts.

Borrowings

Interest-bearing loans are initially recorded at their fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost. Arrangement and transaction
feesincurred are amortised over the term of the loan. Borrowings are classed as current liabilities unless the Group has aright to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the date of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Share capital

Changesinthe share capital structure are recognised within equity on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, with any excess
over the nominal share price being recognised within share premium. Where the Company purchases its own equity share capital
(treasury shares) the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs, is deducted from the equity attributable
to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently sold orreissued, any
consideration received net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, isincludedin
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of eachreporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is an
indication of impairment. Forimpairment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash
inflows (cash-generating unit or CGU). As aresult, some assets are tested individually forimpairment, and some are tested at the CGU
level. Management considers CGUs to be determinable by individual store and the various ecommerce platforms.

Assets and CGUs are tested forimpairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Animpairmentloss is recognised for the amount by which the assets or CGU’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount, whichis the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use.

To determine the value-in-use, management estimate expected future cash flows from the CGU and determine a suitable discount rate to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Discount factors are determined for the CGU to reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and asset-specific risk factors.

Impairment charges are allocated on a pro-rata basis in accordance with the CGU’s carrying amounts. In allocating the impairment loss
to a CGU the carrying amount of each asset within the CGU is reduced to the highest of its fair value less costs to sell; value-in-use; ornil.
Recognition of impairment losses do notresultin arecognition of aliability. All assets are subsequently reassessed forindications that
animpairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. Animpairment loss is reversed if the assets or CGU’s recoverable amount
exceedsits carrying amount.

Segmental reporting

The Group’s operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board of Directors. The
Boardisidentified as the Chief Operating Decision-Maker (“CODM”) for the business and is responsible for making strategic decisions,
allocating resources, and assessing performance of the operating segments. The Group is considered to have two operating segments:
Ecommerce and Retail.

Revenues and underlying operating profits for both segments are generated from the sale of kitchenware and related products. Each
segment has separate operational characteristics and are identifiable by way of where the customer completes their transaction; eitherin
aretail store, or via one of the ecommerce website platforms the Group has operated during the year.

New standards, amendments and interpretations
New standards impacting the Group that have been adopted for the financial year ending 30 March 2025 are as follows:

+ Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
o Amendmentsto IAS 1Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

o Amendmentsto IFRS 16 Sale and Leaseback

¢ AmendmentstoIAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

Following an assessment, the Group have determined that these standards do not have a materialimpact upon the Group’s Consolidated
Financial Statements.

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

There are several standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which have been issued by the IASB that are effective in future
accounting periods that the Group has decided not to adopt early:

o Amendments to IAS 21Lack of Exchangeability
o« Amendments to IFRS 9 Classifications and Measurements of Financial Instruments
e Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards - Volume 11: IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 & IAS 7

The Group do not expect these standards to have a materialimpact onits Consolidated Financial Statements in future reporting periods.




Financial Statements

134 ProCook’ 135

Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements
Forthe 52 weeksto 30 March 2025

1. Revenue 4. Segmental reporting
Group revenue is not reliant on any single major customer or group of customers. Management considers revenue is derived from one The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) is the Board of Directors and segmental reporting analysis is presented based on the
business stream being the retail of kitchenware and related products and services. Group’sinternal reporting to the Board. At 30 March 2025, the Group had two operating segments, being Ecommerce and Retail. Central

costs are reported separately to the Board. While central costs are not considered to be an operating segment, it has beenincluded
below to aid reconciliation with operating profit as presented in the Consolidated Income Statement. The Board reviews segment
performance based onunderlying operating profit.

Customersinteract and shop with the Group across multiple touchpoints and theirjourney often involves more than one channel.
The Chief Operating Decision-Maker is the Board of Directors of ProCook Group plc. The Board reviews internal management reports on
afrequent basis, andinline with internal reporting, the channel reporting below indicates where customers complete their final purchase

transaction.
52 weeks 52 weeks

52 weeks 52 weeks ended ended
ended ended 30 March 31March
£ 202 2024
30 March 31March 000 925 0
£°000 2025 2024 Revenue
United Kingdom 69,493 62,585 Ecommerce 25,476 22,695
Total revenue 69,493 62,585 Retail 44,017 39,890
Totalrevenue 69,493 62,585
2. Operating expenses Operating profit
Operating profit for the periods is stated after charging: Ecommerce 6,676 5,325
Retail 8,824 8,220
52 weeks 52 weeks Central costs (12,293) (11,422)
ended ended Non-underlying operating costs (344) (145)
30 March 31March Operating profit 2,863 1,978
£°000 2025 2024 )

— : : Finance costs (1,415) (1,230)
Depre‘matllon of tanglblle fixed assets 1,234 936 SiarlesseaeEins 272) T4
Amort|slatllon of Ir.1tang|ble assets 78 131 e s _ 132)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4,356 3,945 Profit before tax 1176 730
Variable lease payments 516 637
Gain on disposal of leases - (2,301) 1 Non-underlying finance costs are the interest costs on the lease liabilities for the disused warehouses which were disposed of in the prior year.

Loss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment 45 457 Operating profitincludes depreciation and amortisation of £4,388k relating to the Retail segment (FY24: £3,350k) and £1,280k relating to

the Central segment (FY24: £1,246k).
Total R&D expenditure included in operating expenses for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2025 was £nil (52 weeks ended

31March 2024: £nil). Substantially all of the assets of ProCook Group plc are located in the UK.

5. Auditor remuneration
The Group’s total fees paid or payable toits auditorin respect of the audit of the Group’s financial statements and for other services

3. Non-underlying items
Consistent with prior years, expensesinrespect of employee share-based awards, which relate to the IPO eventin FY22, whichitself is

non-recurring, have been presented as non-underlying costs. These expenses have concluded in FY25 with the third anniversary of the arevelsd (@ ine ol
IPOin November 2024 and the vesting of the schemes.

o ) . e o 52 weeks 52 weeks
InFY24, the Group initiated a restructuring of the senior management team, which finalised within FY25. The one-off costs of £0.2m ended ended
(FY24: £0.7m)have been treated as non-underlying given their material and one-off nature. The Directors consider that separate 30 March 31March
disclosure of this restructuring cost as non-underlying provides additional useful information to the users of the financial statements £000 2025 2024

around the day-to-day trading performance of the Group.

Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 48
In the prioryear the Group transitioned toits new Store Support Centre, incurring transition and dual-running costs prior to the assignment Audit of the Parent Company and Group subsidiary entities 275 269
of the two previous warehouse leases, disposal of related assets, and the reversal of £1.1m of impairment provisions.
Total auditor remuneration 320 317
52 weeks 52 weeks .
ended ended 6. Otherincome
30 March 31March
£7000 2025 2024 22 We:k; 22 We:k;
ende ende
SSC transition-related costs 1,213 30 March 31March
Net profit onreassignment of leases - (1,867) £°000 2025 2024
Seniormanagement restructuring costs 179 718 Rental income 49
Share-based payments 151 81 Total otherincome 49
Non-underlying operating expenses 344 145
Non-underlying finance expense - 132

Non-underlying loss before tax 344 277
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements continued
Forthe 52 weeks to 30 March 2025

7. Employee numbers and costs 11. Tax expense

The average monthly number of colleagues employed by the Group, including Directors, was: The tax expense for the periods presented differ from the standard rate of UK corporate income tax applicable in the financial year.
The differences are explained below:

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended 52 weeks 52 weeks
30 March 31March ended ended
2025 2024 30 March 31March
Retail and distribution staff 501 513 £'000 2025 2024
Support staff 14 18 Current taxation
Total 615 631 Corporate income tax charge for the period - -
Adjustmentsinrespect of previous years 44 (119)
The total remuneration of allemployees, including Directors, includes: 44 19)
Deferred tax
52 weeks 52 weeks Origination and reversal of temporary differences 483 336
ended CUIREE Impact of changein taxrate - -
30 March 31March
£°000 2025 2024 Adjustmentsinrespect of prior periods (353) (97)
Wages and salaries 16,205 13,416 Totaltax expense 174 120
Social security contributions and similar taxes 1,187 1,049 The tax charge reconciles with the standard rate of UK corporate income tax as follows:
Other pension costs 301 281
Total 17,693 14,746 52 weeks 155 ey
ended ended
Details of Directors’ remuneration, including base pay, short- and long-termincentive schemes and pension entitlements are disclosedin 30 March 31March
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and Annual Report on Remuneration on pages 92 to 107. £000 2025 2024
i i Profit on ordinary activities before tax 1,176 730
. Retirement benefit plan
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for all qualifying employees. The scheme is administered and UK Corporate income tax at standardrate of 25% (2024: 25%) 294 183
managed by a separate third-party specialist pension scheme provider. The total expense recognised in the Consolidated Income Factors effecting the charge in the period:
Statement forthe 52 week.slendled 30 March 2025 was £301k (31March 2024: £281k) and represents contributions payable to these plans Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes 131 153
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans. e e a4 m9)
9. Finance expense Other permanent differences 58 (128)
Fixed asset differences - 9
52 weeks 52 weeks Adjustments in respect of prior periods (deferred tax) (353) 97)
3031:"21‘ 3 i:::_i: Adjustments to brought forward values - (13)
£°000 2025 2024 Remeasurement of deferred tax - 132
Unwinding of discounted provisions 13 Total tax expense 174 120

Interest onborrowings and otherinterest 419 367 The taxation expense for the period as a percentage of reported profit before tax (the effective taxrate) was 14.8% (2024:16.4%).
Interest onlease liabilities 975 982
. The standardrate of UK corporate income tax was 25% for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 25%). Deferred tax
Total finance expense 1,415 1,362 )
balancesreflect future corporation taxrates of 25%.
10. Other gains and losses The deferred tax asset has arisen due to the timing of future vesting dates in respect of share-based payments and carried forward losses

from the previous financial year, offset by accelerated capital allowances onitems of property, plant and equipment. The amounts have

52 weeks 52 weeks been presented on a net basis to follow the way in which they will be recouped by the Group.

ended ended

30 March 31March

£°000 2025 2024
Unrealised FX (losses)/gains (219) 4MN
Exchangerate (losses) (53) (297)
Total (losses)/gains (272) n4a

Unrealised FX (losses)/gains relate to fair value movements on derivatives.




1 3 8 ProCook’

Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements continued
Forthe 52 weeks to 30 March 2025

11. Tax expense continued

Movement in deferred tax:

Short-term Accelerated Share- Carried
timing capital based forward
£°000 differences allowances payments losses Total
Deferred tax asset/(liability) as at 2 April 2023 - (1,080) 343 1,631 894
(Debit)/credit to profitandloss 12 (516) (132) 297 (239)
Deferred tax asset/(liability) as at 31March 2024 12 (1,596) 21 1,928 655
(Debit)/credit to profit and loss (38) (158) (110) 177 (129)
Deferred tax asset/(liability) as at 30 March 2025 74 (1,754) 101 2,105 526

Carried forward tax losses arise from losses incurredin FY23. As set out in the Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements section on
page 126, the recognition of the deferred tax asset in relation to the carried forward losses is judged to be appropriate given the Group’s
projections of sufficient future taxable profits against which such deferred tax assets could be offset.

12. Dividends
No dividends were declared or paid in the 52 weeks to 30 March 2025 (31 March 2024 nil).

13. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary sharesinissue.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue during the period plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
have beenissued on the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary sharesinto ordinary shares.

Non-underlying expenses relating to share based payments differ from the standard rate of tax due to movementsinrelated deferred
tax assets, the value of whichis dependent on the Group’s share price at the reporting date, and the statutory deductionreceived which
depends on the share price on the exercise date. The resulting effective taxrate on these costs was 16.6%. Other non-underlying items
were deductible at the standard rate of 25%, giving an overall effective tax rate on non-underlying items of 21.4%.

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

30 March 31March

2025 2024

Weighted average number of shares 108,956,624 108,956,624
Impact of share options 8,634,223 7,072,398
Number of shares for diluted earnings per share 117,590,847 116,029,022

52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended ended ended

30 March 30 March 31March 31March

2025 2025 2024 2024

£°000 Underlying' }E]eleJa-1s M Underlying' Reported
Profit for the period 1,273 1,002 842 610
Earnings per ordinary share - basic 1.17p 0.92p 0.77p 0.56p
Earnings per ordinary share - diluted 1.08p 0.85p 0.73p 0.53p

1 Underlying earnings per ordinary share is a non-IFRS measure.
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14. Intangible assets
£°000 Software Total
Cost
At2 April 2023 415 415
Additions — -
At 31March 2024 415 415
Additions - -
30March2025 415 415
Accumulated amortisation
At2 April 2023 180 180
Charge for the period 131 131
At 31March 2024 3N 3N
Charge for the period 78 78
30March2025 389 389
Netbook value
At2 April 2023 235 235
At 31March 2024 104 104
30 March 2025 26 26

Amortisation was recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement within operating expenses throughout the period.
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15. Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plantand Fixtures and Motor Assetsunder
£°000 buildings machinery fittings vehicles construction Total
Cost
At2 April 2023 187 508 11,751 29 1,627 14,102
Additions - 153 1,327 - 364 1,844
Transfers - - 1,532 - (1,532) -
Disposals - (296) (615) - (35) (946)
At 31March 2024 187 365 13,995 29 424 15,000
Additions - 7 3,277 - 544 3,828
Transfers - - 303 - (303) -
Disposals - - M2) - (26) (138)
30March2025 187 372 17,463 29 639 18,690
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 2 April 2023 7 198 6,100 16 - 6,321
Impairment reallocation’ 132 (10) 121 m - -
Charge for the period - 29 903 4 - 936
Disposals = (130) (359) = = (489)
At 31March 2024 139 87 6,523 19 - 6,768
Charge for the period - 26 1,204 4 - 1,234
Disposals - - 79) - - 79)
30March2025 139 13 7,648 23 - 7,923
Netbook value
At2 April 2023 180 310 5,651 13 1,627 7,781
At 31March2024 48 278 7,472 10 424 8,232
30March2025 48 259 9,815 6 639 10,767

1 Adetailed review of 2023 impairment allocation to individual assets was performed during the prior period, resulting in arevised allocation of the charge
across the different asset classes; as the overall effect of the reallocation isimmaterial to the financial statements, retrospective application has not
beenrequired.

Assets under constructionincludes retail store equipment and fixtures acquired but not yetin use.

Impairment tests have been carried out where appropriate, with no impairment charges recognised in the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2025
(FY24: £nil).

Depreciation was recognisedin the Consolidated Income Statement within operating expenses throughout the period.

16. Leased assets

The Group leases anumber of assets, with all lease payments fixed over the lease term. Where there are leasehold properties that hold a
variable element to lease payments made, these are not fixed and are not capitalised as part of the right-of-use asset. Allexpected future
non-variable cash out flows are reflected within the measurement of the lease liabilities at each period end.

As at As at
30 March 31March
2025 2024

Number of active leases 74 70

The Group’s leases include leasehold properties for commercial and head office use, motor vehicles and plant equipment. The leases
range inlength from 2 to 15 years and vary inlength depending onlease type. Leasehold properties hold the longest-term length of up to
15 years, plant and equipment of up to 5 years, and motor vehicles of up to 3 years.
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16. Leased assets continued

Extension, termination, and break options

The Group occasionally negotiates extension, termination or break clauses inits leases. In determining the lease term, management
considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination
option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only includedin the lease termif the lease is reasonably certainto be
extended (or not terminated).

On acase-by-case basis, the Group will consider whether the absence of a break clause would expose the Group to excessive risk.
Typically, factors considered in deciding to negotiate a break clause include:

e Thelength of the lease term;

¢ The economic stability of the environment in which the property is located; and

o Whetherthe locationrepresents a new area of operations for the Group.

Incremental borrowing rate

Leases currently recognised are discounted withincremental borrowing ratesinarange of 2% - 7%, being the rate that the individual
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similareconomic
environment with similar terms, security, and conditions. This rate is used to reflect the risk premium over the borrowing cost measured by
reference to the Group’s financing facilities.

Short-term or low-value lease expense
No short-term orlow-value leases existed during the financial period.

Right-of-use assetsincluded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position are as follows:

Leasehold Motor Plantand
£°000 property vehicles equipment Total
Cost
At2 April 2023 36,484 182 39 36,705
Additions 2,712 - 59 2,765
Remeasurement’ 1,021 - - 1,021
Disposals (8,876) (57) - (8,933)
At 31March2024 31,341 125 92 31,558
Additions 4,395 110 - 4,505
Remeasurement! 348 - - 348
Disposals (2,076) (73) - (2,149)
At30March2025 34,008 162 92 34,262
Accumulated depreciation and impairments
At2 April2023 11,149 97 9 11,255
Charge for the period 3,874 54 17 3,945
Disposals (4,107) (57) - (4,164)
Impairment - - - -
At 31March2024 10,916 94 26 11,036
Charge for the period 4,280 57 19 4,356
Disposals (2,028) (60) - (2,088)
Impairment - - - -
At 30 March 2025 13,168 91 45 13,304
NetBook Value
At 2 April 2023 25,8555 85 30 25,450
At 31March2024 20,425 31 66 20,522
At 30 March 2025 20,840 71 47 20,958

1 Remeasurements have arisen where rentals have been subject to indexation orrent reviews, or where store lease rental terms and lease expiry dates
have beenrenegotiated.
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16. Leased assets continued 16. Leased assets continued

Forimpairment testing purposes, the Group has determined that each storeis a separate CGU. Each CGU is tested forimpairment at the Reconciliation of current and non-current lease liabilities:
balance sheet date if any indicators of impairment exist.

The value inuse of each CGU s calculated based on the Group’s latest budget and forecast cash flows, covering a three-year period, Asat Asat
which have regard to historic performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group’s views on the future achievable 30 March 31March
growth. Cash flows beyond this three-year period are extrapolated using alonger-term growth rates based on management’s future £'000 2025 2024
expectations. These have been prepared utilising both historical experience as well as a forward-looking estimates with respect to trading Current 3,708 3,347
conditions and performance, together with allocations of central overheads and an estimate of Ecommerce contribution attributable to NER—EUEnRg 19,586 19,295
customers first acquired inretail stores, reflecting the omnichannel nature of our business, based on historical sales data.
Total 23,294 22,642
The key assumptionsin the value in use calculations are the growth rates of sales and gross profit margins, changes in the operating cost
base, long-term growth rates and the risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate. 17. Inventories
The pre-tax discount rates are derived from the Group’s weighted average cost of capital, which has been calculated using the capital
asset pricing model, the inputs of whichinclude a country risk-free rate, equity risk premium, Group size premium and a risk adjustment Asat Asat
(beta) along with the cost of debt. The resulting pre-tax discount rate used was 11.7% (FY24: 13.4%). Impairment tests have been carried 30March 31March
outwhere indicators of impairment exist, with no impairment charges recognisedin the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2025 (FY24: nil). £'000 2025 2024
Finished goods and goods forresale 12,095 9,716

Lease liabilities includedin the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position were as follows:

The cost of Group inventories recognised as an expense in the period to 30 March 2025 amounted to £22.9m (31 March 2024: £21.5m).

Leasehold Motor Plant and Thisisincludedin cost of sales.
£°000 property vehicles equipment Total
- Within inventory, the Group has recognised a provisionrelating to damaged stock of £129k as at 30 March 2025 (30 March 2024: £68K).

At 2 April 2023 29,161 76 29 29,266

Additions 2,665 - 53 2,718 18. Trade and other receivables

Remeasurement! 1,126 - - 1,126

Interest expense 978 1 3 982 As at As at
30 March 31March

Lease payments (4,31 (48) (21 (4,380) £000 2025 2024

i 2 = =

Disposals (7,070) (7,070) Tradereceivables - -

At 31. I.Vlarch 2024 LA s s LA Otherreceivables 627 Al

Additions 4,040 110 - 4150 Derivative financial instruments - 42

1 = =

Remeasurement 351 351 Prepayments 1,853 2,989

Interest expense 968 4 i3 975 Total 2,480 3742

Lease payments (4,665) (65) (20) (4,750)

Disposals (60) (14) = (74) Alltrade and other receivables are due within one year from the end of the reporting period. No impairment was incurred on trade and

At 30 March 2025 23,183 64 47 23,294 otherreceivables during the period and the expected credit loss provision held at period end is nil (31 March 2024: nil). No material

amounts are overdue as at the reporting date (31 March 2024: nil). The Directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other
1 Remeasurements have arisen where rentals have been subject to indexation or rent reviews, or where store lease rental terms and lease expiry dates receivables approximates to their fair value.
have beenrenegotiated.
2 Disposalsinthe prior year predominantly related to the assignment of leases relating to two distribution centres, which were surplus to requirements Includedin otherreceivables at the period end is supplier deposits of £129k (31March 2024: £373k).

after the transition to the new Store Support Centre at the beginning of FY24.

- L S , . - , 19. Cash and cash equivalents
The remaining contractual maturities of the lease liabilities, which are gross and undiscounted, and areconciliation to their present value

are as follows:

As at As at

30 March 31March

As at As at £°000 2025 2024

£000 = Mzac;;g el Mza(;gz Cashatbank available on demand 1,788 854

Cashintransit 974 1,151
Within1year 4,445 4177

Total 2,762 2,005
Afterlyearandlessthan2years 4,518 3,920
After2years andlessthan 5 years 9,378 8,008
After5years andlessthan10 years 6,372 7,024
After10 years 2,863 3,987
Total including interest cash flows 27,576 27,116
Less: interest cash flows (4,282) (4,474)

Total principal cash flows 23,294 22,642
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20. Trade and other payables

As at As at
30 March 31March
£°000 2025 2024

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade payables 2,086 2,889
Otherpayables 2,581 1,003
Accruals 5,086 4,132
Deferredincome 78 122
Deferredincome relating to gift card sales 157 45
Derivative financialinstruments 177 -
Other taxation and social security 3,767 2,240
13,932 10,431

Amounts falling due after one year:

Accruals 77 48
Total 14,009 10,479

Revenue of £29k was recognised in the year relating to bought forward gift card liabilities (31 March 2024: £Nil).

The Directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value. Trade payables are non-interest
bearing and are typically settled monthly.

21. Provisions

As at As at
30 March 31March
£°000 2025 2024

Amounts falling due within one year:
Warranties 163 147
Dilapidations 110 106
273 253

Amounts falling due after one year:

Warranties 37 77
Dilapidations 602 488
639 565
Total 912 818

Provisions forwarranties are largely short termin nature given the Group’s experience of the timing of such claims being largely made
within the first year of purchase. The estimated costs to service these claims have minimal uncertainty as they are based on the cost of the
Group’s products.

Provisions for dilapidations are based on the Group’s past experience of existing leasehold property sites. It is estimated that all
dilapidations costs will occur at the end of the term of the lease.

£°000 Dilapidations Warranties Total
At 31March2024 594 224 818
Additions during the year 106 153 259
Remeasurement 13 - 13
Unwinding of discount rate 21 - 21
Utilised during the year (22) 177) (199)

At 30 March 2025 712 200 912
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22. Borrowings
As at As at
30 March 31March
£°000 2025 2024
Current
Bankloans 1,805 2,754
Total borrowings 1,805 2,754

As at 30 March 2025, the Group has access to anuncommitted trade finance facility, which expires on 28 February 2026, although s
expectedto be renewed at that date, with a maximum limit of £6.0m. There is a performance KPI (inventory to payables ratio), which
is monitored on a quarterly basis; however, there are no covenants or guarantees or other collateral associated with this facility. The
following amounts had been drawn down and were outstanding at 30 March 2025: £1.8m (31March 2024: £2.8m).

The Group has access to acommitted £10m Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) to provide additional cash headroom to support operational
and investment activities. Additionally, the RCF agreement provides an accordion option, subject to the lender’s approval, to extend the
facility by a further £56m. No amounts were drawn on this facility at the year end date (31 March 2024: nil).

Shortly before the year-end, on the 28 March 2025, the Group successfully arranged a one-year extension to the RCF, which extends

the expiry date out from 20 April 2026 to 20 April 2027. Additionally, the terms inrespect of leverage cover have been amended for Q3
test dates for FY26 and FY27 with net debt to be no greater than 3.0x EBITDA. It remains at 2.0x for all other test dates. The fixed charge
covenant test remains unchanged, requiring EBITDAR to be no less than 1.4x fixed charges. Both covenants are tested quarterly and are
calculated onalast 12-monthrolling, pre-IFRS 16 basis. The Group had a debenture in place during the year, which related to a fixed charge
over all present freehold and leasehold property provided as security to the Group’s Revolving Credit Facility, which will remainin place
throughout the term of the facility agreement.

Supplier finance arrangements

The Group utilises a trade finance facility with HSBC. Under the terms and conditions of the arrangement, invoices are settled by HSBC on
their due date with the Group retaining liability for their payment. This facility provides the Group with up to 180 days frominvoice issuance
to settle the amounts due.

The amounts heldin the facility at the year-end are as follows:

As at As at
Carrying amount of financial liabilities 30 March 31March
£°000 2025 2024
Presentedinborrowings 1,805 2,754
- Of which suppliers have received payment from finance provider 1,805 2,754

Range of payment due dates

Liabilities that are part of the arrangements 45 - 60 45-60
days after days after

invoice date invoice date

Comparable trade payables that are not part of the arrangements 45 -60 45-60
days after days after

invoice date invoice date

23. Derivatives

The Group’s local currency is pounds sterling, but, due to purchases of goods and services in foreign currencies, the Group seeks to
reduce foreign exchange risk by entering into forward contracts and other derivatives. At 30 March 2025, the outstanding contracts all
mature within 24 months of the period end, with committed purchases of $34.6m (31March 2024: $20.8m).

The fairvalue of the Group’s foreign currency and interest rate derivative financial instruments, categorised as Level 2 on the fair value
hierarchy, are largely determined by comparison between forward market prices and the contract price. The fair value movement of the
foreign currency contracts are detailed innote 10 above.

There were no designated hedges in place during the current or proceeding financial year.
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24. Changesin liabilities arising from financing activities

At At

31March New Othergains 30 March

£°000 2024 Repayments Interest borrowings andlosses 2025
Short-term borrowings 2,754 (23,855) 419 22,521 (34) 1,805
Leaseliabilities 22,642 (4,750) 975 4,150 277 23,294
Total liabilities from financing activities 25,396 (28,605) 1,394 26,671 243 25,099

25. Financial risk management

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed through its operation to the following financial risks: credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and liquidity
risk. Risk management is carried out by the Directors of the Group. The Group uses financial instruments to provide flexibility regarding its
working capital requirements and to enable it to manage specific financial risks to which it is exposed.

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of debt finance, cash and liquid resources and various items such as trade debtors
and trade payables, which arise directly from the Business’s operations.

For furtherinformation on the Group’s Capital allocation and dividend policy, please see page 51.

Creditrisk

Creditriskis therisk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. To minimise the risk, the Group endeavours only to deal with companies that are demonstrably creditworthy and this, together
with the aggregate financial exposure, is continuously monitored. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of its financial
receivables, trade and otherreceivables and cash and cash equivalents, as disclosed in the notes to the financial information.

Thereceivables’ age analysisis evaluated on aregular basis for potential doubtful debts, considering historic, current and forward-looking
information. No impairments to trade receivables have been made to date. Further disclosures regarding trade and other receivables are
provided within the notes to the financial statements.

Creditrisk also arises on cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions. For banks and financial institutions,
onlyindependently rated parties with minimumrating “B+” are accepted.

Currently, all financial institutions whereby the Group holds significant levels of cash are rated from A- to A+.

Interest rate risk

As at 30 March 2025, the Group’s only drawn borrowings are through its trade finance facility with a floating interest rate linked to the
United States Federal fundsrate. This is variable on the amount drawn down and there is no fixed settlement date; therefore, the interest
rate risk exposure for the Group is minimal. The Group also has a £10m RCF with a floating interest rate linked to the Bank of England base
rate. The Group’s policy aims to manage the interest cost of the Group within the constraints of its financial borrowings. The Group does
not currently use any form of derivatives to manage interest rate volatility or future rate increases; however, it does seek to minimise
interest costs through careful management of its use of facilities.

During the period, if interest rates had been 100 basis points higher with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit would have been
£50k lower (FY24: £48k lower).

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchangerisk arises when the Group enters transactions in a currency other than their functional currency. The Group’s policy
is, where possible, to settle liabilities denominated in a currency other thanits functional currency with cash already denominated in that
currency.

The Group makes purchases of goods and services from overseas in foreign currencies and uses additional means to coverits exposure
to the foreign exchange movement. The Group uses various financial derivatives, such as forward exchange contracts, to help mitigate
movements in foreign currency to restrict losses and to ascertain control of expected cash outflows. All the Group’s foreign exchange
contracts are designated to settle the corresponding liability.

Liquidity risk

The Group seeks to maintain sufficient cash balances to support its working capital and investment requirements. Management reviews
cashflow forecasts on aregular basis to determine whether the Group has sufficient available cash to meet and support its operational
andinvestment activities.
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25. Financial risk management continued

Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost, which approximates to fair value, comprise trade receivables, otherreceivables and cash.

As at As at
30 March 31March

£’000 2025 2024
Tradereceivables - -
Otherreceivables 627 n
Cash atbankand onhand 1,788 854
Total 2,415 1,565

Financial assets measured at fair value include derivative financial assets:

As at As at

30 March 31March

£°000 2025 2024
Derivatives - 42
Total - 42

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other payables, accruals, borrowings and lease liabilities:

As at As at

30 March 31March

£°000 2025 2024
Trade payables 2,086 2,889
Otherpayables 2,581 1,003
Accruals 5,086 4132
Borrowings 1,805 2,754
Lease liabilities 23,294 22,642
Total 34,852 33,420

Financial liabilities measured at fair value include derivative financial liabilities, as follows:

As at As at

30 March 31March

2025 2024

Derivatives 177 -
Total 177 -

Inthe 52 weeks ended 30 March 2025, derivatives liabilities are included within the balance sheet under trade and other payables and are
recognised under level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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25. Financial risk management continued

A maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is shown below. With the exception of lease liabilities (whose payment schedule spans
the term of the respective lease agreements, please see Note 16 for further details) and national insurance contributions on share- based
payments, the Groups’ other liabilities as at 30 March 2025 are all due within less than one year:

As at As at

30 March 31March

£°000 2025 2024
Due within one year:

Trade payables 2,086 2,889

Otherpayables 2,581 1,003

Accruals 5,086 4,084

Borrowings 1,805 2,754

Leaseliabilities 3,708 3,347

Total 15,266 14,077

As at As at
30 March 31March
2025 2024

Due within one year:

Derivatives 177 -

Total 177 -

As at As at

30 March 31March

£°000 2025 2024
Due after one year:

Accruals 77 48

Leaseliabilities 19,586 19,295

Total 19,663 19,343

Further maturity of the Group’s lease liabilities is set out in note 16. All other liabilities that are due after one year are due to be settled within
five years.

The currency profile of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

As at As at

30 March 31March

£°000 2025 2024
Sterling 2,620 1,601
US dollar 73 383
Euro 69 21
Total 2,762 2,005
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25. Financial risk management continued
Foreign denominated asset and liability balances held at the year-end are as follows:
As at As at

30 March 31March
£°000 2025 2024
Current assets
Cashand cash equivalents 142 404
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 584 1,279
Borrowings 1,805 2,754
Total 2,389 4,437

Substantially all of the trade and other payables positions and borrowings positions shown above are denominatedin US dollars.

Furtherinformation relating to the Group’s hedging of these assets and liabilities is set outin note 23. A $0.01 change in the sterling to USD
exchangerate wouldresultina £19k increase/decrease (FY24: £40k) in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Capital disclosures

The capital structure of the business consists of cash and cash equivalents, debt and equity. Equity comprises share capital and retained
profitandis equal to the amount shown as ‘Equity’ in the balance sheet. As at 30 March 2025, debt comprised solely of the borrowings on
the Group’s trade finance facility, whichis set out in further detail above and in the notes to the accounts.

The Group’s objectives when maintaining capital are to:

o Safeguardthe Group’s ability as a going concern so that it can continue to pursue its growth plans;
e Provide areasonable expectation of future returns to shareholders; and
» Maintain adequate financial flexibility to preserve its ability to meet financial obligations, both current andlong term.

The Group sets the amount of capitalit requiresin proportion torisk. The Group managesits capital structure and adjustsitin the light of
changesin economic conditions and the risk characteristics of underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the periods presented the Group’s business strategy remained unchanged.

During the periods presented the Group maintained compliance with all relevant facility covenants.

26. Share capital and reserves

As at As at

30 March 31March

£ 2025 2024
Allotted, called up and fully paid

108,956,624 ordinary shares of 1p each 1,089,566 1,089,566

Total 1,089,566 1,089,566

Only one class of shares have beenissued that have full voting, dividend and capital distribution rights.

Reserves
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:

Share premium account: Proceeds received in excess of the nominal value of sharesissued, net of any transaction costs

Share optionreserve: Used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments expenses. See note 27 for further details on
share-based paymentplans.

Retained earnings: All other accumulated net gains and losses and transactions with shareholders not recognised elsewhere.
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27. Share-based payments

The Group operates several equity-settled share based compensation plans foremployees. The vesting date for each schemeis the last
day of the contractual life of the scheme. The terms and conditions of the grants are detailed below:

IPO Awards

Uponlisting, anumber of equity-settled schemes were set up, with options awarded to both the Leadership Team and eligible employees
with employment pre-dating March 2021. There are no performance conditions attached to these schemes, except that the employee

is required to be in employment with ProCook Group plc on the vest date, with the exception of the Leadership IPO award, that does not
include this condition.

As at As at

30 March 31March
IPO Awards 2025 WAEP (£) 2024 WAEP (£)
Outstanding at beginning of period 4,446,618 0.39 6,931,594 0.23
Granted during the period - - - -
Forfeited/lapsed during the period (63,177) 0.15 (365,773) 0.29
Exercised during the period (2,649,113) 0.14 (2,119,203) -
Outstanding at period end 1,744,328 0.79 4,446,618 0.39
Available to exercise at end of period 1,744,328 0.79 1,054,673 -

Available to exercise at end of period refers to all options not exercised which have passed their vesting date but have not reached any
expiry date, if applicable.

Options outstanding at 30 March 2025 are exercisable at prices ranging from nil to £1.45 (31 March 2024: nil to £1.45) and all options are
exercisable as at 30 March 2025 (weighted average remaining vest period for the IPO Awards as at 31March 2024: 7 months):

27. Share-based payments continued

Save As You Earn Scheme

All colleagues are invited to participate in Save As You Earn Schemes each year up to a monthly maximum savings amount of £500 per
month, with options granted at the Company share price at the date of award less a discount of 20%. The Save As You Earn schemes
are HMRC ‘approved’ schemes and are administered by a specialist third-party provider. All schemes carry a contractual vest period of
3 years fromthe scheme inception date, with a six-month exercise period after the completion of each scheme.

As at As at 31

30 March March
SAYE 2025 WAEP (£) 2024 WAEP (£)
Outstanding at beginning of period 1,313,394 0.21 1,395,228 0.31
Granted during the period 303,256 0.31 405,633 0.26
Forfeited/lapsed during the period (432,222) 0.35 (487,467) 0.31
Exercised during the period - - - -
Outstanding at period end 1,184,428 0.28 1,313,394 0.21

Available to exercise at end of period - = - -

Available to exercise at end of period refers to all options not exercised that have passed their vesting date but have not reached any
expiry date, if applicable.

Options outstanding at 30 March 2025 are exercisable at prices ranging from £0.26 to £0.31(31March 2024: £0.26 to £1.12) and the
weighted average remaining vest period for the SAYE Awards is 20 months as at 30 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 25 months):

Weighted Weighted

As at Average As at Average

SAYE 30March Remaining 31March  Remaining
Exercise Price (pence): 2025 Months 2024 Months
44.0 - - 41,120 10
27.0 564,649 10 866,641 22
26.0 316,523 22 405,633 34
31.0 303,256 34 - -
1,184,428 20 1,313,394 25

Weighted Weighted

Asat Average As at Average

IPO Awards 30March Remaining 31March  Remaining
Exercise Price (pence): 2025 Months 2024 Months
nil 1,054,673 - 1,227,086 7
145.0 689,655 - 689,655 7
44.0 - - 843,350 7
29.0 - - 843,350 7
14.5 - - 843,177 7
1,744,328 - 4,446,618 7

Long-Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs)

The Group operates an equity-settled LTIP for Executive Directors and the Senior Leadership Team, with performance conditions which
are set outin the Remuneration Report. Performance conditions for the Senior Leadership Team are consistent with those disclosed for
Executive Directors. The movements in nil-cost LTIP awards during the year were as follows:

As at As at

30 March 31March

LTIPs 2025 2024
Outstanding at beginning of period 4,995,625 3,325,374
Granted during the period 3,902,699 4,292,960
Forfeited/lapsed during the period (1,135,697) (2,622,709)
Exercised during the period - -
Outstanding at period end 7,762,627 4,995,625

Available to exercise at end of period - -

The weighted average remaining contractual life of these options as at 30 March 2025 is 1.6 years (31 March 2024: 2.2 years).
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27. Share-based payments continued 29. Related parties

Fair Value calculations Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not

The fair value of all share options granted are calculated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Given the disclosedin this note.

Group's admis;ion FO the London S_tOCk Exchangein Novgmber 2021, at the date of issug, volatility remainsrelatively U?k”OW” and .cannot Transactions with Quella Bicycle Limited, a related party by virtue of one of the Group’s Directors (Daniel O’Neill) holding a financial

be measured historically for the typical three year vest period attached to awards made in the year. Areasonable volatility expectation has interest, relate to logistics costs incurred on Quella’s behalf. During the year, Quella Bicycle Limited were charged nil (FY24: £1k). Payments
therefore been applied by the Group, based on a review of similar businesses’ historical share price volatility and the Group’s share price from Quella totalled nil during the year (FY24: £1k). The amount receivable at 30 March 2025 was nil (31 March 2024: nil).

history.

o ) . ) ) Transactions with Life’s a Beach, arelated party by virtue of one of the Group’s Directors (Daniel O’Neill) being a trustee of the charity,
Detail of inputs to Fair Value calculations for options grantedin the year are shown below: relate to charitable donations made on ProCook sales and other associated transactions. During the year, ProCook sales generated £44k
of donations payable to Life’s a Beach (FY24: £40k). During the year, ProCook made payments of £82k to Life’s a Beach (FY24: nil). The

LTIPs 2024 amount payable at 30 March 2025 was £9k (31 March 2024: £47k).

Share price at date of grant 26 pence 25pence Transactions with Conway House Limited, a related party by virtue of one of the Group’s Directors (Daniel O’Neill) being a Director of the
Exercise Price O pence Opence company, relate to the provision of advisory services to the Group. During the year, Conway House Limited provided services totalling
Volatility 53.1% 49.3% £44k (FY24: £45k). Payments to Conway House totalled £62k during the year (FY24: £38k). The amount payable at 30 March 2025 was nil
Expectedlife 3years 3years (3TMarch 2024: £7K).

Risk Free rate 4.04% 4.81% Key management personnel

Dividend yield 0.00% 0.88% The key management personnel of the Group comprise members of the Board.

Fairvalue peroption 26 pence 24 pence

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
SAYE 2024 30 March 31March

Share price at date of grant 29 pence 32pence £’000 2025 2024
Exercise Price 31pence 26 pence Wages and salaries 1,571 995
Volatility 54.2% 50.7% Post-employment benefits n 14
Expectedlife 3years 3years Share-based payments (including NI) 262 300
Risk Freerate 4.02% 4.15% Total 1,844 1,309
Dividendyield 0.00% 0.00%

Fairvalue per option T pence 14 pence Details of the remuneration of the Board can be found on pages 90 to 100.

Acorresponding charge to the Consolidated Income Statement of £0.5m (FY24: £0.5m) has been made inrespect of these share options
inthe period. Intotal, including movements of National Insurance accruals, £0.2m has beenrecognised as a non-underlying cost and
£0.2mas anunderlying cost during the year ending 30 March 2025 (31March 2024: £0.1m was recognised as a non-underlying cost and
£0.Imas anunderlying cost).

Exercises of IPO awards which vested in the year, which at the point of exercise were included in the share optionreserve at a value of
£2.4m, were satisfied by transfers of shares from the Employee Benefit Trust. Including withholding taxes paid on the employees’ behalf,
total cash outflows relating to these exercises were £0.2m. Excess balances in the share optionreserve totalling £2.2m, where the market
price on exercise was lower than the accrued fair value of the related options, have been transferred within equity to retained earnings.
The Weighted Average Share Price at the dates of these exercises was 36.1p.

28. Contingent liabilities
The Company had no contingent liabilities at the period-end date (31 March 2024: none).
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Parent Company Statement of Financial Position Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 30 March 2025 As at 30 March 2025

As at As at Share

30 March 31March Share Share option Retained Total
£°000s Note 2025 2024 £°000 Note capital premium reserve earnings equity
Assets As at 2 April 2023 1,090 1 6,891 57,905 65,887
Non-current assets Total comprehensive loss for the period - - - (1,187) (1,187)
Investment in subsidiary 4 69,091 69,091 Employee share-based payment awards - - 514 - 514
Deferredtax asset 5 934 1,044 Exercise of options - - (3,306) 2,946 (360)
Total non-current assets 70,025 70,135 As at 31March 2024 1,090 1 4,099 59,664 64,854
Current assets Total comprehensive loss for the period - - - (2,246) (2,246)
Otherreceivables 6 57 127 Employee share-based payment awards - - 495 - 495
Total current assets 57 127 Exercise of options - - (2,353) 2,131 (222)
Total assets 70,082 70,262 As at 30 March 2025 1,090 1 2,241 59,549 62,881
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7 7,131 5,360
Corporation tax payable - -
Total current liabilities 7,131 5,360
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7 70 48
Total non-current liabilities 70 48
Total liabilities 7,201 5,408
Net assets 62,881 64,854
Equity and reserves attributable to shareholders of ProCook Group plc
Share capital 8 1,090 1,090
Share optionreserve 9 2,241 4,099
Share premium 8 1 1
Retained earnings 8 59,549 59,664
Total equity and reserves 62,881 64,854

The Company made aloss aftertax of £2.2min the 52 week period to 30 March 2025 (31 March 2024: £1.2mloss).

The financial statements for ProCook Group Plc (Company Registration No. 13679248 (England and Wales)) on pages 154 to 161 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and signed onits behalf by:

Chief Financial Officer

24 June 2025
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General Information

ProCook Group plc (“the Company”)is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies
Act 2006 (Registration number: 13679248). The registered office is ProCook, 10 Indurent Park, Gloucester, GL10 3EZ. The Company
financial statements on pages 154 to 161 present financial information about the Company as a separate legal entity, and not about the
Group as awhole.

The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 4 to the
financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been preparedin accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and FRS 102 “The financial
reporting standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”). In accordance with the exemption allowed by Section 408(3)
of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its ownincome statement or statement of comprehensive income. The
financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, generally rounded to the nearest thousand. They are prepared on the historical cost
basis, unless otherwise stated.

The Directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, areasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accountingin preparing the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial information are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The Group has taken the following permissible disclosure exemptions under FRS102:

o Exemption from presenting a Statement of Cash Flow and related notes
o Partial exemption from share-based payment disclosures
o Exemption from disclosing related party transactions entered into between wholly owned subsidiaries

Going concern

In their consideration of going concern of ProCook Group plc, the Board has undertaken a comprehensive review and assessment of
going concernincluding the Group’s financial projections, debt servicing requirements, available facility headroom and liquidity, and
its principalrisks and uncertainties. In the base case scenario, andin the other downside scenarios, which the Directors have reviewed,
including a severe but plausible downside, the Group remains within its available facility headroom, and no facility covenants would be
breached. The Directors, therefore, have areasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence and meet itsliabilities as they fall due over the period of at least 12 months from the date of approving these financial
statements. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared under the going concern basis of accounting.

Furtherinformation regarding the Directors’ approach to assessing going concernis set out on pages 124 to 125 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. In the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Judgement - Deferred tax asset

The Company has recognised a deferred tax asset of £0.9min the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 March 2025 (31 March 2024:
£1.0m). Inrecognising the asset, the Company has applied judgement inits consideration of recoverability. The recognition of the
deferred tax assetinrelation to carried forward losses is judged to be appropriate (as prescribed in IAS 12.24) given there being
projections of sufficient future taxable profits in the Group against which such deferred tax assets could be offset, with the Company
receiving payment for the losses surrendered by way of group relief from the claimant subsidiary.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued

Judgement - Indicators of impairment (investment in subsidiaries)

Inthe yearended 2 April 2023, the Group completed animpairment assessmentinrespect of investment in subsidiaries following a
declineinthe Group’s share price, and lower profitability than in previous financial years. This assessment resulted in animpairment charge
of £48.2m, reducing the carrying value of the investment as at that date to £69.1m.

As at 30 March 2025, management has considered whether there are indicators of impairment for the investment in subsidiaries that
reflect the trading entities of the Group. While the brought forward carrying value of the investment in subsidiaries remains greater
thanthe Group’s market capitalisation at 30 March 2025, the market capitalisation has not deteriorated significantly year onyear, and
inlight of the Group’s improved financial performance year on year, the Directors have determined that there are no current indicators
of impairment, nor are there indicators of permanent reversal of priorimpairment, and, as aresult, noimpairment assessment has been
undertaken.

Further detail oninvestmentin subsidiaries can be foundinnote 4.

Expenses

Share-based payments

The Company operates anumber of share-based compensation plans, that are all equity settled, in exchange for services received from
employees. The fair value of these compensation plans is calculated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes model. The resulting costis
expensed to the Income Statement over the vesting period. The value of the expense is adjusted to reflect expected and actual levels of
vesting, considering any performance conditions which may apply to individual plans.

Social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of the share options are considered anintegral part of the grantitself
and the expense will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement asincurred. The cost of any unused
holiday entitlementis recognisedin the period in which the employee’s services are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed to terminate the
employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Pensions

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme using an external pensions partner. Contributions to the scheme are
expensed to the Income Statement in the period to which the contributions relate. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Company.

Current and deferred taxation

Taxation, comprising current and deferred taxation, is recognised in the Income Statement, except where a charge attributable to anitem
of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income or to anitem recognised directly in equity is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax on profits orlosses for the period, is calculated based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date in the UK where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax balancesin the Statement of Financial Position are recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but
notreversed by the balance sheet date, except where:

o Therecognition of deferred tax assets s limited to the extent thatitis probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of
deferred taxliabilities or other future taxable profits; and

o Anydeferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax allowances have been met.

Deferred tax balances are notrecognised inrespect of permanent differences exceptin respect of business combinations, when
deferred taxis recognised on the differences between the fair values of assets acquired and the future tax deductions available for them,
and the differences between the fair values of liabilities acquired and the amount that will be assessed for tax. Deferred income taxis
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

Where applicable the Company makes claims for Research and Development (R&D) tax reliefs inaccordance with the Research and
Development Expenditure Credit (RDEC) scheme. Qualifying projects are assessed to ensure the claims made fit the criteriaand
definitions set out by the UKHM Revenue and Customs. R&D tax relief claims are recognised in the tax expense line of the Income
Statement.
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Current and deferred taxation continued

Dividends
Ordinary dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are only recognised in the financial statements when they have been approved by
the shareholders, and the Company is obliged to make payment.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are recognised at cost less accumulated impairments. Each reporting period, itis determined whether
indicators of potential impairment (or reversal of previous impairment) exist. If any indicators are identified, animpairment assessment
isundertaken to ensure the valuation remains appropriate. Allimpairment losses will reduce the carrying value of the investment and be
chargedto the Income Statement during the year in which the impairment is recognised.

Otherreceivables
Otherreceivables are initially measured at the transaction price less transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at the transaction price and are subsequently carried at amortised cost. They are
recognised as current liabilities if payment is due within 12 months. Otherwise, they are recognised as non-current.

Share capital

Changesinthe share capital structure are recognised within equity on the Statement of Financial Position, within any excess over the
nominal share price being recognised within the share premiumreserve. Where the Company purchases its own equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs, is deducted from the equity attributable
to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled orreissued. Where such shares are subsequently sold orreissued, any
consideration received net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, isincludedin
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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Notes to the Parent Company

Financial Statements
Forthe 52 weeks to 30 March 2025

1. Employee numbers and costs

The Company’s employees are the Chairman, three Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors (the Group Board). Full details of
the Directors’ remuneration and interests are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 101to 107. Share-based payments details are
setoutinnote 9.

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for all qualifying employees. The scheme is administered and
managed by a separate third-party specialist pension scheme provider. The total expense recognised in the Income Statement for the
52 weeks ended 30 March 2025 was £11k (31March 2024: £14k) representing contributions payable to these plans by the Company at
rates specifiedin the rules of the plans.

2. Auditorremuneration

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

30 March 31March

£°000 2025 2024
Fee payable for the audit of the Company’s financial statements 74
Total auditor remuneration 75 74

3. Dividends
No dividends were declared or paid in the 52 weeks to 30 March 2025.

4. Investment in subsidiaries

ProCook Group plc owns 100% of the shares in ProCook Limited. Management determined the valuation of ProCook Limited at the
acquisition date and have assessed that noimpairment assessment was required at the reporting date. Further details around the
valuation of the investment and management’s assessment of potential indicators of impairment are set out in the above “critical
accounting estimates andjudgements”. Inthe yearended 30 March 2025, no impairment charge (or reversal of the previous impairment)
was deemed necessary (31 March 2024: no impairment charge).

ProCook Group plc substantially owns directly orindirectly the whole of the issued and fully paid ordinary share capital of its subsidiary
undertakings. The subsidiary undertakings of ProCook Group plc are presented below:

% of

ordinary
Subsidiary undertaking shares held Principal activity
ProCook Limited 100% Retail of kitchenware
ProCook (Kitchens) Limited 100%' Property holding company
ProCook (Steamer Trading) Limited 100%' Property holding company

1 Share capital held by ProCook Limited

Forthe yearended 30 March 2025, ProCook (Kitchens) Limited (company number 11816559) and ProCook (Steamer Trading) Limited
(company number 11749708) have taken advantage of s479A-479C of the Companies Act 2006 (Act), which allows companies to claim
exemption from audit. The ultimate Parent Company, ProCook Group plc guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary
companies are subject at the end of the financial year to which the guarantee relates, until they are satisfied in full.

ProCook Group plc, the Company, and its subsidiaries are incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The registered office is ProCook, 10
Indurent Park, Gloucester, GL10 3EZ.
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5. Deferred tax

The deferred tax asset has arisen due to the timing of future vesting dates inrespect of share-based payments and carried forward losses
from the previous financial year. The amounts have been presented on a net basis to follow the way in which they will be recouped by the
Group. Movements as follows:

Carried Share-

forward based
£°000 losses payments Total
Deferredtaxassetasat 2 April 2023 363 343 706
(Debit)/credit to profit andloss 470 (132) 338
Deferred tax asset as at 31March 2024 833 21 1,044
(Debit)/credit to profit andloss - (10) (110)
Deferred tax asset as at 30 March 2025 833 101 934

6. Otherreceivables

As at As at

30 March 31March

£°000 2025 2024
Otherreceivables 43 115
Prepayments 14 12
Total 57 127

Allreceivables are due within one year from the end of the reporting period. No impairment was incurred on trade receivables during the
period. No material amounts are overdue.

7. Trade and other payables

As at As at
30 March 31March
£°000 2025 2024

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade payables 106 -

Accruals 62 998

Amounts owed to Group undertakings 6,963 4,612

Total 7,131 5,610

As at As at

30 March 31March

£°000 2025 2024
Amounts falling due after one year:

Accruals 70 48

Total 70 48

The Directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value. Trade payables are non-interest
bearing and are normally settled monthly. Amounts owed to group undertakings are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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8. Share capital and reserves
As at As at
30 March 31March
£ 2025 2024
Allotted, called up and fully paid
108,956,624 ordinary shares of Ip each 1,089,566 1,089,566
Total 1,089,566 1,089,566

Only one class of shares have beenissued which have full voting, dividend and capital distribution rights.

Reserves
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:

Share premium account: Proceeds received in excess of the nominal value of sharesissued, net of any transaction costs

Share optionreserve: Recognises the value of equity-settled share-based payments expenses. See note 9 below and note 27in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for further details on share-based payment plans.

Retained earnings: All other accumulated net gains and losses and transactions with shareholders not recognised elsewhere.

9. Share-based payments
The Group operates several equity-settled share-based compensation plans foremployees:

IPO Awards

Uponllisting, a number of equity-settled schemes were set up, with options awarded to both the Leadership Team and eligible employees
with employment pre-dating March 2021. There are no performance conditions attached to these schemes, except that the employee is
required to be in continuing employment with the Group on the vest date, with the exception of the Leadership IPO award, that does not
include this condition.

Long-Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs)

The Group operates an equity-settled LTIP for Executive Directors and the Senior Leadership Team, with performance conditions which
are set out inthe Remuneration Report. Performance conditions for the Senior Leadership Team are consistent with those disclosed for
Executive Directors.

Save As You Earn Scheme

Employees are invited annually to participate in Save As You Earn Schemes up to a monthly maximum savings amount of £500, with
options granted at the market rate less a discount of 20%. These schemes are HMRC ‘approved’ and are administered by a specialist
third -party provider. All schemes carry a contractual vest period of 3 years from the scheme inception date, with a six-month exercise
period after the completion of each scheme.

Further detail on the various schemesis provided on pages 150 to 152.

10. Contingent liabilities
The Company had no contingent liabilities at the year-end date (31March 2024: none).
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Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

The Group monitors arange of measures to track financial and operational performance.
These include alternative performance measures which may not be definedinaccordance
with statutory measures (IFRS) and are therefore prone to varying calculations and as such
may not be comparable between different companies, although they may be similarly titled.

The Group considers these alternative performance measures to be helpful in providing stakeholders with additional information on the
performance of the business, although it recognises that they should not be considered a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measures.

To support the understanding of these APMs, details and definitions of the Group’s measures are provided as follows:

Closest Reconciliation
equivalent to IFRS
APM Rationale IFRS measure measure Definition and reconciliation
Like for like (“LFL”) Providesan Movementin Revenue from  LFLrevenue growth % is arevenue performance measure which
revenue growth % understanding of the revenue year non-LFL stores reflects:
performance of the onyearinthe and ecommerce

existing and continuing

Consolidated

channels

o Retail YoY: Continuing Retail stores which were trading for
atleast one full financial year prior to the 31March 2024,

businessonaconsistent Income elusi Pich h | -
basis year onyearbefore Statement inclusive of any stores whic may have mqved ocationor
e e P e S ERaE) increased/decreased footprint within a given retail centre.
ecommerce launches o Ecommerce YoY: ProCook direct website channel only.
FY25 FY24
Year on Year £°000 £°000 Var %
LFL Revenue 62,909 59,991 4.9%
LFL Ecommerce 25,054 22,709 10.3%
LFL Retail 37,855 37,283 1.5%
Non LFL Revenue 6,584 2,594
Non LFL Ecommerce 422 13)
Non LFL Retail 6.162 2,607
Total Revenue 69,493 62,585 1.0%
Total Ecommerce 25,476 22,695 12.3%
Total Retail 44,017 39,890 10.3%
Gross Margin % This measures our Gross profit Not applicable Gross profit presented as a percentage of revenue.
successinsourcing high !
quality products, which Gross profit represents revenue less cost of goods sold
offer customers great inclugive of costs ip(l:urred to getinventory toits final selling
value, while still achieving locationand condition.
strong gross margins
to support our business £000/% FY25 FY24
model. g
Revenue 69,493 62,585
Gross Profit 45,715 41,099
Gross Margin % 65.8% 65.7%
Non-underlying Excluding theseitems None See Note 3inthe Non-underlyingitems are defined as transactions that, in the

items

from profit measures
providesreaders with
helpful additional
information about the
underlying performance
of the Group, consistent
with how performance is
planned andreported to
the Board.

consolidated
financial
statements

opinion of the Directors, should be disclosed separately from
the reported Consolidated Income Statementin order to
provide a consistent and comparable view of the underlying
performance of the Group. This willinclude those items that
relate to non-recurring events and are material in nature and
which have beenincurred outside of the normal business
operations, including, but not limited, to restructuring and
fund-raising activities.
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Closest Reconciliation
equivalent to IFRS
APM Rationale IFRS measure measure Definition and reconciliation
Underlying The Group consider Operating profit See Statutory IFRS profit measures before the impact of non-
operating profit these to beimportant ) Consolidated  underlyingitems. Treatment is consistent between financial
. . measures of profit Profit before tax Income periods.
Underlyingprofit e tormance, helpful Profitaftertax ~ Statement
before tax tothereaders, and Non-underlvin
Underlying profit gonsistentfwith how o detailz dg
aftertax roup performance is X 3 of th
planned and reported to innote S ot the
the Board. consolidated
financial
statements
Underlying and The Group consider Operating profit Notapplicable FY25
Reported EBITDA these tobeimportant
(Earnings Before  measures of cash- Non-
Interest, Tax, generative profit £7000 Underlying underlying Reported
Depreciationand performance, helpful -
Amortisation) tothereaders Profit/(Loss) 1,520 (344) 1,176
before tax
Finance expense 1,415 - 1,415
Other gains/ 272 - 272
(losses)
Depreciation, 5,713 - 5,713
Amortisation,
gains/(losses)
ondisposal,
Impairments
EBITDA 8,920 (344) 8,576
FY24
Non-
£’000 Underlying underlying Reported
Profit/(Loss)
before tax 1,007 (277) 730
Finance expense 1,230 132 1,362
Other gains/
(losses) (114) - (M4)
Depreciation,
Amortisation,
gains/(losses)
ondisposal,
Impairments 4,673 (1,505) 3,168
EBITDA 6,796 (1,650) 5,146
FY24 EBITDA has beenrestated following a reassessment of
Right of Use asset depreciation addbacks.
Underlying This measure is useful None Not applicable Taxexpenseinthe Consolidated Income Statement takenas a
Effective tounderstand the tax percentage of underlying profit before tax.
taxrate expenserecognisedin

the Income Statement
compared to the
headline taxrate in force
forthe financial year.

£°000/% FY25 FY24
Underlying profit before tax 1,520 1,007
Tax (expense) (247) (165)
Effective taxrate % 16.3% 16.4%
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Alternative Performance Measures (APMS) continued

APM

Rationale

Closest Reconciliation
equivalent toIFRS
IFRS measure measure

Definition and reconciliation

Net capital
expenditure

This measure is useful

to highlight the net cash
investment made by
the Groupinlong-term
assets which will provide
economic benefits over

Netcashused See

ininvesting Consolidated
activities statement of
cash flows

Calculated as capital expenditure inrespect of purchases of
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and costs
associated with lease arrangements, less proceeds from sale
of fixed assets.

alongertime frame. £'000 FY25 FY24
Purchase of property, plant, and
equipment 3,828 1,844
Lease inception costs 249 71
Leaseincentivesreceived - (60)
Net capital expenditure 4,077 1,855
Free cash flow This measure is useful Netmovement SeeCFO’s Netincrease/(decrease)in cash and cash equivalents before
tounderstand the level incashandcash report dividend payments, proceeds from the issue of shares, and
of free cash generated equivalents proceeds/(repayments) from borrowings.
which could beretained
forfuture investment ,
bythe business, £°000 FY25 FY24
utilised torepay any Net changei
L geincashand cash
debt ordistributed to equivalents 757 43
shareholders.
Addback dividends paid - -
Addback changeinborrowings 949 1,949
Free Cash Flow 1,706 1,992
Netcash/(debt) Thismeasureisusefulto None Not applicable Netcash/(debt) comprises of cash and cash equivalentsless
understand the financial borrowings. This definition of net cash/(debt) does notinclude
stability of the business lease liabilities, derivatives or any contingent consideration,
and as anindicator of which may be conditional upon future events which are not yet
leverage. certain at the year-end date.
£°000 FY25 FY24
Cashand cash equivalents 2,762 2,005
Borrowings (1,805) (2,754)
Net cash/(debt) 957 (749)
12 month This measure is useful None Not applicable The12monthrepeatrate reflects the percentage of new
repeatrate % tounderstand the customers who first purchased from the Groupin the
Group’s ability toretain preceding financial year, who have made atleast one
customersandas an subsequent purchase inthe 12 months since their first
indicator of the Group’s purchase.
ability toincrease the life
time value of customers.
Number of active  This measure of the None Not applicable Active customers are those thathave completed atleast 1
customers Group’s active customer purchase during the last 12 months (L12M) and whose customer

databaseis usefulasan
indicator of continued
penetrationinto the
markets we operatein.
This database allows
ProCook to understand

shopping behaviours and

bettertarget marketing
activities.

details are recorded on our customer database.
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